=

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25
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TAPED PROCEEDINGS
CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: The Administrative
Assistant, please call the roll.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Representative
Precourt.
REPRESENTATIVE PRECOURT: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Adkins.
REPRESENTATIVE ADKINS: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Albritton.
REPRESENTATIVE ALBRITTON: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Baxley.
REPRESENTATIVE BAXLEY: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Bernard.
REPRESENTATIVE BERNARD: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Boyd.
REPRESENTATIVE BOYD: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Brodeur.
REPRESENTATIVE BRODEUR: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Caldwell.
REPRESENTATIVE CALDWELL: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Campbell.
REPRESENTATIVE CAMPBELL: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Clarke-Reed.
REPRESENTATIVE CLARKE-REED: Here.

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Corcoran.
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Cruz.
REPRESENTATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
REPRESENTATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
REPRESENTATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
REPRESENTATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
REPRESENTATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
REPRESENTATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
REPRESENTATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
REPRESENTATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
REPRESENTATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
REPRESENTATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
REPRESENTATIVE
ADMINISTRATIVE
REPRESENTATIVE

ADMINISTRATIVE

CRUZ: Here.
ASSISTANT: Drake.
DRAKE: Here.
ASSISTANT: Frishe.
FRISHE: Here.
ASSISTANT: Fullwood.
FULLWOOD: Here.
ASSISTANT: Holder.
HOLDER: Here.
ASSISTANT: Hooper.
HOOPER: Here.
ASSISTANT: Hukill.
HUKILL: Here.
ASSISTANT: Jones.
JONES: Here.
ASSISTANT: Julien.
JULIEN: Present.
ASSISTANT: Legg-
LEGG: Here.
ASSISTANT: Nehr.
NEHR: Here.
ASSISTANT: Passidomo.
PASSIDOMO: Here.
ASSISTANT: Reed.

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1081



=

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

REPRESENTATIVE REED: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Rogers.
REPRESENTATIVE ROGERS: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Schenck.
REPRESENTATIVE SCHENCK: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Stargel.
REPRESENTATIVE STARGEL: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Taylor.
REPRESENTATIVE TAYLOR: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Trujillo.
REPRESENTATIVE TRUJILLO: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Williams, A.
REPRESENTATIVE WILLIAMS: Present.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Young.
REPRESENTATIVE YOUNG: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: The Senate, if we
could get the roll call for the Senate as well.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Senator Gaetz.
SENATOR GAETZ: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Senator
Margolis.
SENATOR MARGOLIS: Here.
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Senator

Braynon.
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SENATOR BRAYNON: Here.

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Senator Flores.

SENATOR FLORES: Here.

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Senator Hays.

SENATOR HAYS: Here.

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Senator Joyner.

SENATOR JOYNER: Here.

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Senator Lynn.

SENATOR LYNN: Here.

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Senator
Montford.

SENATOR MONTFORD: Here.

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Senator Negron.

SENATOR NEGRON: Here.

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Senator Sobel.

SENATOR SOBEL: Here.

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Senator
Thrasher?

SENATOR THRASHER: Here.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much. We are also pleased to be joined today
by names of non committee Legislators attending
the hearing. Would you please read those as
well?

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Representative
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Abruzzo?

REPRESENTATIVE ABRUZZO: Here.

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Klar?

REPRESENTATIVE KLAR: Here.

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much. First of all, 1 want to thank everyone
for coming out today. We are very grateful to
both the House and Senate staff for setting up
this great facility.

We are grateful to have such a terrific
turn out, and we are also here to share what I
believe and come to share the comments and
recommendations to help shape both the
Congressional and the Senate and House
Districts for the next decade.

My name is Will Weatherford, and 1 along
with my Senate colleague, Senator Don Gaetz,
will be chairing today"s hearing which is also
being webcast statewide by the Florida Channel
over the Internet.

Ladies and gentlemen, our sole purpose
here is to hear from the public about how you
believe the legal standards governing

redistricting should be applied in your
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community so that you are represented in both
Washington and in Tallahassee fairly, equitably
and sensibly.

Our procedures today are simple but they
are very important. It is important that you
sign in so that we can create an accurate
public record of all attendees and speakers.

Also you may opt to join our e-mail lists
so that we can keep you informed about how the
redistricting process is working over the next
few months. |If you have not signed in, please
raise your hand and a staff member will give
you an attendance card.

IT you wish to speak today and you haven®t
yet filled out an attendance card, please raise
your right hand and we will get you a card so
you can be called on and we will make sure not
to miss your testimony. It is the same
attendance card, whether you want to speak or
if I want to just sit and listen.

Before we begin the Chair will recognize
Co-Chairman, Senator Don Gaetz to explain how
today”s hearings fit into the redistricting
process. Chairman Gaetz.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,
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Mr. Speaker, and 1 notice there are a couple of
folks there who need to have either appearance
cards or speaker cards, and will a member of
the professional staff please get to those
folks as soon as possible.

Mr. Speaker, and those of us who are
gathered here today, every ten years the
Legislature i1s required by the Constitution to
redistrict the state based on iIncreases,
decreases, or movements of population within
the state.

Because Florida has grown more than other
states in the last ten years we will move up
from 25 to 27 members of the U.S. House of
Representatives, and because some parts of our
state have iIncreased or decreased
disproportionately, many Senate and House
Districts will change, either by adding or
losing population.

When redistricting is complete
Congressional Districts must be equal iIn size
and each Congressional District plus contain
696,345 people. The 40 Senate Districts must
also be nearly equal at 470,033 people, and our

120 House Districts must also be nearly equal
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at 156,678 persons.

There is a map at the front of the room
that you can see over there. You are welcome
when we take our breaks come up and have a look
at 1t that shows this area of the state, north
Florida, particularly northwest Florida.

The map shows the current boundaries of
existing districts and the number of persons of
which each district is short or the number of
excess population to be adjusted in order to
achieve equal representation.

But Mr. Speaker, equality of
representation is not the only requirement that
redistricting plans have to meet. The laws and
important court cases governing redistricting
are explained in detail on the House and Senate
websites.

Those websites are listed on the
Redistricting 2012 brochure that was available
when you came in. |If you didn"t get one of
those brochures you can get them on your way
out.

The Redistricting 2012 brochure summarizes
Federal and State laws and outlines topics we

hope you will discuss at today"s hearing and
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the other 25 hearings across Florida. 1T you
didn®"t get a brochure our staff will be happy
to get you one.

Those same websites have available to the

public all of the demographic information from

the U.S. Bureau of the Census that will be used

in drawing districts and the redistricting
software the Legislators will be using.

These websites will allow any member of
the public to see all of the district maps
proposed by Legislators and for citizens,
themselves, to propose their own district maps
for their own communities, or for the whole
state using all of the tools available to the
Legislature.

Before, during, and after this hearing,
Senate and House professional staff are
available to show you the simple steps to
getting on-line and making your submission for
your suggestions now or in the weeks to come.

Every recommendation from any member of
the public or any group will be made publicly

available to everyone else. In fact, some

public submissions are already available on the

web .
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The submission of proposed maps that make
sense for your community is the single most
effective form of public participation in this
process.

The redistricting schedule under which we
are operating is imposed by our State
Constitution. This is critical. The
Constitution does not permit our Legislature to
act on legislative maps before the second year
after the census.

In other words, the Constitution doesn®t
permit us to act on legislative or
congressional maps before 2012. We have
accelerated this process as much as possible by
moving up the 2012 legislative session from
March to January, and beginning our statewide
hearings today, five months in advance of the
2012 session.

It has been suggested that the Legislature
should draw maps first and then ask the public
to comment on the Legislature®s maps. We
believe that puts the answer ahead of the
question.

There should be no preconceptions created

by politicians, but rather public testimony
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should be free and unrestricted.

Our intent iIs to use the recommendations
made of the 26 public hearings and through the
Internet cites where we are gathering input as
the basis for developing one or more options
for district maps.

We will share those options in open public
meetings before any vote is taken, even in
Committee.

Throughout the process we will solicit
additional public comment so that proposed maps
can mature with the public involved all before
the Legislature approves any maps.

Whatever the Legislature votes on is then
submitted for judicial review to insure that
the plans meet every legal requirement.

Because our mission today is to hear from
you, all of the remaining time between now and
8:00 p.m. tonight will be used to insure that
every member of the public who is here and
wishes to speak will have time to present
testimony and be listened to respectfully
without interruption or argument.

IT, after every citizen has his or her

say, there is time remaining before our
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scheduled adjournment, then any member of the

Committee may make any statement or offer any

observation, and, of course, any member of the
Legislature may today or at any time propose a
map or a plan and we will make 1t available to
the public Iimmediately on our websites.

Mr. Speaker, I hope this description of
our schedule and process helps set the stage
for successful hearings across Florida.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. Chairman. By Senate and House rules
we will adjourn promptly at this first meeting
at 4:00 p.m. There are already dozens of
individuals signed up to speak.

IT there i1s anyone else who wishes to
speak that has not gotten their public
appearance card, please make sure and get one
by raising your right hand again.

To Insure that each person is heard we
will divide the time equally and ask that each
testifier to limit his or her remarks to three
to five minutes.

That being said, as we get more cards in
iT time becomes crunched we may come to a hard

clock of three minutes.
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Our first speaker is Ms. Diane Wilson,

Ms. Diane Wilson is with Wakulla County
Democratic Women®s Club, and after Diane we
have Ms. Carolyn Land and Ms. Marty Monroe.

What we would like, Ms. Marty Monroe, what
we would like, Mr. Marty Monroe. What we would
like to do is we will announce the first
speaker and then the two subsequent speakers to
follow to make sure that you can be prepared to
bring your comments forward.

So we would ask as we announce your name,
that you get in the cue and be prepared to
speak.

Ms. Wilson, the floor is yours and you are
recognized for three to five minutes. Thank
you, Ms. Wilson declines to speak at this time.

Next up we have Ms. Carolyn Land followed
by Mr. Marty Monroe. Ms. Land.

MS. LAND: Thank you for asking --

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: 1 would like, just
for the record purposes we would love i1t if you
could come and speak at the podium. Thank you
very much.

MS. LAND: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: There is a button
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14

Page 1092



[EEY

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

15

to turn the microphone on there. Thank you,
Ms. Land.

MS. LAND: Try that. One more time.
Thank you for asking for public input on a very
important decision, and 1 am from Lafayette
County. When you compare population,
registered voters to most of the counties, we
are one of the smallest counties In the state,
and to me it is extremely important as we draw
the districts that our entire county be within
one district.

Also, as much as possible, that we be
grouped with people who share the same
industries and issues that we share as a small
rural county. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Ms. Land, we appreciate your comments.
Next up we have Marty Monroe, followed by
Mr. Herb Shelton.

Ms. Monroe, you are recognized?

MS. MONROE: Thank you. Thank you very
much. Good afternoon. Marty Monroe. 1 have
lived in Tallahassee since the 1980s, and it
almost makes me home grown. I am proud to be a

recovering Civics teacher, and I care a great

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1093



[EEY

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

16

deal about a healthy democracy.

And I am here today because I think this
IS a very sick process. My parents are in
their 80s. They, too, live here in
Tallahassee. They live in the Westminster
Oaks.

Now, there are more trees between my house
and Westminster Oaks than there are people, and
my parents don"t have a Senator Bill Montford,
thank you very much, 1 am proud to have you,
and they were very upset.

They moved from a garden apartment to the
main building, and you know what that created,
a change of address. Now, a change of address
seems very simple to people, but when you are
in your 80s, it gets very complicated.

Most people do not have driver®s license,
thankfully, in retirement communities, and my
parents, they don*t pay bills, Westminster does
all of that.

So they had to go find paid staff to write
them a letter to say my parents live there, and
fortunately, my parents travel a lot and they
had a passport. 1 am telling you folks this is

suppressing votes, creating problems in the
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democracy .

That is very difficult for people in their
80s. You all think it is just a, well, you
Jjust go down there and get a change of address,
but for real people that is real problems.

Monday morning, 1 am in chemotherapy, I
just came out of i1t this morning. Cancer
doesn”"t discriminate, and 1 sit in chemotherapy
with homeless people, the working core. | sit
in there with all types of people. In fact, it
breaks my hard to see the classroom teacher in
there grading papers and writing lesson plans
during a six-hour chemo treatment.

Our lives are very complicated navigating
the medical model. And we talk a lot. |
always talk politics, 1 am a recovering Civics
teacher. So we talk and we share our concerns,
and, yes, we are sick, but we are basically
heart sick, heart sick about the declining
democracy iIn the state.

Yes, | read the leadership letter to
instruct you not to speak and I don®t think you
need to. 1 was laid up on the couch In chemo
and watched the day in the Legislature every

day, and 1 think you have spoken real loud.
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I think your actions speak louder than
yours words. You had no money for the working
core, no money for state employees, and no
money for public education, and now I learn you
got $30 million set aside to fight the will of
the voter. That is $30 million to fight me and
my 80-year-old parents. $30 million to leave
no lawyer behind is what I think.

The leadership in Florida talks about
saving the state money, money, money, and
running it like a business.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Ms. Monroe,

Ms. Monroe, if I could for just one second, 1
am sorry to interrupt you. We are trying to
focus the comments today on redistricting and
on the future of Florida®s maps, and we
certainly want to hear your thoughts in regards
to the budget and in regards to the different
issues that we face as a state, but we would
really ask you to focus your comments today on
the redistricting, on the redistricting
process.

MS. MONROE: This is part of the
redistricting process as far as 1 am concerned,

Representative Weatherford. Okay.

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

18

Page 1096



=

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Just please keep
tailored to the redistricting process, thank
you .

MS. MONROE: 1 will try i1f you will let
me. 1 want to know what business in Florida
sends their employees on a road show to ask
other people to do their jobs. 1 want to be
perfectly clear, it is the job of the
Legislature to draw the Congressional
legislative maps, and 1 understand that many
other states out there have completed their
redistricting process.

Their citizens were able to comment on
actually proposed maps, and by the way, that
has been the practice in Florida for the past
years.

There were prepared maps here at these

meetings that we could speak on. That has been

the practice in the past.

Fair District Amendment was won by a super

majority of voters to clarify how we want the
maps drawn. That is a lot of input, folks.
That is -- that is how we amended the
Constitution, because we wanted to give you

direction on how to draw those maps, and 1 am
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Jjust going to gently suggest what our Governor
always likes to say, let"s get to work and quit
wasting time in drawing those maps.

By the way, | want to comment on your
timeline. It really looks like an incumbent
protection plan here, because you are delaying
and prolonging the process to the last possible
date. This creates chaos for candidates and
very little time for the education of
campaigns.

It 1s very highly unlikely that
Floridians, the voters, will know their new
districts before qualifying, and, of course,
the process could take much longer if you don"t
draw maps that comply with the law.

So I am wondering today, Senators, House
Reps, aren”"t you just tired of being Flori-da,
the stupid state that holds up National
elections just because we can?

I want you to stop the delays. |1 want you
to stop stalling and I want you to get to work
as the Governor likes to say, let"s get to
work. I have been ready. 1 think you should,
too.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
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much, Ms. Monroe. Next up we have Herb
Shelton, followed by Barbara Day, Herb is
representing himself.

Mr. Shelton, thank you for being here.

You are recognized, sir.

MS. SHELTON: Thank you for this time, but
actually there is a fellow here that is much
more knowledgeable about this than 1 am and 1
would love to cede my time to him, and his name
is Matthew Isbell, if that is permissible.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: What we could do,
sir, is if he will fill out a card we will
certainly make sure and find time for him, but
we are reading the cards off in the order that
they were turned in.

And so it he would fill out a card we will
make sure and give him an opportunity to speak.

MR. SHELTON: Okay, sorry.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Would you still
like to speak, sir?

MR. SHELTON: Sure, | can speak a thing or
two. You know, it takes courage to do this.
You folks are learned, lawyers and whatever,
but, you know, I am just a citizen of Leon

County here, and you know, I want to first of
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all thank you for this forum, you know, to
discuss fair districting.

I just want to add my voice to the sister
that just spoke about getting the job soon,
please. Sixty-three percent of Florida voters
wanted to see this thing finished and fairly.

As you know, I am Herb Shelton. 1 have
friends across the state from Pensacola to
Lauderdale. They vote, we have watched a tax
on early voting, | have watched State employee
pension funds being attacked. There is an
ultrasound mandate, there is a Supreme Court
attack, the Supreme Court of Florida is being
attacked.

I have watched distinguished clergy and
vote God for guidance on your behalf and yet
seen policies that are to me reveal a deep
sickness, and the burden of my soul for you
today can be best described, summed up in the

words of Isaiah, 520, "Woe unto them that call

evil good and good evil. That pit darkness for

light and light for darkness, that pit bitter
for sweet and sweet for bitter. Woe unto them

that are wise In their own eyes and prudent in

their own sight, but God"s iInvitation to you is
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FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222

this, come into me and be healed, for why will
you die.” And there is a quote from a man
named Uriah Smith back in 1884.

I don"t know if I should say this, but
anyway, he spoke and wrote, "Fraud, dishonesty,
usurpation lying, cheating and stealing will
largely determine the count and the party which
can do most of this work will probably win."
Thank you for your time.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. Shelton. Next up we have Ms. Barbara
Day from the AARP, followed by Henry Kelly.

Ms. Day, thank you very much for being
here today. You are recognized.

MS. DAY: Good afternoon, Chairman Gaetz

and Chairman Weatherford and the Committee

members.

My name is Barbara Day. 1 live in Panama
City, Bay County. | appear today as a
volunteer for -- as a volunteer for AARP.

I urge the Legislature to make
redistricting process to be all you can be. As
you exercise your constitutional duty to draw
voting districts for ten years beginning with

the 2012 elections, AARP urges you to insure

-5491
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transparency of the legislative redistricting
process every stay of the way.

Keep transparency in place with
redistricting discussions among members and by
members, should be noticed and open to the
public, too.

Also keep transparency in place, meaning
the public has opportunity to comment and to
have those comments meaningfully considered by
the Legislature during our legislative --
legislative redistricting proceedings and on
redistricting proposals, that is before
Legislators make decisions.

Insure timeliness of the redistricting
process and insure public input. The
Legislature has an obligation to meet the
constitutional dictates as already expressed by
the Florida voters. The Legislator owes
Florida®s residents and voters professionalism
and timely completion of the redistricting
process.

The Legislature knows the procedural steps
that redistricting plans will need to complete
in order for there to be a timely qualification

of the 2012 candidates under the new district
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and for the vigorous campaigns before voters
cast their ballots.

That means the Legislature should complete
its portion of the process sooner rather than
later.

Remember to take steps to insulate the
redistricting process from the appearance of a
conflict of interest. For example,
subcommittees of Legislators could research and
develop alternative redistricting proposals for
areas of the state remote from the sub
committee members.

Geographic residence, perhaps, just as an
example, perhaps four areas of the state and
then refine and reconcile for two halves of the
state, then refine and reconcile by the full
chambers into one state plan.

When it is time for your performance, the
Florida voters will not count as undue expense
and delay in that performance. It is up to the
Legislator.

What will it be? Will it be
redistricting, presentment or voter resentment?
I am confident the Legislature and i1ts staff

have professional competence and technical
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assistance to research and propose new voting
districts in accord with all the constitutional
and Federal requirements.
Wishing you good luck and make your best
effort. Thank you so much for your time.
CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Ms. Day. We appreciate your comments.
Next up we have Ms. Debbie Walsh from the
Center for American Women in Politics.
Followed up by Mr. Daryl Nall.

Ms. Walsh, thank you very much for being

here.

MS. WALSH: Thank you very much for having
me. 1 want to thank the members of the
Commission and good afternoon. 1 am Debbie

Walsh, Director of the Center for American
Women and Politics, a unit of the Eagleton
Institute of Politics at Rutgers, the State
University of New Jersey and | probably used up
half my time, right?

For 40 years, CAWP or the Center, has been
monitoring and analyzing women®"s status and
prospects in American politics, tracking the
numbers of women office-holders and conducting

research about their impact.
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I am here today because In recent years we
have noticed a deeply disturbing trend. The
stagnation and even decline in the number of
elected women, and we want to make sure that
trend is not exacerbated by the redistricting
process, yet the early evidence suggests that
unless careful attention iIs paid, women may
lose even more ground.

As part of our 2012 project a non partisan
campaign to increase the number of women iIn
Congress and State Legislatures across the
country, we are monitoring the redistricting
process nationwide.

We have analyzed the new map in New
Jersey, the Tirst state to complete its
legislative redistricting and the results are
alarming.

In a state where 28 percent of the current
Legislature i1s female, women make up at least
57 percent of the Legislators who will retire
as a result of redistricting.

In other words, women iIncumbents were
disproportional forced out by redrawn district
lines. We all know that women are more than

half the nation®s population, and on that basis
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alone, the paucity of elected women is a
problem.

Today women hold 16.6 percent of the seats
in Congress, six Governorships out of 50,

24 percent of seats iIn State Legislatures, and
Mayor®s offices in eight of the 100 largest
cities in the nation.

Here in Florida women hold one quarter of
State Legislative seats making it rank 20th in
the nation and just over a quarter of the
Congressional seats.

So although Florida has done better than
many states, it still fails to represent women
in anywhere near their proportions in the
population, but we are not just playing a
numbers game.

Research carried out by scholars and CAWP
and elsewhere demonstrates clearly that gender
balance changes the way government works,
altering the policy agenda, procedures, content
and outcomes on issues as varied as job loss,
national security and health.

Adding women makes a difference, and this
IS not a partisan divide, both Democratic and

Republican women bring distinctive experiences,
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prospectives and priorities to public office.

That is not only good for women, i1t is
good for Florida. Studies cutting across the
public and private sectors underscore the value
of gender balance. A recent article on
Forbes.com cited a Harvard conference that used
extensive scholarly research to make the
business case for gender equality.

The author reported, there is irrefutable
verifiable evidence that women in greater than
token proportions improve decision-making,
improve shareholder value and lower risk
taking. While the business of government does
not have shareholders, i1t certainly does have
stakeholders.

Citizens for whom better decision-making
and improved value are critically important.
Under the circumstances we can ill-afford to
diminish women®s representation iIn government.

That 1s why I wanted to bring to your
attention this issue. We understand that women
are not legally protected in the redistricting
rules, but 1 would ask you to adhere to a
higher standard than merely following the basic

requirements which should be seen as a floor,
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not a ceiling.

As you assess the various options before
you, don*t simply do the least harm, iInstead,
aim to do the most good. 1 encourage you to
insure that women incumbents present only
through hard won progress are treated fairly in
the redistricting process. Thank you very
much.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Ms. Walsh, and thank you for making the
trip all of the way down from New Jersey. We
appreciate you being here.

Actually, 1 skipped Mr. Kelley, Mr. Henry
Kelly. You are recognized, sir, and then we
will follow that up by Daryl Nall. Sorry about
that, Mr. Kelley. You are recognized, sir.

MR. KELLEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and
I would like to on behalf of the Ft. Walton
Beach Tea Party thank the Joint Committee for
having an open and transparent process, and |
would like to thank Representative Weatherford
and the Senator from my district, Don Gaetz,
for their leadership on this.

Tea parties around the state will be

participating in all of the meetings and we
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will be submitting plans, and 1 for one, i1t was
very disappointed to see criticism of the
committee process already.

With the growth of our population I am
glad to start with a blank slate and that the
public will have the opportunity to input
plans.

I have personally created already a
Congressional District and a Senate House plan.
I have to be honest, Representative
Weatherford, 120 is a lot of districts in the
House, but I have found the software easy to
use.

It took me about 15 minutes with the help
of the videos to become proficient and several
hours to draw the plans.

I will have some comments specific to the
panhandle tomorrow night at the meeting in Ft.
Walton Beach, but 1 wanted to say that it is my
view, having actually worked on the software,
that any group in the state of Florida,
particularly those with a complete staff, have
no excuse for not spending a few hours, which
is all it requires, to at least put together a

plan.
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And we prefer that the redistricting be
resolved here in the Legislature where the
people have a voice rather than going to the
courts where they appear to be the worse
gerrymanders of all. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. Kelley. We appreciate your comments,
sir. Next up we have Mr. Nall, Mr. Daryl Nall,
Ms. Nall, 1 am sorry, I apologize. Followed up
by Peter Butzin.

MS. NALL: Okay, I didn®t prepare any
remarks, but 1 got signatures for the Petition
that got the issues on the ballot and 1 was
really happy that the people of Florida want to
have fair redistricting and that is why I am
here.

I really want the process to be fair and
not -- 1 am a Democrat, but even if the
Democrats were in power it should be fair to
everybody and not slanted anymore than you have
to to comply with the Federal laws, because the
State Constitution doesn™t allow it be slanted.
Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very much

for your comments. We have Peter Butzin up
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next, followed by Chris Moore. Peter Butzin
with Common Cause. Thank you for being here,
Mr. Butzin.

MR. BUTZIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Good afternoon, everyone, my name is Peter
Butzin.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: 1 am sorry.

MR. BUTZIN: 1 am on the national
governing board of Common Cause. 1 reside here
in Tallahassee and I have been involved in
reapportionments process that goes way back to
1982, and 1 wanted to talk a little bit about
my experience iIn 1982, when the Republicans had
about 30 percent of the Legislature under its
control and worked very closely with Common
Cause to try to insure the fair drawing of the
legislative districts.

And 1 worked with people like Pete Dunbar
and Curt Kiser, John Guthrie, Jack Latvala was
one of our organizers. We worked closely
together around the state to encourage people
to be involved iIn this process, and | remember
asking Pete Dunbar, I said, well, why are the
Republicans working so closely with Common

Cause on this issue.
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And he said, look, we have been -- we have
been unfairly treated by reapportionment for as
long as the reapportionment process has existed
in Florida.

All we want is a fair process, because we
know that if 1t iIs a fair process, we will be
able to better represent our constituents, and
that is really all Common Cause is asking for
in this process, is that you be fair in the
drawing of legislative district lines.

That you not draw lines for incumbent
protection, that you not draw lines to protect
political parties or even communities of
interest, but instead that you follow the
standards, the 63 percent of Florida voters
added to the Florida Constitution in the form
of Sections 20 and 21, and if you uphold your
oath to uphold the Constitution, you will abide
by those anti gerrymandering standards to
insure a fair reapportionment process for
everyone.

I would also hope that you have a second
round of public hearings and encourage the
public to comment on your plans.

Now, 1 realize that you can"t pass the
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plans until the 2012 Legislative session, but
that does not mean that you can"t go ahead and
in committee pass plans prior to January 1st of
2012, have another round of public hearings
where we are encouraged to react to those plans
and to have our public input.

Also, 1 would say produce those plans
early in the session so that we can accelerate
the process of court review, so the candidates
and voters will know the district boundaries
well before the elective process, and
ultimately I encourage you to remember that
Legislative Districts, Congressional Districts,
belong to the people, not to individual
Legislators or to political parties.

So I encourage you to uphold your oath of
office, support the Florida Constitution,
including Sections 20 and 21, the 63 percent of
Floridians added to the Constitution iIn
November of 2010. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you much,

Mr. Butzin. | appreciate you being here today,

Next up we have Mr. Chris Moore, who is

the Leon County Supervisor of Elections, works
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with the Leon County Supervisor of Elections,
and also we have former Senator Al Lawson is up
after that.

Thank you very much for being here,

Mr. Moore.

MR. MOORE: Thank you. My name is Chris
Moore. I am the demographics and GIS manager
for the Leon County Elections Office here in
Tallahassee, and I am here to talk about the
technical and financial ramifications of
redistricting, not so much the demographics and
the mandates that you have in front of you. |1
think those are well documented.

I have a unique perspective of looking at
districts, in that I have to look at them
collectively. 1 have to look at the Senate,
the House, the Congressional Districts as well
as Local Districts and one thing that 1 haven®t
seen talked about that 1 would like to submit
for consideration is looking at these districts
collectively, because when you look at the
districts collectively there is places in Leon
County that the House District and the Senate
District may be very close by, and if there is

opportunities to get those lines iIn sync then,
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you know, that is a financial savings to the
taxpayers.

We have to have ballots for every precinct
specific style, everywhere there iIs a hard
district line there i1s a precinct line. So the
more you can get that in line with each other,
we have an opportunity for financial savings at
the county level.

The other thing I would like to say about
the savings, It is the course of a decade. It
is not just for one year, it is for ten years,
and it affects equipment, it affects supplies,
it affects training. It ripples i1ts way all of
the way through our system for a very long
time.

And as far as the statistics for the
districts, 1 think last time around you were
able to get down to like a zero deviation or a
one person deviation in the numbers, and I
would implore you not to hide behind the
numbers being so close, because what happens
oftentimes when you are trying to get to those
numbers you start to ignore other criteria that
is out in front of you, and if you just need to

get the numbers right, you start grabbing
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pieces out of neighborhoods here and there and
that i1s where some of the fracturing that you
see of neighborhoods occurs, because you are
trying to get to a deviation that, to me is not
the most important criteria, nor should it be.

So those -- those are my suggestions for
-- from the Leon County Supervisor of
Election®s Office and 1 thank you for your
time.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very much
for those good suggestions, Mr. Moore.

Next up we have an old friend and former
Senator and House Speaker, Senator Al Lawson.
Senator, you are recognized.

Thank you for being here, sir.

SENATOR LAWSON: Thank you very much,

Mr. Chairman Weatherford and Chairman Gaetz.
To members 1 would like to say good afternoon.

It is a real privilege for me to appear
before this committee today, especially having
gone through reapportionment twice in the last
28 years, and it Is very encouraging to see
many of you that I know on this committee,
because 1 have had the opportunity to work with

you.
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And one of the things I would like to say
before 1 get started is that 1 know that there
IS going to be numerous hearings. 1 don"t want
any of the public to really think that just
because we have a hearing here, that there are
not other hearings, because there will be many
committee meetings for the opportunity for you
to have input.

And 1 know the last two times 1 have been
through reapportionment, it hasn"t been any
difference. 1 had an opportunity to go through
reapportionment with the Democratic majority,
had opportunity to go through reapportionment
with the Republican majority, and there haven"t
been any changes in those regards.

I want to thank you, Mr. Chairman, for
your time to listen to the citizens of Leon
County today. |1 know Firsthand tasks what you
all are faced with, and I know that you all are
going to make the right decision.

I had the privilege to serve during the
time where we had great strides in the
representation of racial and language
minorities in the State Legislature and

Congressional Districts.
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My hope i1s that the work that we started
with will continue. The way 1 read the
amendment, the new standards of intent gives
priority over -- give priority over to the
preservation -- does not give priority over to
the preservation of minority access districts.

Though the organization claims that this
does not exist, but from the way | interpret
the law, it does not give claims to those
access seats.

Let me give you a good example. Prior to
1982, there was no African-Americans or
Hispanics in Congress, none in the Senate, and
only five in the Legislature, but because we
took minority access districts into
consideration, after 1982, we had two
African-Americans that was elected to the
Senate and we had three African-American that
was elected to Congress.

So that become very critical, and I want
to make sure that as we address these issues,
that we preserve and do not have retrogression.

Although paragraph three says that the
standard is not listed in order of priority, it

is clear that several minority access seats are
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at risk, and 1 have said that these minority
access seats have been at risk for the last
three years, and especially the last year when
I served on reapportionment.

It 1s very important that you recognize
that and you identify that. My point today as
a citizen, I will just state is to use this
public hearing to tell you one simple message,
preserve minority districts in Leon County and
throughout the state of Florida.

When 1 got elected iIn 1982, they hadn®t
been an African-American elected since
Reconstruction, but because the Legislature in
its wisdom during reapportionment saw to make a
minority access seat, this was the first time
that an African-American had been elected since
Reconstruction.

We have come too far to see some
considered vague standards that does not come
to the right interpretation. We have worked
too hard and too long to allow this to really
happen.

As a citizen of this state 1 am begging
you not to stop the progress that has been made

for racial equality in this state. To not stop
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the good work that we have accomplished
together, Republicans and Democrats over the
last 30 years.

Please apply what these new standards may
say, | want it very clear, that the citizens of
this state, especially the minority citizens,
African-American and Hispanic, would like to
have preserved minority access seats.

I think it is very important for this
state because we are a very diverse state, and
we should have the representation of our
citizens.

Thank you very much and it is an honor for
me to appear before you today.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. Lawson. We appreciate your services
to the state and for you sharing the historical
perspective with us. Thank you very much. It
is good to see you, Sir.

Next up we have Ms. Deirdre Macnab.
Deirdre, 1 apologize, 1 didn"t tell you ahead
of time, but you are recognized to be our next
speaker, and following Ms. Macnab, 1 apologize
ifT 1 don"t say this right, but Juvais

Harrington from the NAACP.
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First up we have Ms. Deirdre Macnab with
the League of Women Voters. Thank you very
much for being here today.

MS. MACNAB: Thank you very much. Chair
Gaetz and Chair Weatherford, thank you for
having us here today, and esteemed members of
this Committee.

I am Deirdre Macnab, and 1 am the State
President of the League of Women Voters of
Florida.

There is an old Chinese saying, "The
journey of 1,000 miles begins with one step.™
The League of Women Voters has a lot of
experience in the area of 1,000-mile journeys,
and one of them began almost 200 years ago when
we fought for the right for women to vote, and
Susan B. Anthony was one of my favorite heros,
criss-crossed America, not by automobile, but
by foot, by stage coach and she had to sit on
the stage usually with a Sheriff with his guns
drawn so that she could speak. Luckily we are
not in that situation today, nor do we have to
travel in this same mode.

However, 1 am here to talk today about a

different 1,000-mile journey. This one started
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a long time ago, also for the League of Women
Voters of Florida, almost 70 years ago when we
began, and that was back in 1939, when we did
our first study of government, which had two
findings.

One, an outdated Constitution, and two, a
malapportioned Legislature. Since those days
we have worked on the subject of redistricting
and the need for fair standards and we have
continued that fight to today.

With a vote in November, we have come very
close to the end of that journey. The League
of Women Voters has fought for this effort when
the Democrats were in charge in Tallahassee,
and we have fought for that effort with the
Republicans today in charge of Tallahassee.
This is a non partisan issue. It is also not
an anti incumbent issue.

The League of Women Voters opposed term
limits when 1t was proposed as an amendment.

We believe simply in fairness and fair rules.
After four Petition drives over these last many
years and with our members across the state of
Florida asking other Floridians to sign their

Petition, some might say, accosting, | have two

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1122



=

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

45

friends who are in their 80s who would stop
people in their nursing home elevator to sign
the petitions.

We were, along with our partner groups,
able to succeed in collecting 1,600,000
petitions and in persuading 63 percent of
Florida®s voters in a conservative election
year to support and ask the Legislature to
follow these simple and straightforward rules.

Today, on behalf of our thousands of
members across the state of Florida who have
collected signatures, who have spoken to
groups, who have written to newspapers and
explained the importance of these changes to
their neighbors, we ask you to do the
following.

Number one, stop using taxpayer dollars to
fight the amendments. Imagine your family®s
horror if you came home and told them that you
were paying attorneys to both fight and defend
the same case. That is what you are doing for
your constituents.

We the voters are paying to both prosecute
and to defend that which 63 percent of

Floridians have instructed you to follow.
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Please drop these lawsuits and follow the will
of the voters.

Number two, move the timeline up. We
agree completely with your attorney who
encouraged you to start drawing the maps
immediately, and that to do otherwise is likely
to result in chaos and confusion In the 2012
election.

The current timeline makes it very likely
that there will be little or no time for
candidates to know what districts they are 1iIn
before the filing deadline to be able to
organize and prepare their campaigns, and
importantly, to communicate and inform voters
before they make their choices.

Florida deserves elections where the
people have time to understand their choices.
This timeline benefits only incumbents and is
likely to diminish competitive election and
certainly the time that our voters need to
inform themselves about their choices.

The current plan is to vote on final maps
at the end of session next year. Why not draw
them earlier, debate and discuss them in

committee meetings in the fall, and vote on
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them in the fTirst week of session in early
January of 2012.

This would add two months for court and
Justice Department reviews, and will create a
real chance for voters and prospective
candidates to know the districts before
qualifying.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Ms. Macnab.

MS. MACNAB: Yes.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: We are over five
minutes. 1 certainly want to allow you to
finish, but 1If you could, just try to wrap it
up as much as you can for us so we can get to
all of the other speakers.

MS. MACNAB: Thank you. It would be my
pressure.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Yes, ma"am, thank
you .

MS. MACNAB: Finally, we ask you to lift
the gag order placed on the Legislators during
these redistricting hearings. The people of
Florida deserve a chance to hear what is on
your mind. Let"s make these hearings
substantive and productive.

We urge you to get your staff to work now
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drawing the district maps so that we can have a
substantive conversation and discussion as you
follow the rules that the people of Florida
voted on in November by 63 percent. Let"s get
to work. Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Ms. Macnab, thank you for being here and
for participating. We appreciate it. Next up
we have Juvais Harrington and after
Mr. Harrington we have a Bishop Holifield will
be next.

Mr. Harrington is with the NAACP. Thank
you very much for being here, sir, you are
recognized.

MR. HARRINGTON: Thank you, and that is
Juvais, but when in doubt phonetics always
works, oftentimes people put letters in there
that aren®t there, so thank you very much.

The comments from the NAACP here iIn Leon
County, the Tallahassee branch and as we will
be speaking throughout the state, first of all,
I want to echo what AARP said that this forum
remains and this process remailns transparent,
that everyone knows what is going on, when It

IS going on, and when It happens.
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Also, that the -- we keep in mind that
63 percent of the voters voted on this. So
that the intent of the voters come forth and we
have and we process and we do what the voters
said.

It is almost like, you know, when you are
growing up someone takes, they don"t get picked
to play on a team, it is like, 1 am going to
take my ball and go home.

Well, the Legislature, you cannot take
your ball and go home. The people have spoken
and they say this is what we want. Also, we
want to look at the anti gerrymandering
portions that we want to make sure that
everyone is included, that everyone is fairly
represented and that everyone has a right.

NAACP is non partisan, so we speak not on
behalf of Democrats nor Republicans, we are
policy centric, so we speak to the issues, not
to the parties.

We want to make sure that fairness -- that
we know that and we realize that fairness
should be, it is not party centric, but it
should be to both parties, Republican,

Democrat, Independent, what-have-you, and that
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we move forward in the spirit of fairness which
means that some of you may lose your seats, but
iT you are being fair, if you are serving the
public, does i1t matter if you lose your seats
or not?

Nearly 30 years ago one of the statesman
from Florida told me that the first job of an
elected official i1s to get reelected. That is
your very Tirst job.

Well, let flip that script. Let the first
Jjob be to serve your constituents, let that be
the first job, to serve the people of Florida,
to make sure that they get what they voted for.

And finally 1 would like to say that,
again, stop using the taxpayers money to fight.
It doesn™t make sense. It doesn"t make sense.
For those of you who say that you have, you
weren®t chosen and you want to take your ball
and go home with 1t, well, don"t go home, just
come back, you get to play next time, but this
time the people have spoken.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you,

Mr. Harrington. We appreciate those comments,

Bishop Holifield is next, followed up by
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Mimi Jones. Mr. Holifield 1s with Leon County
Democratic Black Caucus. Thank you very much
for being here, sir.

MR. HOLIFIELD: Thank you for the
opportunity. My name is Bishop Holifield. 1
am appearing before you as the President of the
Leon County Democratic Black Caucus.

I would like for my fellow members to
stand, please, and be recognized. The Florida
Legislature -- thank you.

The Florida Legislature has the duty of
creating legislative and congressional
districts that, A, at the very least, preserve
current levels of black membership in the
Florida Legislature and the United States House
of Representatives.

B, the Legislature also has the duty to
end and correct the current situation in the
State of Florida that sees the votes of those
living in densely populated urban areas diluted
in a fashion that confirms, that confers an
unfair and disproportionate number of districts
on more sparsely populated suburban and rural
areas.

The Legislature should utilize available
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scientifically measurable numbers to achieve
these laudable goals. The articulated outcomes
should be made required deliverables on the
part of anyone the Legislature contracts with
to draw its redistricting maps.

Finally, the Florida Legislature should
conduct meaningful public hearings after its
redistricting maps are drawn. That would allow
for a substantive rather than an i1llusory
public comment. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. Holifield. We appreciate that, sir.
Next up we have Ms. Mimi Jones, followed up by,
it is Rachel Sutz Pienta, 1 believe that is
right, but Ms. Rachel Sutz, but first we have
Ms. Jones. Thank you, Ms. Jones, for being
here, you are recognized.

MS. JONES: Hello, thank you. Thank you
to the Committee Chairs and to the Committee.

I speak to you as a private citizen who has
been involved in the political process for, |
think it started in middle school, okay.

I have done everything from serve, even
though 1 speak for myself, as President of the

League of Women Voters in Florida, all of the
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way down to carrying trash and being a
petitioner. |1 have done i1t and I have enjoyed
it, and 1 still have faith in the process.

I would like to give you just a little bit
of my history. 1In 1982, 1 was working at the
State level. 1 was involved iIn the Petition --
excuse me, iIn the reapportionment process.
That was the first year that Florida had come
into the computer age with redistricting.

We then as now suggested fair and
equitable standards that we take from our
studies of government. We joined other groups
around the state, including Peter Butzin, we
worked together long and hard, and we came to
no avail.

And 1 have to tell you that I was pretty
upset with the Democrats, and I don®t want to
be upset with the Republicans.

It is all a matter of who Is in charge,
but I will tell you what, 1 think the people
are in charge. Sixty-three percent of those
who voted, that is a good solid majority, and
they have told you they want it fair and they
want it square, and 1 hope that we can thank

you for it when we are through with the
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process. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Ms. Jones. Next up we have Ms. Rachel, 1
apologize if 1 am not saying this correctly,
Pienta, Ms. Rachel Sutz Pienta with the Wakulla
Democratic Executive Committee.

Ms. Pienta, thank you very much for being
here. She will be followed by Joe Conte. You
are recognized, thank you.

MS. PIENTA: Thank you, Representative
Weatherford. 1 am really here as a citizen of
Wakulla County today, full disclosure, yes, |
am a Democrat.

One of my -- one of my State Legislators I
see here today, Senator Montford, but I don™"t
see Representative Bermbry and Representative
Coley, and that is a shame.

As a citizen of Wakulla sometimes 1 feel a
little bit like a red-headed stepchild, because
Representative Coley and Representative
Bermbry®s districts meet in Wakulla. And on
the eastern side we are a part of a district
that goes all the way along the coast in
Wakulla, down to Cedar Key, and then up to the

Georgia border and it sort of curves and winds,
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sort of does this half circle thing around
Alachua County.

And so that is the east side, and then on
the west side my Representative goes all of the
way iIn the southern part of Leon County, like 1
really wonder if the people in Woodville and
Southwood know that Representative Coley is
actually their Representative and not Senator
Rehwinkel, 1 am sorry, Representative
Rehwinkel-Vasilinda, and then that district on
the west side goes all the way over into the
panhandle over towards Destin.

So my Representatives are really nice
people and they do their best, but it is a lot
of ground to cover, and we don®"t see them very
often in Wakulla. And 1 am a fairly engaged
citizen, so both Representatives, Republican
and Democrat to their credit, both take my
calls.

So I get to talk to them, but 1 know that
the constituents, the average person in Wakulla
does not see them very often, and Senator
Montford, bless his heart, does his best, but
he also has a pretty large district that covers

a lot of ground.
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So down in Wakulla we sit there on the
coast, a bedroom community for Leon County,
that doesn"t really have full representation,
and I have to give some kudos actually to my
Leon County Representative delegation, because
Alan Williams and Michelle Vasilinda actually
speak for Wakulla quite often, because they
know that so many citizens in Wakulla drive
north on Woodville Highway and Crawfordville
Highway every day to work in Leon County.

So they are working here and they are kind
of subject to things that happen here in the
state government. It is sort of like not being
Tfully represented though.

So again, as one of the red-headed
step-children living down in Wakulla county 1
would like to see some changes. 1 would like
to see my Representatives once in a while, and
again, it is not their fault. Those are
ridiculous districts, they cover way too much
ground.

So 1 would like to see something changed
with redistricting so that 1 can be fully
represented down in Wakulla county. Thank you

very much for your time today.
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CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Ms. Pienta, we appreciate those comments.
Next up we have Jo Conte, and followed by --
following Jo will be Joseph Schweitzer.

MS. CONTE: Just a couple of comments, |
am Jo Conte, I am from Tallahassee. 1 ask you
to follow the will of the people on this, show
us some maps and then we can talk seriously. |1
waive the remainder of my time.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much. Next up we have Mr. Joseph Schweitzer.
Mr. Schweitzer, thank you very much for being
here.

Following Mr. Schweitzer will be Walt
Dartland, and Joseph Schweitzer, it looks like
a student at Florida State University.

MR. SCHWEITZER: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very much
for being here, sir.

MR. SCHWEITZER: Thank you. 1 am just
here to really wave against a lot of the ways
this process has taken place. | speak on
behalf of many of the students of Florida State
University, and as the founder of The Student

Caucus of Florida to say that from, again, the
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Legislature®s opposition, through suits against
the Fair Districts Amendments, the lack of
really any visible map for a long time to come
to see what we are basing our future lines and
future districts off of.

A complicated process i1s already overly
complicated for constituents of everybody in
the room. In my age group redistricting is
going to have a similar effect as the Voter
Registration Bill did in this past legislative
session, and again and again we find that it
becomes more difficult to mobilize a
constituency, a constituency that takes much
longer to mobilize than many others do.

We have a shorter time frame and we don*"t
know what we are working with. So as
complicated as the districts are and as
vehemently as 1 might disagree with the way
that they might be drawn as well as, 1 am sure,
the majority of the people iIn this room, the
timeline that i1s being presented iIn this effort
IS going to cause a lot of struggle for many
who wish to organize on both sides of the
aisle. So thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
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much, Mr. Schweitzer. We appreciate your
comments, sir. Next up we have a Walt
Dartland.

Walt, thank you very much for being here,
sir, following Mr. Dartland we are going to
have Paul Harvill. You are recognized, sir.

MR. DARTLAND: Thank you so much, sir,
Walt Dartland. Just as a matter of disclosure,
I served on the Board of Common Cause, National
Board for about eight years, with such really
great people that 1 would hope you all had a
chance to meet like Archibald Cox, and with
John Gardner, a Republican who actually founded
Common Cause.

It was a great experience. | learned a
lot. 1 also served as Deputy Attorney General
for Bob Butterworth. So 1 am somewhat familiar
with the process that we all go through and
appreciate the opportunity to participate.

However, 1 want to first say this. 1 want
to —- 1 don"t want it cover the same stuff that
everybody else covered, and 1 just want to --
in the Public Service Commission hearings we
use the, I adopt, I adopt the other testimony,

and 1 certainly adopt the testimony of the
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League of Women Cities -- League of Women
Voters, 1 am sorry, and of Common Cause and
Peter Butzin, 1 think they are right on, and
there are a number of other people 1 think are
right on.

So 1 will just focus on a few things to
sort of bring, that I want to cover that wasn"t
covered so far.

One is that common, 1 chaired Florida
Common Cause for about eight years. At that
time we iInitiated our own petition, if you
remember, and we moved right along until, and
we had an independent commission, sort of
modeled after California, and at that point
what happened is the Supreme Court ruled that
there is no such thing as an independent
commission, and therefore, It was an
unconstitutional -- they were not going to
allow us to vote on that deal.

Now, that may have been correct.
California still has it, and I will say this,
that I follow the California situation closely
because Arnold Schwarzenegger offered to come
here and testify on behalf of our initial

Common Cause Petition. They did pass it.
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You have an independent commission and 1
read the L. A. Times, 1 have two children and
grandchildren in California, so 1 follow what
is going on, and what they have found is that
what they have done is that the Independent
Commission meeting, they are going to -- the L.
A. Times has opined that even if they do the
very best job of doing i1t, there is not going
to be that much change in this stuff, itself,
even though there are a lot of Democrats
control Legislature there.

Now, I got to tell you, whoever has this
lady as a Civics teacher, 1 think that is the
greatest thing ever. We need more civic
education and I want to put my -- my word 1In
here that civic education is really critical.

I want to also comment on the second
effort that we are doing now, and try to set it
a little differently. You know, Bobby Kennedy
one time said that our population is the most
entertained and less informed, least informed
population in the world, and that is probably
true.

And one of the reasons 1 want to emphasize

here on this thing is that having taught at the
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Law School in Miami and having taught at a
number of others, Florida International
University, the teaching process of the public
IS going to be difficult for you.

Here we have informed people, people
really engaged. How about the general public?
That 1s why I would have preferred that you had
a map put up, and a Tea Party person said, hey,
this is simple, anybody can do it, get on the
web .

Like -- why couldn®t the Legislature have
come up with a map that we could then look at
and see how i1t affects Wakulla County and
Lafayette County and then have them testify and
see what is going on.

The scary thing is that we may not get a
second chance i1f this thing prolongs itself and
we may not get a chance to comment on what is
eventually done.

The procedures as you all know who have
been iIn government, and 1 think Senator
Montford has, most of you had, know that what
we did In the Attorney General®s Office or the
Department of Motor Vehicles or if you are

preparing an ordinance, you First prepare the
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ordinance and you put it out for public
comment, I mean, that is the way It works.

You have the comments, they come in, you
take a look at the comments, you decide what is
reasonable, not reasonable, you adjust it and
then you vote on what you think is now the
appropriate, you know, legislation that should
go forward.

That is not going to happen here without a
second round of hearings. It Is not going to
happen with a map that can be distributed to
all of the dealers and wheelers and dealers and
shakers in all of these communities are going
to look at that district and have a chance to
do an input on it.

You know, when I -- when 1 look at what we
are trying to accomplish here, I don"t doubt
and I have made this clear, we are going to end
up in the courts. We always have. We always
will, and the sooner we get the process
resolved and the Legislature has a map and the
public is informed, I think at that time the
courts are going to deal with it and it will be
an extensive process this time, because it

involves Federal law, and you are talking about
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the Department of Justice and i1t involves our
Constitutional Amendment, which is, by the way,
just so you will know, this isn"t just a couple
of people sat down to come up with these
standards.

This was a very deliberate process in
which we have two former Chief Justices
participate, we had learned counsel, we had
academics come in and we worried and worked on
these standards for months and months and
months to try to come up with something that
would help guide this Legislature.

So we hope you will follow through on
this, you will do your best. Just remember
this, it won"t be long, you will all be gone.
All of your friends will be gone and what you
accomplish here will probably last. So it is
your heritage to make this happen. Thank you
SO much.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. Dartland, we appreciate that, sir.
Next up we have Mr. Paul Harvill and following
Mr. Harvill we have Joseph Sierra.

Mr. Harvill, you are recognized, sir.

MR. HARVILL: Thank you, Senator Margolis,
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a long time ago. 1 was born and bred here in
Florida, Tampa and Tallahassee. 1 was involved
intimately with the "81 and "82 redistricting
battles, with H. Lee Moffit and Dempsey Barron
as the respective Chairs.

In fact, Dempsey about punched me out, he
got so mad with me over the reapportionment
battles.

Now, for the real brief important
comments. Today and for essentially all of our
states and our nation®s history we have had a
cancer on the body politic.

Amendments V and VI are radiation and
chemotherapy. The cancer will hopefully go
into remission, yet cancer is always lurking in
the body politic.

Another cancer is legalized extortion,
legalized bribery in this legislative process.
Remember that you are sworn to both uphold and
obey the Florida and United States
Constitutions.

As the old ad campaign said, come to
Florida, the rules are different here. The
rules here now are Amendments V, VI and all of

the other constitutional law, statutory law and
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case law.

One suggestion from "81/"82, was Lee
Moffit came up with a very interesting idea,
and that would be to nest three House Districts
within one Senate District.

I think that was brilliant and I hope this
Legislature will adopt that concept, too. Last
thing, any questions? Any comments?

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. Harvill, we appreciate those
comments, sir. Next up we have Mr. Joseph
Sierra, followed by Linda Edson and after
Ms. Edson goes we will probably have a five
minute recess for members to use the restroom
and stretch for a moment, but it will only be
for five minutes and we will get going again.

But before that, Mr. Joseph Sierra, you
are recognized, sir, unless you are not here.
You are not recognized. Okay, he is not here
so we are going to move forward to Ms. Linda
Edson.

Ms. Edson has asked not to speak at this
time, okay, so what we will do is we will take
a five minute recess, members, and we will be

back here in five minutes. Please do not go
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far. Thank you very much.

(Brief recess taken.)

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: If we could get
everyone to grab their seats, we are going to
get started again. Please grab your seats.

(Brief pause.)

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: If we could get
everyone to grab their seats, please, we are
going to start, please grab your seats.

(Brief pause.)

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Members, please
grab your seats. We want to get started.
Representative Rehwinkel Vasilinda, if you
could please grab your seat. Representative
Williams, if you could please grab your seat,
Senator Smith, if we could get you to grab your
seat, sir.

IT you could please grab your seats, thank
you, please. Representative Baxley, if you
could grab your seat, please, sir.

Okay, ladies and gentlemen, thank you for
allowing us to take that break real quickly.
There was a Joseph Sierra who we missed earlier
and 1f Mr. Sierra is here 1 would like to give

you an opportunity to speak.

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1145



[EEY

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

68

You were not here when we called your name
before. If you are here, please raise your
hand, we will have you come first, Mr. Sierra,
I do not believe you are here.

Okay, moving on, we are going to go to
Mr. Doug Croley, Mr. Croley is with the Gadsden
County, he is a Gadsden County Commissioner.

Mr. Croley, thank you very much for being
here, sir. You are recognized for your
comments.

MR. CROLEY: Thank you. 1 do appreciate
the opportunity to appear here and many of you
I do know and 1 thank you for your service.

And let me start by -- I have some
handouts here for the Chair, and if 1 may,

Mr. Chair, present this to you, 1 would
appreciate it.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you, sir.

MR. CROLEY: Mr. Chair, as a County
Commissioner for a large segment of northeast
Gadsden County, 1 appear before this Honorable
Committee to request your most sincere and
serious consideration of the Havana area within
the Florida House of Representatives District

serving northern Leon County, that this be
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This request for realignment is based upon
the serious need to better join together in a
traditional manner communities of common
interest and to do so in compliance with State
and Federal law.

To this were the end, please allow me to
reference the following key points in support
of this redistricting request.

One, because of its geographical location,
northeast Gadsden County is closely aligned
with northern Leon County, as evidenced by a
shared county line on the eastern side and with
all east, west connector roads tying together
both counties.

Two, most of the business iInterest,
employment, higher education, retail consumer
shopping, social, medical, transportation,
recreational and cultural needs and
requirements of northeast Gadsden County are
closely tied to northern Leon County.

And third, northeast Gadsden County has
transitioned into a suburb of northern Leon
County with most families having a close

day-to-day presence within the Tallahassee area
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north of west Tennessee Street, and north of
east Mahan Drive.

The attached Florida Department of
Transportation county map has been highlighted
in yellow to indicate northeast Gadsden County
in a manner that lends both simplicity and
reasonableness to this specific redistricting
request, and a description of the boundaries
are set forth in the attachment two.

Now, having discussed this matter with
numerous citizens, | am confident that this
proposal will be well received if implemented.
I have also touched upon this subject with each
of our present State Representatives, both
Representative Williams and Representative
Vasilinda, who are now serving Gadsden County
as well as Representative Coley, on the west
side, and I believe that each of them fully
appreciate the rationale that underlies this
proposal.

Now, 1 want to thank this committee for
its time and its attentiveness, and should any
member now have any questions | would be happy
to respond, otherwise I will be available to

your staff to provide any information needed.
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And 1 thank you very much for the
opportunity, Mr. Chairs, Chairs, to present
this information to you. And 1 would like, if
I may, provide a copy to Representative
Vasilinda. |1 missed her earlier.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Yes, please do so,
and thank you for being here today and for your
comments and for your public service to Gadsden
County and our state.

MR. CROLEY: Yes, thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you. We also
have next up Ms. Betsy Barfield with the
Jefferson County Commission. Commissioner
Barfield, thank you very much for being here
and followed after Ms. Barfield will be Susan
Watson.

COMMISSIONER BARFIELD: I did not bring
enough copies for everybody.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: We will get copies
made, Ms. Barfield, thank you very much. You
are recognized to speak.

COMMISSIONER BARFIELD: Thank you very
much. 1 am honored to come before you today
and speak out for common sense and the

constitutional principle of one person and one
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vote. 1 am Betsy Barfield, Commissioner for
District 1V in Jefferson County.

Jefferson County is your neighbor to
Tallahassee, Leon County to the east. 1 come
before you to speak about two topics on
redistricting.

First, the unbalanced aspect of including
prisoners in the drawing of the district lines.
And second, the gerrymandering of Congressional
Districts Il and IV.

I have given you some statistics for the
Jefferson County voting districts, and I am
sorry 1 don"t have more for everybody else.

I am asking that you do not include in the
prison populations the drawing of the
districts. The reason for redistricting is to
make sure that everyone i1s properly
represented, and normally the voter numbers
somewhat track with the district population,
except when the prison population is included
in the counts.

Here are some facts. Prisoners are
convicted felons and they cannot vote. They
should not have district representation.

Prisoners are temporarily housed in Jefferson
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County and are not residents of the surrounding
community and they should not be placed on an
equal footing of law abiding citizens.

Including the prison population in the
drawing of the districts drastically affects
small counties like Jefferson which I am going
to use as my example today.

Our population base is 14,000 people plus.
Jefferson County is split in to five single
member districts.

Each commission district should represent
approximately 2,100 voters, a very manageable
size. |If all i1s even on the dais in Jefferson
County, then each Commissioner should represent
20 percent of the population and the voters,
not so in District 111, because the prison
population is included in the drawing of that
district.

That Commissioner represents only
14 percent of the voters. Therefore, he iIs a
super voter on the Commission. There are two
Commissioners that represent 51 percent of the
voting population in Jefferson County.

So when super Commissioner votes, his vote

iIs weighted and the voters in that district
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have more political clout than the other voters
in the county.

People, this is wrong. The practice of
including prisons in local districting plans
lead to serious distortion of political power
in county and state governments. How fair 1is
this to the people to whom we all represent and
answer to?

I ask you, please, do not include the
prison populations while drawing the lines for
the district in the state of Florida.

Next, I am not quite finished. Next,
Congressional District 1l and 1V. 1t is
182 miles from Tallahassee to Jacksonville
Beach.

In this corridor there is a swath cut out
of the middle of north Florida that is
gerrymandered for Congressional District 1V.

IT you take a look at the district map for this
example you might wonder what do rural
communities in this swath have in common with
Jacksonville? None. 1 ask that you take a
hard look at correcting the representation of
these congressional districts.

I respectfully submit these comments to
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you. Thank you. 1 am Betsy Barfield,
Commissioner, District IV.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Commissioner, thank
you very much for your comments and for your
public service. We appreciate you being here.
Next up we have Ms. Susan Watson followed by
Bradley Maxwell.

Ms. Watson, you are recognized. Thank you
very much for being here.

MS. WATSON: Thank you very much.

Chairman Gaetz, Chair Weatherford and Committee
members, my name is Susan Watson. 1 am the
Regional Director of the American Civil
Liberties Union.

This process and these hearings are very
troubling. The Legislature has invited the
public to comment, but you don"t give us
anything to comment on. Where are the maps?
This isn"t a conversation.

You are not saying anything and you are
not giving us anything to talk about. 1 would
love to meet and talk to some of the people
running to represent me, but you have to draw
the districts to let me know who they are.

Make a map now. Present it to the public
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now and start a meaningful conversation.
Otherwise, you are just wasting everybody®s
time. We don®t want fake hearings and
meaningless talk. We want fair, non partisan
districts.

The people of Florida overwhelmingly voted
to add Amendments V and VI to our Constitution.
Don"t make a mockery of our vote and don*t make
a mockery of democracy. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you,

Ms. Watson. Next up we have Mr. Bradley
Maxwell. Followed by Mr. Maxwell we will have
Nathalie Shortal or Shortal. Mr. Maxwell, you
are recognized, sir.

MR. MAXWELL: Thank you, Representative
Weatherford. My name is Bradley Maxwell. 1 am
a local business owner here in Tallahassee and
I want to thank all of you all for taking your
time to be here and to hear from the citizens,
and the main thing 1 wanted to say is |
appreciate the process.

I appreciate the opportunity for us to --
to have some input on these districts. | have
been to the website and 1 feel bad for you

guys, because in a lot of ways you are in a no
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win situation.

IT you would -- 1If you would come in with
maps drawn then we would be hearing from all of
the naysayers that, you know, you met in a back
room, smoke filled room and drew the maps
yourself and now you are just wanting us to
rubber stamp them.

So | appreciate the process, | appreciate
the website and the opportunity for us to have
input and thank you all for being here.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. Maxwell. We appreciate that, sir.
Next up we have Ms. Nathalie Shortal, 1 hope 1
am saying that right, Ms. Nathalie. She is not
speaking? Okay, well, thank you.

Thank you very much for being here. We
have Matthew Isbell. Did 1 say that right,
Isbell? Okay, thank you very much for being
here, Mr. Isbell, and after that we have got
Mr. Bob Fulford. Matthew is a student at FSU.

Thank you for being here, sir, you are
recognized.

MR. FULFORD: 1 have got to give you
credit, you are one of the few people that ever

get my last name right.
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I do want to thank you for holding these
hearings. But the first thing I do want to
comment is | do feel like we should have a map
by now.

I understand that the Constitution does
say that a map cannot be voted on before 2012,
but I do feel like there is no real reason that
we can"t see a proposed map, an idea.

Bigger states like California and Texas
already have maps coming out and | do suggest
this one thing.

I understand that the Constitution says
that we can®"t vote, you guys can"t vote on a
map, then 1 highly recommend that we put you
guys who can do this as the Legislature, put it
on the ballot to become for the next ten years
from now redistricting, a map can be voted on a
year beforehand, because there is really no
reason to wait until the year of the elections
to have the vote.

The census came out a while ago. We have
the data, and maps can be done now. 1 don"t
understand that delay, but beside the point,
basically 1 just want to advocate -- excuse me,

I just want to advocate that fair districts be
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upheld as we passed 1It.

As many people have said, 63 percent of
us, of us voters supported fair districts which
say that parties, politicians, where they live
should have no effect on how the boundaries are
drawn.

Observe county and city boundaries and
just draw the lines as equal to population as
possible. Forty-eight out of the 67 counties
voted for fair districts.

Several of these counties, like Hendry,
Desoto, Sumter Counties, which always vote
Republican, voted for it, it is not a
Democratic, Republican issue. It Is a non
partisan issue.

Over 28 counties voted over 60 percent for
it. 1 am from Broward, Palm Beach, we voted
over 70 percent because our area is already,
our districts look like spiderwebs and so we
especially were looking to see some more fair
districts that are drawn compactly and
succinctly.

I live in a small town of Cooper City
which is actually divided into two

Congressional Districts for no reason at all.
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It has got like 40,000 people in it and my dad
moved across the street and we were In a new
district suddenly, and especially here for Leon
County and Tallahassee area, right now, as we
all know, District IV which goes all of the way
down to Jacksonville eats in, not just into
Leon County, but into Tallahassee, itself, and
I mean, beside the fact that rural Leon County
has nothing in common with Jacksonville,
Tallahassee especially doesn®t.

I have actually, when 1 was In a different
apartment complex a few years ago was in
District 1V and then 1 am back in District I1l.
I mean, if 1 move to a different apartment
complex because 1 am a student 1 shouldn®t be
changing districts like that. This iIsn"t a big
enough town to warrant it.

The same thing goes for our State Senate
districts. Right now 1 am In Senator
Montford®s district. 1 voted for you in the
general election, but 1 used to actually also
be in the Third District back when I was in --
when 1 was in the 1V as well, when I was living
a little further away outside iIn the county.

There is just no reason for that.
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Leon County should be especially compact.
District 1V also eats into part of Monticello
in Jefferson County and 1 know people have
talked about preserving compact minority
districts.

Monticello which is a majority black city
is divided between the second and fourth
district. |1 can"t figure out why. So there is
clearly some problems with the lines now, and I
am just hoping that as we move forward that we
adhere to fair districts which was passed
overwhelmingly, i1t was passed fairly and by all
means, please start looking at these maps now.

Have a vote at the very beginning of
January, because we don"t want to be dragged
into a long court battle. We don"t want to be
waiting and seeing for candidates to see what
district they are going to be in.

It should be done now, the people have
spoken, and you know what, even if this creates
more competitive elections, it is good for
everybody here.

IT you get put into a safe seat, you can
place and you can never run statewide. If any

of you guys end up In a more competitive
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district because of fair districts, hey, you
become a better candidate, you can run for
statewide office one day, you can become
Governor, you know, Senator, whatever.

So there is plenty of benefits for you
guys and 1 just hope you will take that into
consideration. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. Isbell, we appreciate that. Mr. Bob
Fulford is up next, followed by Christian
Camara.

Mr. Fulford, you are recognized, thanks

from being here.

MR. FULFORD: 1 am Bob Fulford, 1 live
here in Tallahassee, always have. 1 am a
private citizen. | saw in the paper I guess

yesterday my friend Alan Williams, had written
a letter and Senator Gaetz had written
something, you can be my friend, too, I just
don"t know you, even though you represent me, 1
don*t know you.

Anyway, the substance of those two things
in the paper was that this meeting was going to
be here, everybody ought to come and it was

going to be open and transparent. And has been
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alluded earlier, I had a notion that open and
transparent, | was going to ask Senator
Thrasher something, because he is an old pal of
mine, and he would be able to answer me.

But, 1 opened up my e-mail last night and
I belong to a whole bunch of rebel rouser
groups like League of Women Voters and Common
Cause and i1t wasn"t them, but somebody said
that your leadership, that is to say the
President and the Speaker, had put a gag order
on you, and so what I want to know, is that
true.

Is there -- are you not going to be able
to talk to us? You can"t even answer that,
okay, 1 got it, okay, I got it.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Why don®t you
finish your statement and we will answer that
question for you, how about that.

MR. FULFORD: Okay, one other thing. 1
used to work in this building. 1 used to come
here every day up on the third floor. 1 was
here when they put the top two floors on. That
was interesting.

Today is the first time I have been here

in over ten years, and the reason I was here
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ten years ago was for this same thing and we
did the same thing and we did 1t the same way.

And 1T you cross a mule and a jackass, a
horse and a jackass, you get a mule, and we
crossed mules -- I mean, horses and jackasses,
I will get it right here in a minute, but if
you want to see the mule, see what came out of
the last session like this.

Look at these ridiculous districts. No
matter what the content is, just to look at
them, they are not right. |If It Is not square
or a circle or maybe an oblong or an oval, but
these things look like the original gerrymander
which was some sort of a dragon.

I hope, 1 hope we can do better. 1 rather
doubt we can, but we will see. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. Fulford and thank you for asking a
very direct question. |1 am going to give you a
very direct answer.

The answer is that there is no gag order,
and this is a listening tour and our thought 1is
that we are going to spend the next three
months hearing from the citizens of Florida

just like you talking about what districts look
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like today and how we can make them better.

And that i1s why we are here and that is
why we are giving the public an opportunity to
participate.

There certainly is no gag order, but we
are here to listen first and 1T there is time
afterwards, then to speak. 1 think that
everyone could agree that politicians spend
lots of time talking and very little time
listening and we are going to change that in
this process and we are going to listen more
than we talk.

So thank you very much for your comments,
sir, and we are going to move on to
Mr. Christian Camara, and after Christian we
are going to go to Ms. Sandra Mortham.

Christian, you are recognized, sir.

MR. CAMARA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, my
name is Christian Camara. 1 am a resident of
Tallahassee, Florida. And first of all, 1 want
to thank and commend all of you for the
opportunity that you have given the public to
give input on this very important issue.

I personally think the timeline that you

all adopted as prescribed by the Constitution
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iIs the right one because 1t gives opportunity
for the public to give input before and during
the redistricting process iIn an open manner,
you know, like these special hearings that we
are having now around the state and through the
legislative session.

From what 1 understand, the meetings that
you all are going to be conducting during the
legislative session will also be open for
public testimony. So I do want to commend you
for the ample opportunity you all are giving to
hear us before you go ahead and deliberate and
proceed with the process.

I do want to stress, however, the

importance in my opinion of ethnic

representation. 1 was born and raised in
Miami, Florida. 1 have been a resident of
Tallahassee now for six years, and In -- 1iIn

Miami 1 can honestly say that we have in our
State and Federal delegation, it Is a microcosm
of our diverse community, and I think that
although Tallahassee is not as complex in the
diversity that we see down iIn south Florida, it
iIs, nevertheless, a diverse community and I

would like to see that ethnic representation be
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So I will be brief with my comments, so I
want to thank you all for listening to us.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. Camara. We appreciate your comments,
sir. Next up we have Ms. Sandra Mortham. She
is here to watch the process.

All right, thank you very much,

Ms. Mortham. After Ms. Mortham we have

Mr. Derron Bennett. Mr. Bennett. Sorry I
didn®t give you more lead time there, sir, but
we will give you time to come up, and after
Mr. Bennett we are going to have Darnell
Lumpkin will be next.

Mr. Bennett, thank you very much for being
here, sir. You are recognized to address the
Committee.

MR. BENNETT: Okay. My question is mainly
based on the technical aspects of the software
being used. 1 have seen many errors in it
already. With the correctional maps they are
meant to be -- there is a goal of a zero, a
zero deviation over each map, but the actual,

the number that you all have as the mean for
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each district iIs wrong.

It is one off. So when you get down to,
iT you draw the maps like they are currently
drawn from the northwest corner of the state
down to the southeast corner, you will get down
to your last district, you will have 21 extra
individuals.

Well, 1T you correct the mean you will be
left with six extra individuals. So there is a
problem in the actual numbers iIn the software.

Also questions are, if other states are
using the My Districting Software, they
provided a, then called an AMI file, which is
so that you can put 1t on the Amazon web server
which i1s actually listed on the server
software.

The question is, will the State of Florida
actually provide that, because by providing
that it will actually save the state money,
because the servers, the server will not need
to be used at the same level as if they provide
It so private industries can actually build
their districts by themselves. What else?

There is also errors in the software where

ifT you attempt to lock a district that splits a
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something else elsewhere, where you cut into a
higher level, say you locked, you attempt to
lock a block but you build something with a
voting district later or destroy the previous
block lock and build the voting district over
it.

And 1 had also had a question. Will the
State provide a deviant, it is called, it is a
type of linux, which My District Builder
suggests it is called linux which the State
should be providing an image file of the, My
District Builder with the appropriate data and
datasets so that the private industry could
just download a file which would probably be
about a gigabyte and no longer have to use
their server. That is all.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: That is all? Well,
Mr. Bennett, I will tell you, your tech
suaveness Is much above my pay grade and
probably most of the people on this Committee,
but you raise very interesting points, and in
fact, if you could stick around for a few
minutes we have got some staff that is here, we

have Mr. Alex Kelley who is one of our, is my
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Staff Director and can probably answer some of
those questions.

And members of the Committee, what we will
probably do, is once we answer his questions,
iT he feels like they are, if they suffice, we
may at least explain to everybody what the
answers are to those, because I frankly don"t
have that, and, but I do think you bring up
good points.

We certainly want to have comments on our
software. We appreciate you very much for
being here, sir, so thank you for your
comments. Yes?

Next up we have Mr. Darnell Lumpkin.
Okay, thank you very much for being here,

Mr. Lumpkin. He is going to pass that up.
Next we have Mr. David Mock, 1 believe,
M-o-c-k.

Mr. Mock? Okay, we will keep moving
forward. Next after Mr. Mock we had Ms. Teri
Cariota, C-a-r-i-o-t-a. Ms. Teri, great, thank
you very much for being here. After Ms. Teri
we will have Adam Anthony Biblo, 1 believe is
how you say it, but Ms. Cariota, 1 hope 1 am

saying that right, you are recognized.
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MS. CARIOTA: It is close. Good
afternoon, yes, it is Teri Cariota. Some of
you may recognize me, having seen me walking
around the halls during session.

For those of you who don®t know me, 1 wear
several volunteer hats in Leon County. |1 am a
resident of Leon County, originally from Miami,
I am a retired law enforcement officer, but I
moved back here five years ago, and in fact,
retired on March 4th, 2006, and on March 5th of
2006, I was here working in Tallahassee, not
because 1 enjoy the politics but 1 enjoy the
public service.

In an interest of open disclosure as my
predecessor from Wakulla County did, 1, too,
Jjust so you are aware, I am a Democrat, and 1
am in fact the Chair of the Leon County
Democratic Party.

However, 1 am not here on behalf of any
organization. 1 am here as an individual
citizen, as a resident and registered voter of
Leon County, and 1 am speaking from the heart
when 1 tell you that I consider myself a poster
child for unfair districts.

I live in Piney Z here in Tallahassee and
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Senator Garcia can tell you, 1 see him in the
back of the room, if any of you have ever -- if
you don"t know where Piney Z is, if you have
ever been to his house for any events, that is,
that is Piney Z and his -- and 1 don"t mean to
embarrass you, Senator, but here is why I
mention that.

When I moved here 1 didn*t realize I was
moving into that one tiny sliver of Tallahassee
and Leon County that is not represented by
people, not from Tallahassee, not from Leon
County, not from anywhere even close to
Tallahassee or Leon County.

And no disrespect intended to Senator
Dean, in fact, 1 appreciate the fact that you
actually do show up for delegation hearings
here in Tallahassee.

I know it is a long drive for you all the
way from Citrus County. My Senator lives in
Citrus County. Regardless of whether you are a
Democrat or Republican or you know, whatever,
that Is just wrong.

When you look at the current maps, | know
we don"t have the projected maps, but when you

look at the current maps, you will see, 1 call
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it not that sore thumb that sticks out, but
that sore pinkie that sticks out.

And 1 do have respect for you, sir,
because, like 1 said, I, too, am a retired law
enforcement officer. And then my Congressman
lives all the way over in Jacksonville, and
that would be Linda Crenshaw.

I think the last time | ever saw
Congressman Crenshaw in Tallahassee or Leon
County is when he was in the Legislature
himself here many years ago, | believe.

It would be nice to see my elected
officials, the people who I can vote for a
little more frequently. Senator Montford can
even tell you, 1, while I was not a volunteer
on his campaign, | was a volunteer for his
opponent for a man I couldn®t even vote for.

I can"t even vote for Senator Montford if
I wanted to, in the general election and I
apologize for that, but again, my Senator lives
all the way down in Citrus County, and while 1
have visited your county, 1 just think that is
a little too far away for my representation.

I wholeheartedly believe in a two party

system and as strange as this sounds, | think
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you all need to keep the politics out of
redistricting, keep the public service in
redistricting.

You all elected to serve all of the
public, not just the people who happen to be
the same registered party as yourselves. It is
not fair. Please do the right thing. Thank
you .

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you,

Ms. Cariota, and if you would, please let us
know next time the Senator is having a party,
because we never get invited. So if you could
let us give us a heads up.

Next up we have got Mr. Adam Anthony
Biblo, 1 believe is how you say it, and after
Mr. Biblo we have got Charles Parrish.

Mr. Biblo, thank you very much for being here,
sir, and you have the floor.

MR. BIBLO: Thank you, Chairman Gaetz, and
it is Biblo for the record, but very close,
very close.

I am going to make a few quick points,
many of them, what has already been said, so I
don"t want to belabor them.

My main point is when you go through the
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process and you slice up smaller jurisdictions,
and 1 mean smaller than Miami or St. Petersburg
or Jacksonville, that is populous and you slice
Tallahassee or Leon County into multiple
districts and we extend to, for example, Citrus
County as pointed out, our representation is
not what we -- we would expect.

And again, this is not in any way a
reflective of our current Senator who Is very
good and 1 get e-mail from, and it is not
saying that, but in general, urban area should
be served by, should be an urban district,
should be a compact district, shouldn®t be
divided.

When it is divided, whatever the intent
iIs, it gives the appearance that it is divided
for the wrong purpose. That is to dilute,
diminish the effect of the voters of the
political power of that urban area.

The same with a rural area. Why frustrate
the intent of the rural area by combining it
with slices or trenches of urban areas. So,
again, without trying to get into why the
districts have been set up that way, it gives

the iImpression that it Is not serving the
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public purpose.

So I ask you that as you go about
redistricting to make sure that the public
purpose iIs served.

When we study demographics one of the
things we look at, there is various measures,
indexes of similarity and dissimilarity, and
when you get two-thirds representation,
two-thirds one party an one-third the other,
but the population is closely split 50/50
throughout the state, it -- something doesn®t
seem right.

I am going to leave you with that point
and ask you to fix It since it is in your
hands.

Lastly, 1 am going to point out, | agree
with Ms. Macnab, Mr. Harrington, and many other
speakers, the State voted the last election and
there was a consensus, 1If not overwhelming
majority, that passed two new Constitutional
Amendments and 1 would ask you to follow that
respectfully.

I would ask you to, excuse me, to respect
that mandate, and 1 want to thank you for your

time and 1 want to wish you all of the best in
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this effort. All right.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, sir, we appreciate your kind words. Next
up we have Mr. Charles Parrish. Mr. Parrish,
thank you so much for being here.

Mr. Parrish is with the Jefferson County
branch of the NAACP. After Mr. Parrish we will
have Ms. Linda Williams. Mr. Parrish, you are
recognized, sir.

MR. PARRISH: Thank you both, gentlemen,
from the House and the Senate. My primary
purpose here before this hearing is to
emphasize the fact that the smaller counties in
this state really don®t have any representation
when you really boil it down to the way the
districts are drawn.

For example, Jefferson County, we don"t
really have any representation, and 1 say it in
this manner because if a person, the
Representative for one section of our county
really doesn"t need the few votes that the
county has iIn order to get elected.

Therefore, we don®t have any
representation because that person really is

not concerned about us. He doesn"t need us to
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get elected.

It seemed to me when we teach iIn our
public schools, our civic classes, we teach one
thing about Florida government and we do the
opposite.

It seemed to me that representation should
be based upon population, true enough, but the
way our Legislature is designed, we are two
Legislature, the population is not really
represented In the House of Representatives,
especially in the small counties of Florida,
whereby a county is cut into three sections.

We don"t really have representation.

You just got us as a figure on the book,
but we really don®t have representation, and 1
wish you would consider that when you start
redistricting the state.

As 1t was made my Commissioner from
Jefferson County made a comment about not
including the prison population in District
1.

In Jefferson County we have five
Commissioners who are elected by districts. |If
you take the population, the prisoner

population out of District 111, where would you
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put 1t?

IT that is the case, where are you going
to put all of the prisoners in the state of
Florida? Where are you going to put them?

So I am saying to you that you need to
look at the makeup of the whole state and give
the smaller counties better representation.

Now, when you legislate you mandate that
the 67 counties do this and thus and that, but
those small counties don"t have representation
to really fight for the welfare of that county,
because 1If we are split up the way we are in
Jefferson County, we don"t have any
representation. So | think that you will
consider that in your redistricting. Thank
you .

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. Parrish, for your comments, sir. We
next up have Ms. Linda Williams with the League
of Women Voters, followed by Mr. Don Curtis.

MS. WILLIAMS: I am just representing by
poor old family.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Okay.

MS. WILLIAMS: 1In a snaky district of

Leon. So it is a pleasure to be here and I am
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sorry I am not dressed better. Over 50 years
ago in high school civics, a nice old lady
named Ms. Blair brought up gerrymandering, and
I haven®t thought about it for a long time,
until, say, the last ten years.

So we, you know, we are happy for the City
of Mayport and Jacksonville when they get
Federal funds to do something, but it doesn"t
do a hang for us iIn Leon County or our morale.

I mean, 1 don"t know whether we are so
important they need us in Duval or we are such
bad people they don®"t want us iIn Leon, but
please, be fair, and before I die, let me vote
in Leon County, because 1 live here.

I pay taxes here, as do my neighbors at
Piney Z and our friend from Wakulla County,
give us some local representation, and I am
glad to meet my Senator.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much. Thank you very much, Ms. Williams. Very
peppy and to the point. Next up we have
Mr. Don Curtis, Mr. Curtis, old friend, thank
you for being here, sir, and after Mr. Curtis
we have got a Ms. Kathleen Wallmeyer, you will

be next. So Mr. Curtis, the floor is yours,
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MR. CURTIS: Well, thank you, and thank
you to all of you that are taking your time to
spend this summer. | am taking a little time
as well. We have been on the wild fires non
stop for weeks now, and as soon as | make my
comments 1 will have to leave. We have got a
13,000-acre wild fire knocking at our door step
above Lake City.

Having said that, again, 1 am Don Curtis
from Lake Bird, Florida, which is in Taylor
County, about 50 miles from here.

In this rural part of Florida we are a
conservative group of people, but you can™t
always tell 1t from the election choices that
we have had, and historically redistricting has
been used to accomplish many objectives,
including routing past problems and bringing
balance to the choices the government have when
selecting representation, and we applaud that.

However, 1 am going to make a few comments
focused on House District X, Congressional
District Il and Senate District 111. When I
was preparing these remarks I was reminded of

my grandmother making biscuits.

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

101

Page 1179



=

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

102

She would roll out the dough, she would
take a jar and cookie cut the biscuits, and
then she would take the scraps and put them
altogether and make the dog biscuit. That was
the throw away. You didn"t serve that at the
table.

And when you look at some of our
districts, for instance, in 2002, House
District X was gerrymandered in such a way that
the last time 1 collected it, it was 70 percent
one party, 20 percent another party and
10 percent of the miscellaneous.

In fact, that party that has had
70 percent has elected or reelected i1tself
without interruption since Reconstruction. So
for over 100 years.

The word disenfranchise comes to mind if
you are a conservative. That is wrong and we
just want hopefully this time to right a wrong
so that when you redraw House Districts in this
part of Florida we hope there can be balance so
that we want be the throw away House District
again.

And 1n 2002, though, a good start was made

to draw Congressional District Number Il with a
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bit more balance, and it took eight years, but
this past November, we were able to elect a
conservative of a different party to Congress
and that was the first time since
Reconstruction as well.

Change comes slow in the rural areas of
the Big Bend of Florida. Over 100 years
though, that is a little too slow.

Now, also in 2002, Senate District 1Il was
redrawn with a bit more balance. So we had a
choice and we could elect a conservative and
Senator Dean is my district, and | am okay with
you being from Citrus County. That is not a
problem.

And just to close, 1 just, you guys are
going to analyze umpteen scenarios, and we just
ask for balance in this rural part of Florida
just to not be the throw away, to give us
something that gives us meaning full
representation that changes what we have had
for 100 years. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. Curtis. We have got Ms. Kathleen
Wallmeyer up. Did she have to leave? Okay, 1

am sorry. Okay, well, thank you very much for
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being here earlier.

We have got Mr. Joe Cain. Joe Cain is
with the Democratic Executive Committee, and 1
think Mr. Cain, you have a presentation that we
are going to pull up on the screen, iIs that
right? Okay. Come on up.

Following Mr. Cain we are going to have
Ms. Laura Forster. Mr. Cain, you are
recognized, and I believe 1t i1s four or five
slides | think that you got with it.

MR. CAIN: Well, I just wanted to -- I am
kind of a newcomer to politics here, though I
helped the Obama with communication and my
background is science, not politics, and I have
only become involved with the Democratic
Executive Committee for the past year.

But there have been a lot of really good
points made and it seems to me that one thing
that should come out of this particular session
is following the idea that you all should go
ahead and make up something to shoot at. |1
mean, a saw-man to go for.

Now, for example, go back a couple of
slides i1f you could do that, and -- we can"t

get them bigger, okay, well, no problem.
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I think that the -- what everybody has
been saying here and most of you really know,
but haven®t -- 1t is really clear that there is
no -- not very much compactness and 1 am
thinking just to the technical, in a technical
way, draw a circle, that iIs pretty compact, but
for example, like Congressional District 111,
oh, come on, now, how in the world, why in the
world would you draw something like that? Go
back another -- the previous one.

Now, this is the one that was complained
about earlier, Congressional District IV, which
has a little finger right into Tallahassee, and
that there is no real reason for that either.

And go back one more, yes. Well, yes,
that one, that is fine. 1 think that -- well,
somehow it didn"t get all of i1t, but that is
all right, okay, well, okay, this is District
Il and that is sort of an absurdity, too, in
terms of the topography of it, because why iIn
the world -- look off to the left there,
Pensacola and you are splitting a county for no
reason at all as far as 1 can tell.

I mean, if you just slice that

mathematically down the left edge and added a
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couple of counties on the right, 1t would be a
lot more compact.

Then the last slide is the -- the same
thing happens iIn your State Senate Districts as
well as the Congressional Districts. 1 mean,
they don"t really make much sense. So what 1
am suggesting is, go ahead and give it a shot,
don*t wait until all of the rest of the
sessions and the input are here.

I think it is real clear from all of us
and you will get the same kind of input from
the other people, the rest of the people in the
state, that go give i1t a shot, make, put up the
strawman and let us -- let us have at it then.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, sir. Thank you very much for that and
also for your presentation. We have Ms. Laura
Forster. Ms. Forster? Thank you very much.
After Ms. Forster we have Ms. Cynthia
Henderson.

Ms. Forster, you are recognized and thank
you very much for being here today. Forster, I
am so sorry.

MS. FORSTER: Forster.
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CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: 1 know. It is hit
and miss with we up here, 1 got to tell you.

MS. FORSTER: Okay, my name is Laura
Forster for the record.

Thank you, gentlemen, for being here, and

ladies. | came here today originally to say
thank you for having this meeting. It was very
well advertised. 1 knew about it.

I also was getting e-mails today saying
that it wasn"t an open session here and you
couldn™t speak and all of that kind of stuff.
So 1 don"t know who is sending that out, but
that is not true, because from what I have seen
here you are listening well and I have a couple
of questions, a couple of other things 1 wanted
to say that | have seen here.

I have seen a lot of special interest
groups here, and I am not a Tea Party person,
per se, 1 am a registered Republican and 1 was
that up until the 2000 election, | was an
Independent and I felt that | needed to take
this country, what 1 saw was happening was
going way to the left.

And 1 don"t think our forefathers intended

that to ever happen and I really feel it is due
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to special interest groups and redistricting iIs
a very important part of the way we vote iIn
this country.

And 1 do see the funny lines and so forth
in all of the different places, but that is
based on population, and I really feel that you
guys have been hired by the public, you are our
Representatives, just like when 1 was a
teacher, 1 was expected to teach the children.

I didn"t like, the reason I quit teaching
is 1 did not like the special iInterest groups
that were telling me, the professional, how to
teach children.

I have hired you. The other people in
this room have hired you. If we don"t like
what you are doing, we will fire you. That is
how 1t works.

I expect you to have integrity, if you
don*t have integrity then 1 will fire you.

Now, the courts are also there to watch you as
well, and if you don"t have integrity, the
courts will step in because someone will sue,
that is why we have the right, 1 don"t like
lawyers, I am a doctor®s wife, 1 don"t like any

of you who are lawyers.
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I feel like I am -- but, you know, I am
having to learn that if I want the things to
happen in my country I have got to get
involved. So I am learning, so here today was
a very good learning. 1 thank you for that. 1
thank you.

I am learning from the people who have
gotten up and spoken. I have learned a lot of
things from you as well, but 1 just want to let
you know, these special interest groups, the
Florida League of Women Voters, the NAACP, I am
calling you out, the ACLU, you do not represent
me. You do not represent me, and we need to
get off this color business. |1 don"t see your
color here.

I don"t see your ethnicity. You are
Americans. We need to start acting like
Americans and stop this ethnicity thing. | was
raised In Miami since 1969, that is not my
country anymore. It is chaos down there
because there is no leadership.

We joke about it up here, the -- down
there in Miami. We left Miami because i1t was
chaos during the Illion crisis. That is not

America, that is not how we run our --

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1187



=

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

110

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Ms. Forster, |1
would ask you to keep the comments related to
redistricting.

MS. FORESTER: Yes, but the redistricting
area down there is going to have the same
problems, they are an olden district. They
don"t represent the rural districts. | don"t
know how you guys do that.

I can*t make -- I have no way of knowing,
nobody here knows how to do this. They have
been hired to do this. That is my point. You
guys have been hired to do this, be informed,
listen to the people, the people really want it
to be fair.

They do, 63 percent wanted it to be fair,
but we can®"t do it without integrity, and the
last thing 1 want to say, | am sorry | got off
on a tangent there.

Please think about God, think about God,
because this i1s a big task before you and you
cannot do i1t without his help. You really
can"t.

Our forefathers under the Fourth of July
presentation at my church, and 1 have read a

lot about George Washington, that is the man
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you need to read about. He did not make it
through that war.

He did not make it through coming up the
rules of redistricting and things like that
without God"s help, and that is all 1 have to
say. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you,

Ms. Forster, very much.

SENATOR GARCIA: Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: 1 am sorry, yes,
Senator Garcia, you are recognized.

SENATOR GARCIA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman
and 1 do appreciate your comments and I am glad
you are getting incorporated into a political
process, but I can"t go without making a
comment in reference to those that you said
about Miami-Dade County.

I live In Miami-Dade County, and I
represent Miami-Dade County and 1 am proud to
represent the diversity that exist in that
community.

Unfortunately, we spoke, we spoke -- let
me speak for a minute. Unfortunately, you may
have left, but 1 stayed there to fight and make

sure that we do the things right.
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We have had our issues in Dade County,
absolutely we have, like every part of this
state has had their issues, but to stand up
here and criticize that Miami-Dade County is a
different country, no.

Miami-Dade County is part of the United
States of America. Miami-Dade County is a lot
of --

REPRESENTATIVE WEATHERFORD: Thank you,
Senator.

SENATOR GARCIA: -- citizens that work

there, fight there and make sure that we do the

right thing. So I don"t appreciate, 1 am

sorry, Mr. Chairman. 1 am sorry, Mr. Chairman,

I don"t appreciate when those comments are made

about a community of hard working people who
came to this country to make sure that they
leave a better place for their families.

REPRESENTATIVE WEATHERFORD: Ma"am, you
are not recognized to speak. We have moved on.
No, he is not, he is not, he addressed the
body, and thank you very much, Senator, we
appreciate your comments.

SENATOR GARCIA: Thank you very much.

REPRESENTATIVE WEATHERFORD: Thank you
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very much. We are going to continue to move
forward iIn the process. We only have about 30
minutes left. We are going to hear from

Ms. Cynthia Henderson, Ms. Henderson, you are
recognized to address the committee --

A VOICE: She had to leave.

REPRESENTATIVE WEATHERFORD: -- okay, she
had to leave, okay, so we will move forward.
Next up we have Mr. Daryl Barowicz.

Mr. Barowicz. Thank you very much for being
here, sir. After Mr. Barowicz we are going to
have Dorothy Inman-Johnson, but Mr. Barowicz,
thank you, sir, you are recognized, and you
have the floor.

MR. BAROWICZ: 1 don"t know how to follow
that. My name is Daryl Barowicz, and 1 am a
resident of Tallahassee. | have been a
resident of the state of Florida for 40 years,
28 down in Pinellas County and the rest of it
up here iIn Tallahassee, and | am a retired
proud public servant in the state of Florida
for 38 years.

Just a few points. Some of them were
reiterated but 1 think they need to be

repeated. When your process of redistricting 1
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urge all of these hearings and based on fair
distribution of population, that these
districts are contiguous with each other, that
these districts do not focus on particular
parties.

They do not focus on particular party
Representatives or Senators, and above all,
after all of your public hearings and after all
of the money that is spent on the public
hearings, that you come back to the citizens of
the state of Florida with the outcome of these
hearings and show us the maps and show us how
they were based on, the comments that were
derived from these public hearings.

These meetings should take place after the
maps are drawn and brought back to the
citizenry so that they understand how they were
based and what they were based on. Thank you
for being here.

REPRESENTATIVE WEATHERFORD: Thank you
very much. Next up we have Ms. Dorothy
Inman-Johnson, followed by Ms. Inman-Johnson we
have Curtis Baynes. You are recognized, thank
you for being here.

MS_. INMAN-JOHNSON: Good afternoon. First
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of all 1 thought I would be speaking on
redistricting before a non-political,
non-partisan commission that was appointed in
accordance with the referendum items that we as
citizens voted for.

The purpose or intent of that referendum
and what the take away was for Florida citizens
was that we would have a body that did not have
a dog in the hunt on the outcome of this
redistricting process.

I don"t see how that can happen when
seated elected officials are overseeing the
drawing of these districts.

So making that point first, these points
cannot be emphasized often enough. There
should be no gerrymandering in this process.
People have spoken about that over and over
again since 1 have been sitting here.

There is no good reason why you have to
run a district line down an Interstate highway
to pick up some more people in order to elect
anybody to the Legislature.

Second, all of the districts should be
compact and contiguous so that the people that

those Representatives are being elected for
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know their constituents, know the areas they
are representing, and can put themselves there
often enough so that their citizens have real
input Into the process.

Third, do not divide urban communities.
Do not chop up and divide counties.
Representatives should represent people who
have interests and needs in common. There is
no one size fits all in the state of Florida.

I hope that at some point In this process
I will see that non-political, non-partisan
commission we thought we voted for, but if not,
I hope at least the body will abide by the
principles that ensure fair elections,
representative government, and a government
that the people can feel really represents
their interests. Thank you.

REPRESENTATIVE WEATHERFORD: Thank you
very much, Ms. Inman-Johnson. Next up we have
Mr. Curtis Baynes, followed by Alejandro
Posada.

Mr. Baynes, you are recognized, sir.

MR. BAYNES: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman
or Mr. Chairman and everybody. My name is

Curtis Baynes, 1323 East Tennessee Street in
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Tallahassee. 1 am here representing no one
other than a group of one. As anyone in
Tallahassee can tell you, | represent no one.

I, although 1 don"t have represent -- I am
representing anyone, I do echo some of the same
comments that you have heard here this evening
and the only visuals 1 have got for you are
these.

My State Representative®s office is
75 miles west of my house. My Congressman®s
office i1s 158 miles east of my house. 1 think
that while they may be nice people, they are
not representative of me and 1 would certainly
like to see compact districts. Well, more
compact districts anyway.

Based upon book closings at last election,
now, they may be a little bit different now, 1
would like to see no district in Florida with
more than 37 percent Republican, no more than
43 percent Democrat, and at least 20 percent
Non-Affiliated voters such as myself. That is
what the state registration roles show. |1
think that would be helpful in producing more
fair districts, thank you.

REPRESENTATIVE WEATHERFORD: Thank you
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very much, Mr. Baynes. Next up we have
Alejandro Posada, followed by Phillip Howard.

Mr. Posada, thank you very much for being
here, sir. You are a college student at FSU?

MR. POSADA: Yes, sir.

REPRESENTATIVE WEATHERFORD: Good to see
you .

MR. POSADA: First off I would just like
to thank the Committee for allowing me the
chance to speak.

I think one of the primary goals of this
whole process has to be transparency and I
think ya®ll have done a great job here today.

You mentioned earlier how a lot of times
we hear politicians talk, but rarely do we see
them listening to us, so | really appreciate
that.

I think something that needs to be of
primary concern is that we don®t rush anything
here because I know there have been a few
people that have come up and said we need to
get this taken care of now, immediately, we
need maps now, what-have-you.

But 1 think 1t is important that in the

interest of transparency that everyone®s views
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be allowed to be heard, and it seems like today
we have had a good bit of that going on, but 1
think that needs to continue until, you know, 1
feel that everyone has gotten a chance to voice
their opinion.

So essentially I would just like to urge
you not to rush this, to think it through, to
listen to all of your constituents and to keep
that in mind. Thank you.

REPRESENTATIVE WEATHERFORD: Thank you
very much, Mr. Posada, we appreciate your
comments. We have one last comment card from
Mr. Phillips Howard. Mr. Howard, you are
recognized, sir. It looks like you are also a
student at FSU. Thanks for being here.

MR. HOWARD: Thank you, thank you
Mr. Chairman. I will just keep brief, because
I know --

REPRESENTATIVE WEATHERFORD: If you could
speak into the microphone a little bit, too.

MR. HOWARD: Yes, I would just like to
also thank you for having such an open
procedure between the maps you put online. |
have had a lot of fun playing with them and

these meetings, it was very well advertised. |
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was able to hear about it with no problem.

One thing that 1 would just like for the
Committee to consider is to make sure more than
anything that districts are fair and balanced
as opposed to being nearly compact.

In this day and age I can take this little
device right here and contact my Congressman or
any other Representative regardless of where he
iIs. So iIf districts do have to be divided a
bit or certailn areas, It Is okay as long as it
is in the general interest of the people and
once again, just thank you for holding these
meetings and have a wonderful day.

REPRESENTATIVE WEATHERFORD: Thank you
very much. We appreciate those comments.

Members, that is the end of the list of
the comments of those who told us they wished
to speak. Is there anyone in the audience who
wishes to speak who has not had the
opportunity? Now would be a good time to raise
your hand and we would get to you. Anyone who
has not had the opportunity to speak?

Okay, with that we have actually an e-mail
someone who sent us during the meeting, and we

are going to try to do this at all of our

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1198



[EEY

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

121

meetings to give you the opportunity for some
public input. So many could not be here from
Franklin county.

A gentleman by the name of Ned Pooser and
Ned is from Sopchoppy, and he said, "First, 1
would like to thank the Senate President, Mike
Haridopolos and this Committee for allowing
public access to the redistricting project.

Second, I am from Franklin County, and as
a small rural county our issues differ from our
larger urban neighbors. We would like to be
included iIn the district of other rural
counties so that our voices are not smothered
by larger urban counties. 1 hope you will
consider this iIn your redistricting plans.
Thank you." Ned Pooser, who could not be here,
but asked that that would be on the record.

Okay, we had someone who had spoken
already but we do have a minute. He asked if
he could have one minute, and Mr. Harvill, we
will give you one minute, sir, but please make
it quick, yes, sir, thank you.

MR. HARVILL: Greetings, again, | just
want to say as Former Speaker Moffit-"s

brilliant idea to reiterate it. Three House
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Districts within one Senate District, that
would be beautiful. Thank you.

REPRESENTATIVE WEATHERFORD: Thank you
very much. Okay, members, that is the end of
the public testimony and kind of step one 1iIn
our process.

Before we close out 1 would like to ask
the members, is there any, any public comment,
any comment from members of the committee or
anything specific that anyone would like to
address or any questions from any members the
of the committee, now would be the time to do
that? Real quickly, yes, we have
Representative Cruz for a question.

REPRESENTATIVE CRUZ: Thank you, Chair
Weatherford, thank you very much. 1 just have
a quick question. 1 notice that we have
essentially an interpreter here for the deaf
and 1 appreciate that very much.

My question is relative to mostly I would
suspect the south Florida population, when
these hearings go down in the south Florida
area, perhaps in the Haitian communities or in
the heavy Hispanic communities, will there also

be interpreters for that?
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REPRESENTATIVE WEATHERFORD: I believe
that that is in the plan, Representative Cruz,
and we will do everything we can to make sure
and accommodate all of the ethnic and language
groups that are out there that would need to
have some interpretation necessary.

So the answer to that is yes, but we will
work to try to make sure that that happens at
all of the locations.

REPRESENTATIVE CRUZ: Thank you very much.

REPRESENTATIVE REED: Thank you,

Mr. Chair. 1 had someone to call and wanted to
know If they cannot e-mail or do anything with
computers, they want to send a handwritten
entry to the Committee. Who do they send it to
and 1s that a possibility?

REPRESENTATIVE WEATHERFORD: Just to
reiterate. Your question iIs, If someone wants
to send a handwritten note or a letter that is
typed but they don"t have the ability to
e-mail, where would they send i1t?

They would -- 1 will tell you what we will
do. We will get you an address, because 1
don"t have that in front of me, but we will get

you an actual mailing address and we will get
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an address for the Committee.

I think if you go on to our website, the
Redistricting Committee actually has an address
that you can mail to. That would be the
address, but we will make a public statement
about that tonight at the 6:00 hearing.

Next we have Representative Rehwinkle
Vasilinda for a question. Never mind, am |
missing anybody?

Okay, 1 think Senator Gaetz, you had a
comment. Mr. Co-Chairman, you are recognized.
SENATOR GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Mr. Chairman and thank you for the fair and
thoughtful way in which you conducted today"s
hearing. No matter what anyone®s point of view
might be, I don"t think anybody can leave here
today saying that they did not have the
opportunity to be heard and that is a credit to
you, Mr. Chairman, and I know it is the way we
will conduct our hearings in the upper 25
hearing locations across Florida.

I can tell you that I have filled a legal
pad with three pages of notes, very good
constructive suggestions and comments from

individuals who -- who brought concerns from

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

124

Page 1202



=

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

125

their local community and their neighborhood
about problems that need to rectified in this
redistricting process.

I wanted to just reilterate something that
we indicated in the opening, because there may
be folks who weren*t here for the opening, and
therefore, did not hear what our procedure is
going to be.

There was some people who asked the
question, well, why don"t we produce maps first
because the public won"t have an opportunity to
know about or comment on any maps that might be
drawn in, later iIn the process.

First of all, as the Chairman indicated,
the Speaker indicated, we believe that it is
probably better to listen first before we
commit ourselves to starting to draw maps so
that we will have the benefit of the kind of
advice and guidance that we have received today
from a number of people who have made some very
constructive suggestions about their own
neighborhoods.

Secondly, let me just reiterate, if I may,
Mr. Speaker, what we said at the beginning, and

there may be some folks who wanted to know why
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we didn"t have the answer here before we had
the question and they may not have been here
for the beginning of the hearing.

Let me repeat what we said and this iIs our
procedure. Our intent is to use the
recommendations made at 26 public hearings and
through our Internet sites, and |1 may say, we
are already getting suggestions, including
proposed maps on our Internet sites and they
are there for you to look at.

Our intent iIs to use the recommendations
made at hearings and through our Internet sites
as the basis for developing one or more options
for district maps. This is important.

We will then share those options in open
public meetings, take comments from the public
before any votes are taken even in Committee,
so you will see maps before the first vote is
taken even in Committee.

And then as we said at the beginning,
throughout the process we will solicit
additional public comment so that proposed maps
can be matured with the public involved at
every step all before the Legislature approves

any maps.
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So 1T there were people who may have had
prepared remarks about why we didn"t do maps
first or maybe you weren"t here at the
beginning, perhaps this will help clarify what
our process Iis.

And then, Mr. Speaker, there was some
questions about the timeline and again, let me
reiterate what we laid out at the beginning
that perhaps not everyone had an opportunity to
hear .

That i1s, first, according to the Florida
Constitution we cannot meet in legislative
assembly to vote on maps until January. What
we did is to move up the legislative session by
two months so that we could begin voting
earlier than we ordinarily would.

Some individuals asked and it was a very
good question, well, why does some other states
have their maps already done? Well, the state
of Illinois did theirs iIn a back room, came out
and said here are the maps, and that was that,
but the way the Bureau of the Census, and we
don"t choose to operate that way.

The way the Bureau of the Census works,

not all of the census information comes to all
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of the states at once. They come in tranches.
They come iIn groupings, and Florida was in the
last grouping to get our census information, so
that is why we are a little bit later in the
process than some other states.

However, our President, President
Haridopolos, and our Speaker, Speaker Cannon,
told Representative Weatherford and me that we
needed to begin immediately after the
legislative session and we have begun literally
the month after the legislative session to have
public hearings to gather input so that we can
meet a timeline that we laid out for you.

Our timeline is listed on the House and
Senate websites so you can see how the timeline
works, and you can see the various stops that
we are obliged to make by law before we can
vote on any maps and before any maps are
finalized.

Finally, Mr. Speaker, I would mention that
any Legislator, any member of this Committee or
any Legislator who is not a member of this
Committee or any special interest group or any
citizen can produce maps at any time and those

maps will be immediately placed on our website
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so that the public can see them.

So there is no requirement that people be
silent about their views. Any member of this
Committee, any Legislator can produce any map,
any time and we will make i1t available to the
public.

And the groups that are very interested
this year, and of course, they are interested
each time there iIs a census in how
redistricting is carried out. Those groups as
well have the opportunity to produce a map.

They did ten years ago, but sadly,
apparently not so far this time, but as soon as
they do produce a map, those maps will be made
available on the website, the Senate and House,
as soon as those maps are provided to the
Senate and the House.

I would just reiterate that there will be
an opportunity for the public to review any
plan before that plan is voted on. The House
has already adopted rules. We will recommend
to the Chair to the Senate, that the Senate
adopt similar rules so the public has an
opportunity to see every amendment, every plan,

every iteration and have the opportunity to
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comment to before i1t Is voted on.

So again, Mr. Chairman, | want to thank
you for your work today. 1 want to echo what
you said when you were interviewed about
Amendments 5 and 6, and that is that they are a
part of our Constitution, and 1, like you, like
all of the members here, swore an oath to
preserve, protect and defend the Constitution
of the United States and of the State of
Florida, and those provisions are in our
Constitution. They will be faithfully abided
by .

But 1 would also point out that there are
other requirements of redistricting, such as
the Federal Voting Rights Act and various
Federal case law that we must also take into
account. Those aren"t secret. They are on the
Senate and House websites in their entirety.
You can read them and see where there may be
some opportunities to comment or provide your
input on how your neighborhood, your community
can be best represented by applying the
standards that are in the Federal Voting Rights
Act and in our State Constitution.

I look forward to the continuation of our
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hearing tonight beginning at 6:00. If there
are those who would like to come back, we would
welcome you, and we will be iIn Pensacola and in
Ft. Walton Beach tomorrow, in Panama City the
next day, and then moving through the entire
state to give all of the people of Florida a
chance to be heard on the Internet, as well as
face to face with their Legislators.

So thank you, Chairman Weatherford, for
your presiding at this hearing and for the good
work that you have done.

REPRESENTATIVE WEATHERFORD: Thank you
very much, Mr. Chairman. We are looking
forward to working with you. |If I could just
quickly say, for the members of the public who
have had an opportunity to speak or would like
to add more, please feel free to e-mail us.

You can also mail us, we actually do have
a pamphlet representative that has the address
on it, if you could pick that up on your way
out.

We look forward to working with you, and
of all of the legal records from today"s
meeting, video, podcast, transcripts will be

available In the coming days on the House and
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Senate websites.
We will be here at 6:00 this evening and
going until 8:00. Members, please be on time,

and with that, Senator Gaetz moves we rise.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Have a seat,
everyone. We appreciate everybody coming back
for the part two of our hearing, Joint
Redistricting Hearing today.

My name is Will Weatherford, and I am one
of the Co-Chairs of this Committee, along with
Senator Don Gaetz, who is the other Co-Chair.

We took three hours of public testimony
earlier today. 1 thought it was very
productive and I want to thank again the
members of the public who are here today who
were here earlier this afternoon and have also
come back.

We are very grateful for the public
participation that you have given us and we are
going to continue in that mode.

And so, members, what we are going to do
iIs so far we have probably got eight or ten
cards here. We expect to get a few more, but

we are going to go through them one at a time
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and give people the opportunity to speak before
this Committee, and then we will move forward
and move on and hit the road and go to
Pensacola.

So with that in mind we are going to start
with our first person here, and that is
Mr. David Best, if Mr. Best is here. Mr. Best
represents the Coffee Party, and Mr. Best,
thank you for being here, sir.

You are recognized to address the
Committee. Please give Mr. Best your
attention, please.

MR. BEST: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Touch the -- there
IS a button there, sir.

MR. BEST: Hello, hello. Better, better.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Yes, you are on.

MR. BEST: Okay. My name is David Best, 1
am here as a citizen first and a voter. 1 have
voted in every election that | can remember in
the last 30 years. | know I have missed one or
two, but the ones 1 remember, in almost all of
them.

I am also here as a member of the Coffee

Party, USA. I work with the Coffee Party of
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Florida, the local Coffee Party group. The
Coffee Party strives to maintain independence
from all political parties and labels.

We are grassroots volunteers who want to
restore stability to the political process that
we believe has suffered from extreme
polarization by both parties, and we too often
see parties, as a matter of fact, every day in
the paper | see it.

I think parties are working too often 1in
their own iInterest for the next election rather
than the common good of the people. To that
end I also want to say | believe in the
Constitution of the United States and the
Constitution of the State of Florida.

My goal here is to insure that the voice
of the people, not the power of the dollar and
special iInterests are the most considered and
will decide the policies and directions of our
state.

To that end 1 wish to compliment the
Florida Legislature on the openness that it has
shown so far in this process, particularly for
the things you have put on-line and made

available to me, just the common person, and I
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want to encourage you to continue with that
openness and transparency when the rubber hits
the road down the road. Okay.

Unfortunately the absence of maps. |1
don*t know what you heard this afternoon, but
it just seems like we could have had some maps
with some ideas of where you are going. Have
got to believe that you have studied this and
probably everyone of you, particularly with
incumbency, knows what you are planning to do
in this redistricting process.

So I would request that rather than wait
until the end and receive a lot of public
hearing input, that you go ahead and get some

maps out there and give us some ideas of where

you are going so that at least the people later

in the hearing process will have more ideas

what is going to happen beyond what we have got

now .
I believe that the voters have already
given you -- whatever we say, the will of the
voters was made clear in the last election, V
and VI Amendments passed, 63 percent of the
vote, that is pretty telling right there.

To me when 1 read them they are fairly
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clear. So I believe the intent of those
amendments i1s clear, but 1 also believe that
the intent of many political incumbents,
particularly those in high ranking positions,
has been made clear as well by actions more so
than by words. Time is fleeting.

I think this timeline is going to be a
very difficult one to maintain. 1 have been on
projects where 1 looked at and 1 thought this
project is going -- there is no room at all for
any error.

It 1s going to be hard enough to stay on
this timeline as i1t is. So | encourage you to
really get real and certainly you have all
worked on these project plans and you have got
to know this. 1 can"t tell you this. You know
more than 1 do.

So lastly | guess as a Coffee Party
activist 1 pledge to support leaders who work
towards positive solutions and to hold
accountable those who obstruct them. 1 am here
to ask that you be leaders that 1 can support,
and 1 thank you very much for the opportunity
to comment.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
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much, Mr. Best. We appreciate your comments
here today. One thing 1 did not point out
earlier and you certainly fell within this time
frame, Mr. Best, but for those who did not get
a chance to speak earlier, we are going to try
to keep the comments between three and five
minutes.

That kind of seems to be the wheelhouse
that has worked so far. We are going to
continue to work during in that direction and
also I will announce the name of the person who
IS going to be speaking and then try to put you
on deck so iIf you are next, you will hear your
name as well and just be prepared it come up
and speak when that person ahead of you is
done. So again, Mr. Best, thank you very much
for being here.

The next speaker that we have is, 1
believe, Jayce Michael Hill, if I am saying
that right. It could be Joyce, but I frankly
can"t tell. 1 apologize.

You are good, okay, all right, he is
waiving and 1 don"t know, usually with Bills we
say waive In support or so we will just say he

waives. We have Matthew Isbell.
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Matthew spoke to us earlier, certainly you
are welcome to come back and speak. No
problem, we are happy to have you. Thanks for
being here. After Matthew we will have Dan
McDaniel.

MR. ISBELL: Thank you again for letting
me speak. 1 know 1 spoke to you guys earlier
today. 1 kept this short earlier because 1
wanted to let other people speak, but 1 decided
to sign up again just to address some.

One other key thing and it was brought up
at the end of the meetings and that was the
issue of minority districts and minority
representation in not only in the Legislature
but Congress.

Specifically the Congress right now of our
25 seats we are going to go to 27 I know. We
have three majority African-American districts
and several majority Hispanic districts.

The comment and there has been questions,
okay, well, fair districts has passed, what
about things like the Third District which
stretches from Jacksonville down to Orlando.

You also have the Hastings District which

stretches over about three or four counties in
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south Florida, and, you know, there has been
some arguments made by some Legislators, some
activists, on both sides of the aisle saying
that, you know, If something like the Third
District is eliminated that will hurt minority
representation.

And 1 just want to offer a different point
of view on that, that, you know, especially in
terms of the Voting Rights Act which was passed
back In "65, to iInsure minority representation
not only being allowed to vote, but also be,
drawing majority African-American districts,
but the key thing about that is that was
designed to insure that, especially in the
south where they have been in the process for
100 years, Legislators did not draw lines to
carve up a compact African-American community
that already existed.

Where there was a compact area and people
would draw three or four districts between it.
The VRA does not require those drawings, you
know, a district that stretches from
Jacksonville all the way to Orlando, basically
packing every African-American imaginable in.

In fact, there are districts similar to
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that 1n North Carolina and Georgia have been
struck down in past Supreme Court cases as
basically racial gerrymandering where you are
packing every Democrat, every African-American
in, and 1 just don"t feel, you know, this is
not stated for anybody specifically, but I just
want to say for the record, I don"t feel that
IS needed.

We have plenty of white, majority white
districts, majority white states that have
elected African-Americans, Hispanics, anybody.
We are not, we are no longer in the, pardon my
words, the Jim Crow, south, where you needed,
you need a majority minority district to elect
a minority.

It is just not the case and 1 just want to
make that point clear, that is what I feel
that, you know, If there is, If you can create
a majority minority district that is compact
like we have now for the Rico Wilsons down in
south Florida where I am from, where 1 have
lived in at different points in my life, that
IS a compact district, but something, a
district that stretches from Jacksonville to

Orlando, it is just not needed. Thank you.
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CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. Isbell, we appreciate your comments
again. Next we have Mr. Dan McDaniel,
following Mr. McDaniel we have Dustin Ponder.

Mr. McDaniel, thank you very much for
being here, sir, you are recognized.

MR. MCDANIEL: Yes, thank you,

Mr. Chairman, and members of the Committee. |1
appreciate you taking the comments from the
public. I don"t envy the job that you have. 1
know that in past committees, if 1 can just
preface by saying this, the members that I have
known of this Committee while the charges have
always seemed to be that they are going to do
something in their favor, it seems that they
always came away and found that it was more of
a punitive appointment rather than one that
managed to allow them to cash In on any kinds
of favor.

What 1 wanted to do in the 30 years of
business and government that 1 have had is just
share for a moment a perspective on the, both
the analysis and process management sides of
the redistricting, or really anything that you

wanted to tackle, business or government-wise,
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at least looking back at some of the more
difficult projects I have, and I don*t want to
compare them with the enormity of your task.

But in analysis we are always, my
background, just to let you know, is an
economist and IT manager, and what we are doing
in an analysis is always taking these complex
problems and trying to break them down into
something manageable, and clearly, at the IT
management level or any kind of higher upper
management level, you can®t understand every
detail, even though we try and we want to.

On the process management side we are
trying to come up with some simple rules that
we can follow as we are dealing with the
analysis, and what I just wanted to present is
what 1 think would be a fair way to perhaps
deal with the constraints, not just of the past
and of the political, but also of the
amendments that are i1n place.

And in three simple steps what 1 might
propose is to first look at the state of
Florida and rather than start drawing from
Escambia or start drawing from Key West or

somewhere iIn between, Instead recognize that
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you as members of different districts currently
have so many different composite makeups within
your district.

And it might be best iIf we tried to keep
these districts not just contiguous and not
Jjust community oriented, but also to favor the
interest within that particular area, whatever
they might be, agricultural, urban, whatever,
and my proposal simply would be to start with
the urban cities iIn the state of Florida.

And by the populations 1 looked at, if you
took the House Districts, for example, 1 think
you would have nine cities in the state of
Florida that had populations over the size of
one House District.

Jacksonville would fit five House
Districts, a couple of cities would fit two and
the rest one, a couple of cities, 1 don"t know,
it my numbers were exactly right, number ten
and eleven were about the size of a district,
maybe not quite.

But 1T the principles of the redistricting
were applied then within each of these cities,
then a lot of the political problems and

accusations that might arise at a statewide
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level would at least go away within the locale.
You are creating urban.

And then the second step would be to look
at SMSA"s, something of that sort, we have got
a lot of them around the state and Till the
rest in that way. They would leak over into
some of the urban cores, but cover more of the
suburban areas and you would have suburban
styled districts, and then when you are done,
some may argue and some always will that you
have a gerrymandered looking district.

I would argue that rather than being
gerrymandered, they would probably look more
like swiss cheese, maybe donuts here and there,
but they would be the more rural and exurbia
type districts, and 1 think they would
represent a more common interest iIn that
respect, but if you looked at those cities and
those SMA®s, then the rest of the state, if it
filled out and looked like a gerrymander, |1
think that under the provisions as the way I
have read Amendments V and VI, 1 think it could
all be justified and that iIs just presenting
things from an analytical and process

management standpoint.
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I want to thank you all for your time.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. McDaniel. We appreciate those
comments. Next up we have Mr. Dustin Ponder,
who 1s here. After Mr. Ponder we will have Jay
Liles.

MR. PONDER: Thank you, sir. | was here
earlier, you know, and I have heard a lot of
talk today about democracy and listening to the
will of the public before we put out maps on
redistricting.

And 1 just have to say, I mean, who are we
talking about democracy for, you know? I mean,
you look at the last redistricting maps and the
result was 50 percent of our Senators and
Representatives are millionaires. When 1 think
in the general population, i1t is about five
percent, and 1 don"t think people are naive
here.

I don"t expect to convince you all to draw
up maps with my arguments and to implement fair
districts. 1 mean, I think we all know how
politics works.

The politicians have the interest of

working families, people of color and the poor
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in mind first, instead of as one woman per
earlier, the people that hire them, we would
already have maps.

We wouldn®t be having a lawsuit where the
people are both defending and paying for the
prosecution to overturn the Failr Districts
Amendment.

So all I got to say is you all are saying
you are listening to the public. You are
saying you support democracy, not just for the
top two percent, but for everybody.

well, my father always used to say,
actions speak louder than words, no matter how
eloquently put. So, I mean, I am hoping that
the rest of the public will join me and just
say, let"s get to it, you know, we know what
the game is.

The people know what the game is. | mean,
we have been through it all already. Let"s see
the maps, let"s move forward.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you,

Mr. Ponder. Next up we have Jay Liles, after
Mr. Liles, we have Jack Davis.
Mr. Liles, thank you very much for being

here, sir.
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MR. LILES: Thank you, Chairman
Weatherford, thank you, Chairman Gaetz, and the
members of the Committee.

I am Jay Liles. 1 reside at 1962 Vineland
Drive here in Tallahassee. Prior to living in
Tallahassee 1 was raised in Plant City,
Florida. 1 went to school in Gainesville,
Florida. 1 lived In St. Pete for ten years.

My father was a member of this august
body, along with Ron Saunders®s father back in
the 1960"s.

I only say all of that because 1 want you
to know I feel your pain. | understand what
you are up against and | appreciate what you
have agreed to do, and 1 hope you will take the
input of the citizens of this state and come up
with the best plans you can as you go forward.

Some of you may know me as an advocate for
environmental issues here in the Legislature.

I want you to know that today I don"t speak for
those groups. |1 speak as a citizen of the
state of Florida.

Let me further preface my comments with a
few facts i1f you don"t mind and 1 will be very

brief about this.
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I live In the Ninth House District. 1 am
a resident of the Third State Senate District
and I am in the Second Congressional District.
To visit with my State Senator, Senator Dean,
in his home office I would need to travel
211 miles, a six-hour trip back and forth.

To visit with my Congressman in his home
district, that is another 4.5 hour drive,
110 miles in Panama City. Some of my
neighbors, very near neighbors in eastern
Hillsborough County are represented by
Congresswoman Corrien Brown who lives in
Jacksonville. In a district that some people
say is that the most gerrymandered district in
the nation.

According to the 2010 Census, Senate

District 11l and Congressional Districts 11 and

Il need to be reduced in size to be
proportional correct.

The Fair Amendment District -- the Fair

Amendments Amendment, Fair Districts Amendment,

pardon me, approved by 63 percent of the voters

tells us that the committee should strictly
adhere to, quote, compact and contiguous

districts iIn order to end gerrymandering by
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political parties.

In keeping with the amendment 1 sincerely
hope that this Committee and the Legislature
will approve a reduced, geographically reduced
size, District 11, Congressional District 11
and Senate District 111 and bring my neighbors
in Leon County into the Second Congressional
District.

In the 2010 election cycle there were
4,631,068 registered Democrats. There were
4,039,000 registered Republicans and 2,186,000
Independents, yet in the State legislature, as
you all know, it is 81 to 39 Republicans versus
Democrat.

In the State Senate it is 28 to 12
Republicans versus Democrats. Our
Congressional Delegation and most of the major
offices, with the exception of one U.S. Senate
office are held by Republicans, and I know many
of you, some of you anyway on this Committee
think that is just because your campaign
strategies were better, but honestly, let"s get
real .

There i1s something wrong In that. As some

of my friends have said, the politicians in
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Florida are picking the voters rather than
voters picking their candidates.

In a civics lesson would fully tell us
that a representative form of government
insures the will of the majority is and it
prevails, while strenuously protecting the
rights of the minority.

When people feel their voice is not heard
by their elected representatives they begin to
lose confidence in the institution as a
government, and then they lose interest in the
rights of others, and at its lowest point they
lose interest in civil law.

That is something none of us can afford to
have happen no matter what our party. So as
you conduct your work 1 would ask you to
suspend your loyalty to party and as 1 know you
are, be loyal Floridians in your thinking and
in your efforts.

Consider that the decisions you are making
here are going to be for ten years, long after
many of you are out of this institution, out of
this process.

Please ask yourselves, how can your

successors govern effectively that the policies
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they craft are the product of an echo chamber.

I have worked with many of you on a lot of
issues. | know that one to one environment we
tend to agree more often than not, or at least
find accommodation. It is the group thing that
concerns me and I hope we are able to get past
that and 1 thank you for the time.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Mr. Liles.

Next up, members, we have got Jack Davis.
Do you want to say ditto? Okay. We can do
that. Ditto for Mr. Jack Davis. Thank you
very much, sir, for being here. We appreciate
you participating in this process.

We next have Alex Belk, 1 believe that is
a K. Alex, did 1 say that one wrong, buddy?

MR. BELLOA: Yes.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: 1 apologize. 680
West Virginia Street. All right.

A VOICE: Repeat that.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: That is right,
after Alex we have got Mr. Carlos Ray, you are
going to be next. You are recognized, sir, and
sorry for not pronouncing your name right.

MR. BELLOA: 1 have chicken scratch for
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writing, that is okay.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Your handwriting is
still better than mine, | can assure you.

MR. BELLOA: I want to thank everybody
first of all, for giving me the opportunity to
speak here today and the rest of the citizens
in the room.

It is, | want to state that openness is
extremely important and that is the key in all
of this.

I know it is going to be a hard fought
battle. There is a lot of disagreement on both
sides how things should be run and written, but
ultimately 1If we remain open and this continues
to be an open process 1 think what is going to
come out of this, you know, what is good, it is
going to be contentious, but hopefully i1t will
be good for everybody.

And iIn addition to this 1 think that we
need to stick to the spirit of the law. We
need to have compact districts that are
reflective of the people that are living there.
I am in Senator Montford®s district, and I am
in Senator Alan Williams -- 1 am sorry,

Representative Alan Williams® district.
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IT I cross the street, literally 40 feet
from my door I am in someone else®s district.

I think that it is Marti Coley"s district. So
I mean, we are talking literally 40 feet and it
is not like there is a totally different
community between us, It Is the same community,
the same people.

A lot of the folks that live on one side
are predominantly African-American, the other
one are students. And so iIf we have anything
that affects us iIn this district that has to do
with transportation, which Is Tennessee Street
is a major corridor in Tallahassee, there is a
lot of transportation issues with the city, who
do we go talk to?

IT we are African-American you talk to
Alan Williams and if you are a student you go
talk to Marti Coley, and that to me pits these
two groups against each other.

There is not one Representative in that
district that knows exactly what happens on
both sides of the street that pay attention to
that, and 1 think that is wrong for the people
that live iIn that community.

I agree with everything that Mr. McDaniel
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spoke about earlier, that we need to start with
the bigger urban cores and work our ways out
there, because the situations that effect
somebody in the city are not going to be the
same that effect somebody out in a rural
county, like Union.

African-American issue, Hispanic issues
are very important to me, and, but they are not
the same in Duval County that they are 1in
Orange County. They are not the same that they
are in Union, they are not the same that they
are i1n Ocala, that i1s not a county, In Marion
County. So we need to keep our communities
together.

We all need to work together and we need
to encourage that by having districts that
encourage us to go talk with one another and
our Representatives that are going to know
their districts well.

When you have somebody who has to travel
400 miles from one point of the district to
another, how are they really going to get to
know anybody other than what is within the
20 miles that they live in.

So let"s use a little bit of a common
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sense approach. | know sometimes common sense
is not very common, but 1 think that we have
come a very long way, as one gentleman
mentioned, the Jim Crow south, we have grown a
lot from that period in time, and 1If we have
faith in our constituencies and our folks,
people are going to do what is best for them
and their communities and they are going to
come together.

We have just got to have a little bit more
faith in ourselves to do so. Once again, just
thanks again and please keep In mind that the
most important in all of this iIs keeping
communities together.

We need to have people who are going to be
advocating for their communities, not for 65
different communities of who they have met
maybe five or six people along the way. Thank
you very much, and that is all 1 have.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, sir. We appreciate that very much. Next
up we have Mr. Carlos Rey, followed by Beatriz
Macia. Mr. Rey, thank you for being here, sir,
you are recognized.

MR. REY: Thank you, Chairman Weatherford,
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thank you, Chairman Gaetz. Again, thank you
for this opportunity and making this an open
and transparent process.

The only reason I am coming up here is to
present to you a study that took place in
Columbia Law School where they have a program
where students are given the opportunity to
learn the redistricting laws and given the
tools to redistrict certain states.

At the end of that program those students
are required to take a state and actually
redistrict the state based on the projected
census reports, and here 1 have before me the
report, itself, which takes into account
compactness and the VRA laws as well, and it
addresses only congressional districts, but 1
think it gives you an idea of what are some
considerations you can you look at when you are
making your decisions, and I don*"t know if I
can present this to the Board.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: We are actually
very familiar with that. We actually have it
on-line. On our website at Florida
redistricting.org. The Senate has it up and to

be, to be even more direct, we think that is
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actually a perfect example of the steps that we
have taken to be open and transparent to where
we are soliciting that type of participation,
and that, the young man, the student who
produced that map of the Congressional
Districts of Florida spent a lot of time on
that and 1 believe gave it to us three or four
weeks ago.

MR. REY: Very good.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: We have it, and if
you want to give members a copy you can, but 1
believe, members, you can hand 1t maybe down
here, but it is on-line. We have i1t up and
on-line and there are actually other maps as
well, but again, 1 think that speaks to the
process we have created and what technology now
allows us to do, to allow people to take
advantage of the software we have.

So I am glad that you are here to talk
about it. | didn"t want to interrupt you, but
wanted you to know we have it.

MR. REY: 1 wanted to make sure you were
aware of that, and also I think that people can
look at this report and see the, that the

issues that have been brought up in this,
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before this Board has been addressed and other
people are looking at it and i1t shows that
individuals can have an impact as far as what
considerations are taken when making these
decisions, and you have given us the tools, the
redistricting tool, itself, and 1t is one of
those things that we should take advantage of
as well.

And 1 want to thank you again for this
opportunity and 1 am kind of embarrassed that
this i1s on there, but thanks again for this
opportunity.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: That is quite all
right, Mr. Rey. We appreciate you being here
and we echo your comments. We think that there
will be many opportunities in the future for
people to participate and do exactly what this
young man from Columbia University has done.

So thank you. Next we have Beatriz Macia,
I hope I am saying that correctly, and after
that we have Brian Lupiani.

Ms. Macia, thank you for being here today,
and we would love to hear from you. You are
recognized.

MS. MACIA: Thank you, Representatives. |1
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guess | need to let you know something. It is
Macia, but I will say Macia, and being Cuban,
Macia 1s a whole other family. The accent on
the 1, not the A.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: 1 am sinking in my
chair as you are talking, so thank you.

MS. MACIA: How would you know that. Good
evening, Senators and Representatives. As I
said, 1 am Beatriz Macia, | am a Board member
of the Tallahassee Tea Party and I am a
Hispanic voter.

I know that Florida is a long narrow and
diverse state. It is difficult. 1 recognize
the fact that whether you all held these
listening meetings or not you were going to be
criticized, and 1 appreciate the fact that you
chose to listen to us anyway.

I understand that you are going to be
looking at a lot of factors and 1 hope that one
of the things that you will look at is the
concept just like that when our Congress was
originated i1t had two Houses to balance the
needs of the large states with the small
states.

We have large counties, urban and diverse
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and we have small rural counties that have less
resources and are just important that they are
heard and represented.

I know that there are interests in the
different regions that need to be acknowledged,
you know, we have tourism, we have fishing, we
have agricultural, we have new technologies
that are coming.

Our Governor is working hard to bring, you
know, iInteresting businesses to Florida, as
well as many of our regional development
councils.

I have worked in a lot of different parts
of government. 1 have worked in Departments of
State, in the Legislature, 1 have worked in the
Governor®s Office, and I am a small business
owner, so I have, you know, a pretty
appreciative understanding and working
knowledge of the processes that you work in and
how those policies and all of those things are
actually implemented, and then the affects on
the diverse folks that are impacted.

So I look forward to the day that we don"t
have to talk about minorities and that we

didn"t have to talk about selfish interests.
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I really look forward to the day that we
are talking about building a better Florida. |
just want you to know that 1 choose to put my
faith in your good intentions. 1 have watched
you all. 1 was here during the session. |
have watched you all talk to each other.

I have watched you work through problems,
and very difficult issues. | have an
appreciation for what you do, and also know
that I will also still be involved and I will
be a part of the process, so thank you very
much.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much. We appreciate you being here. Next up
we have Mr. Brian Lupiani, followed by
Mr. Eutn, and 1 would try to read your Ffirst
name, but I can"t make it out. So Mr. Eutn,
but first we have Brian.

Thank you for being here, sir, you are
recognized.

MR. LUPIANI: Thank you, gentlemen and
ladies. | wasn"t necessarily going to say
anything. | just wanted to be sure that 1 had
a chance to if something came up, but having

only gotten into the room just a couple minutes
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ago, I am not sure what has come before.

But first 1 appreciate ya"ll having these
hearings. 1 wish there were drafts that we had
a chance to respond to. Maybe there will be a
second round that you all can come around the
state with a proposal and get some comments on
it.

I would just like to say that it is
paramount to me that you all go by the
amendments that the citizens just recently put
into the Constitution. 1 don"t like that it is
being challenged and delayed by some. It was
overwhelmingly approved by voters and 1 have
been iIn favor of those standards, not that it
matters to you what 1 have done, but 1 have
been a Democrat since I could vote and 1 was
originally for these standards back in 1978,
when the Democrats ran everything.

I think it is good for everyone. It needs
to be fair and we really need to just go by as
much as possible just based on raw population,
demographics, racial demographics to the extent
that we need to to comply with the Voting
Rights Act, but there should be no -- and 1

realize it is, this isn"t going to count for
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much with many of you, but there should be no
consideration given to partisan registration or
to incumbents current location.

Some of the things we see on the current
map, It Is -- it is almost incredible to have
to point out anything like this, finger for a
Congressional District, whatever it is, from
Jacksonville that comes cutting across, snakes
into all of the way over iInto Leon County.

There iIs a State House District X and I
don®t mean this, I am not picking on anybody in
particular here, but it is insane to me that
somebody in Apalachicola is in the same State
House District as people 1 know in Ocala.

It is, you know, you have to do better. 1
plan on -- 1 haven"t had a chance yet to look
at the software you all have made available. 1
appreciate that that is out there and I, you
know, I hope a number of groups will use it,
but as 1 said, just keep partisan political
party affiliation completely off the table.

Go strictly by population and follow
existing political and geographic boundaries as
much as possible. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
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much, sir, and It is not too much to ask that
we keep partisan politics out of this process.
We believe that is exactly what this body will
do. It is what the Constitution asked us to do
and 1t Is a very good suggestion and we will
certainly take it to heart and make sure that
we do so.

Next up we have Mr. Eutn. In fact this is
the last card that we have and 1If you are here
and you would like to speak and we have not
called your name, please raise your hand and we
will find someone who will give you a card to
fill out.

We want to make sure that everyone here
has the opportunity to speak and while we are
looking for that, Mr. Eutn, you are recognized
to speak. Thank you for being here, sir.

MR. EUTN: Thank you. 1 would only like
to say is this, that the people of Florida are
watching what your body does today. And we do
not want to see a situation where this body
decides to take political affiliation into
consideration when it comes to setting up these
districts.

The people of the state have voted on this
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matter. The people of this state have made
decisions how they want to have their districts
drawn, and I think this body should adhere to
that.

And 1t concerns me that this body has done
things that usurp, usurp the rights of the
people. And so I would hope and 1 would hope
that everyone here takes it very serious to do
the right thing and do the thing that the
people of Florida, this fine state of Florida
have asked you to do. Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you, sir, and
that is the last, 1 think that is the last of
our public testimony.

We do have someone, okay, great, while we
are waiting for that, as mentioned earlier, as
people e-mail us or give us information they
would like to make on the record but could not
be here, we want to oblique them.

Mimi Jones, who sent us an e-mail saying
she could not be here, wanted us to know that
she wanted us to follow the Constitution and we
plan on following that.

And then we also were reached via Facebook

from a lady by the name of Diane
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Blackford-Wilson who just wanted to restate
that Wakulla County is an extension of Leon for
all practical purposes and should have the same
Representatives as Leon County, and we
appreciate them contacting us and knowing that
not everybody can be at a meeting, but that
their comments can be on the record.

So last up we have Ralph Wilson.

Mr. Wilson, we would love to have you come
forward. Thank you for being here, and you are
recognized to address the Committee.

MR. WILSON: Thank you very much. Thanks
for holding this hearing. | really appreciate
it, and 1 think a lot of us are here for a
pretty simple reason.

I feel like the voters have spoken and
feel like i1t iIs just another of many affronts
to the voter®s will and the people®s will 1In

the state for this to be challenged In the way

So 1 think, yes, I think that that is
really all there is to say, so | thank you for
your time.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very

much, Mr. Wilson. We appreciate your comments.
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FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222

Any other comments from the public, last call?
Okay -

Any comments and/or questions from members
of the Committee?

REPRESENTATIVE WILLIAMS: Mr. Speaker.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Yes, Representative
Williams, you are recognized.

REPRESENTATIVE WILLIAMS: Thank you,
Chair. 1 just want to say for the record that
I was glad to see so many individuals from this
area, parts of which 1 am proud to represent,
along with Senator Montford.

Had an opportunity to come out and share
their thoughts and concerns about this process
that we take very serious, and thank you for
the opportunity given to this area for them to
be heard. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you,
Representative and thank you for hosting us
here in Tallahassee. We are very grateful for
that. Senator Gaetz, | think you had a comment
that you --

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Just quickly,

Mr. Speaker, 1 wanted to thank you for

presiding over the hearings today. Some of

-5491
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those who were here tonight were not able to be
here earlier today.

We certainly are not going to repeat all
of the comments that we made about the process
and the schedule, but 1 think given that some
of the comments that were made tonight, it is
only fair that we indicate the process and
schedule in a couple of ways.

So let me, let me refer to introductory
comments that were made at the very beginning
of the session today so that those who may not
have been able to hear those comments would
have the benefit of knowing which way we are
headed.

The redistricting schedule under which we
are operating is imposed not by our own wishes,
but by the State Constitution. The
Constitution does not permit the Legislature to
act on legislative maps before the second year
after the census.

In other words, until 2012, but we did
accelerate the process as much as possible by
moving up the 2012 session, from March to
January, and by beginning our statewide

hearings five months in advance of the 2012
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session.

It has been suggested by some that the
Legislature should draw maps first and then put
them out and ask the public to comment.

We believe that that puts the answer ahead
of the question. There should be in our view
no preconceptions created by politicians, but
rather public testimony and public input should
be free and unrestrained.

Our intent iIs to use the recommendations
made at all 26 of the public hearings we will
be holding and to use the input we are
receiving over the Internet, and I might
mention, Mr. Chairman, that we have been
heavily followed on-line this afternoon and
this evening, very heavy on-line traffic with
individuals saying they want to participate
on-line, they want to submit plans, they want
to offer comments and we welcome that.

And our intent is to use all of that input
we are gathering as the basis for developing
one or more options for district maps, and then
we will share those options in open public
meetings before any votes are taken, even in

Committee.
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Let me state that again. First we are
asking for public input via the Internet,
getting heavy Internet traffic and via our 26
public hearings, and then once we have that
information and as we develop one or more
options for district maps, we will share those
options in open public meetings before any
votes are taken even in Committee.

Throughout the process we will solicit
additional public comment so that all proposed
maps can mature with the public involved, all
before the Legislature approves final maps.

And finally, Mr. Speaker, just for the
record and for those who may not have been able
to be here this afternoon, whatever the
Legislature then votes on, it is submitted for
judicial review at the State and Federal level
to insure that final plans meet every legal
requirement.

So on behalf of our Senate colleagues,
Senate members of the Committee, Mr. Speaker,
thank you for doing a great job today, and we
look forward to seeing you tomorrow morning in
Pensacola as we continue our statewide tour.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
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much, Mr. Chairman, for those comments, and
members, 1f 1 could have everyone"s attention
for one minute before we break.

I think everyone knows that we have
several days ahead of us. We are now moving
tonight to head over to Pensacola where we will
meet with citizens in Pensacola tomorrow
evening.

We will be iIn our good Senator®s backyard
in Ft. Walton Beach, and then finally finishing
Wednesday in Panama City, but 1 want to thank
the staff for putting this together. This was
very well orchestrated, it was perfectly placed
where people could see what the maps look like,
you could get information, everything was
waiting for folks and I just really thank the
staff for making this a seamless process.

I also want to thank the members who are
here, not just the members on the Committee,
but we have dozens of members who traveled from
all over the state of Florida who don"t even
sit on this Committee that wanted to be a part
of this process to see how it works and it
engage the public and 1 thank them for that as

well.
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Lastly, and most importantly, we want to
thank the public who is here tonight and who
were here earlier this afternoon.

We are going to make this process the most
open, the most transparent, the most engaging
process, not only that Florida has ever had,
but anyone iIn the country has ever had, and
that i1s our goal and we will fulfill it and we
thank you for being here today and with that,
Senator Gaetz moves we rise.

(Whereupon, the proceedings were

concluded.)
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TAPED PROCEEDINGS

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Good evening, everyone,
we are delighted that we have such a good large
and obviously iInterested crowd here tonight.

The Joint Senate House Redistricting
hearing is called to order, and we want to
thank Principal Charlene Cuveon of Ft. Walton
Beach High School, Dr. Alexis Tibbets, the
Superintendent of Schools here.

In case you didn"t know, this is Ft.
Walton Beach High School, the home of the
Vikings, one of the historically highest
performing schools in the United States, not
just once, but for year after year after year,
SO you are in a great school.

And we thank the administration of Ft.
Walton Beach High School and Superintendent
Tibbets for allowing us to use this facility
this evening for what is our third public
hearing in a series of 26.

We started yesterday in Tallahassee. We
had a hearing earlier today in Pensacola. This
is our third hearing, and tomorrow we will be
in Panama City, and then on to the rest of the

state.
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Thank you all for being here, especially
members of the public who have come to share
their comments and recommendations to help
shape Congressional Senate and House Districts
for the next decade.

My name s Don Gaetz. 1 serve as Chairman
of the Senate Reapportionment Committee.
Typically the Speaker Designate of the Florida
House, Will Weatherford, would be with us
tonight. He has been with us In the preceding
hearings and he will be with us going forward,
but he had a family commitment come up and so I
can guarantee you that he will be watching the
pod cast of this hearing and he will be fully
informed by professional staff and given copies
of all of the testimony that is being given
tonight.

Tonight®™s hearing is being webcast
statewide by the Florida Channel and over the
Internet, and 1 can report to you that we have
extraordinarily heavy Internet traffic for this
issue, and for our Joint Committee hearings,
and we are delighted to report that to you.

Before we go further 1 would like to ask

each member of the Committee i1f they would just
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identify themselves as to whether they are a
Representative or a Senator and indicate where
in the state you live, where you represent, so
that the folks here in northwest Florida and
Okaloosa County can have an opportunity to see
how diverse the House and Senate Committees
are.

And 1T we may start with our Former Senate
President, and still Senator, Senator Gwen
Margolis.

Senator, would you, and 1 apologize that
we don®t have microphones, so we are
politicians, so we will talk loud.

SENATOR MARGOLIS: My name is Gwen
Margolis, and 1 represent the eastern part of
Broward and Miami-Dade.

SENATOR HAYS: I am Alan Hays from
Umatilla. 1 am a Senator from District 20,
which represents a portion of five counties.

SENATOR DEAN: My name is Charlie Dean,
and 1 am Senator for District 1lIl1. 1 have the
largest Senatorial district east of the
Mississippi River. It goes from Palmetto,
Citrus to the Hernando County line, to Baker,

and Duval County lines, all a part of 13
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counties.

REPRESENTATIVE GAETZ: 1 am Representative
Matt Gaetz, and 1 live two miles down the road.

REPRESENTATIVE PASSIDOMO: 1 am Kathleen
Passidomo, representing Collier County,
representing parts of Collier County,
representing Naples, Marco Island.

REPRESENTATIVE GOODSON: My name is Tom
Goodson, District 29.

REPRESENTATIVE CRUZ: My name is Janet
Cruz, and I represent District 58.

A VOICE: (Inaudible).

REPRESENTATIVE CALDWELL: Matt Caldwell,
District 73, that would be Ft. Myers.

REPRESENTATIVE STARGEL: I am
Representative Kelli Stargel, north of Polk
County, Lakeland.

REPRESENTATIVE HOOPER: I am Ed Hooper,
Representative from Clearwater and Pinellas
County, the most district populated county.

A VOICE: (Inaudible)

REPRESENTATIVE BURGIN: Hello, my name is
Rachel Burgin, and 1 represent District 56.

SENATOR THRASHER: Thank you, 1 am Senator

John Thrasher. I live iIn St. Augustine. |
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represent District 8, which iIs parts of Nassau
County that starts at Fernandina Beach, parts
of Duval County, parts of St. Johns County,
which is where St. Augustine is located, part
of Flagler County and I end up in Volusia
County at the International Speedway.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: Clay Ford,
Representative for District 3, ninety-five
percent of Pensacola, five percent Gulf Breeze,
I talk just like ya"ll do. People down south
have trouble understanding me.

REPRESENTATIVE PRECOURT: 1 am
Representative Steve Precourt from down south
at House District 41, a little area that
includes University Studios and Walt Disney
World.

REPRESENTATIVE ADKINS: Hi, 1 am Janet
Adkins, Florida District 12.

REPRESENTATIVE CLARKE-REED: 1 am
Representative Gwyndolen Clarke-Reed, Broward
County, House District 92. 1 serve seven
cities, Deerfield Beach, Pompano Beach, Oakland
Park, Rose Manor, Tamarac (inaudible).

REPRESENTATIVE ROGERS: Hazel Rogers,

Representative of District 94, parts of Broward
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County.

REPRESENTATIVE BERNARD: Mack Bernard,
Representative for West Palm Beach.

SENATOR MONTFORD: Senator Bill Montford,
District 6, (inaudible).

A VOICE: My name is (inaudible). 1
represent the most conservative county in the
state, Broward County.

A VOICE: (Inaudible)

A VOICE: (Inaudible).

A VOICE: (Inaudible).

A VOICE: (Inaudible)

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you all very much.
I am sorry, fire away, we got the second row.

REPRESENTATIVE DRAKE: Brad Drake,
Representative for House District 5, and I am
also very privileged to represent Okaloosa
County, as well as Holmes, Washington. My
district runs all the way to the Georgia line,
up In Marianna.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Senator Evers.

SENATOR EVERS: 1 am Senator Evers and I
cover everything north of Senator Don Gaetz,
Escambia, Santa Rosa, Okaloosa, Walton,

Washington, Holmes and north Bay.
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REPRESENTATIVE ABRUZZO: 1 am Joseph
Abruzzo from District 85, which is Palm Beach
County (inaudible).

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Anyone else? If not,
thank you very much, Senators and
Representatives for introducing yourself to the
folks here in Okaloosa County where I am very
proud to live and proud to represent.

Our sole purpose tonight is to hear from
the public about how you believe the legal
standards governing redistricting should be
applied in your community, In this community so
that you are represented in Washington and
Tallahassee fairly, equitably and sensibly.

And 1 know there may be folks who are
already prepared to admonish us that Amendments
V and VI need to be followed.

Let me tell you on behalf of Speaker
Weatherford and myself and every member of this
Committee, we all took an oath to preserve,
protect and defend the Constitution of the
United States and of the State of Florida.

Those two provisions are in our
Constitution. They will be faithfully adhered

to and they will be followed, and any

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1259



=

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

redistricting plan that this Legislature
presents to the Supreme Court of Florida will,
in our judgment, and to the best of our
ability, follow every constitutional and legal
requirement.

Our procedures tonight are simple, but
they are important. It iIs Important, as | said
before, that you sign in so we can create an
accurate public record of all attendees and
speakers, and also you may opt to join our
e-mail lists or our mail lists so that we can
keep you informed about how the redistricting
process Is working.

IT you haven™t signed in, please do so,
please raise your hand at any point tonight if
you wish to speak and a staff member will come
to you and pick up your card, either your
appearance card or your attendance card.

Before we begin I would like to recognize
Representative Steve Precourt who will give us
a few introductory comments on behalf of the
House of Representatives.

Representative Precourt will explain how
today"s hearing fits into the redistricting

process. You are recognized, Representative.
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REPRESENTATIVE PRECOURT: Thank you, Chair
Gaetz, and is the Chairman said, | am Steve
Precourt, House District 41 from central
Florida, filling in for Chair Weatherford.

I am Vice-Chair of the House Redistricting
Committee and just wanted to give you a little
outline of where we are going in today"s
meeting and of the overall process.

Every ten years the Legislature is
required by our Constitution to redistrict the
state based on increases, decreases and
movements around the state of the population.

Now, because Florida has grown more than
the other states over the last ten years, we
will be growing from 25 Congressional Seats to
27 members of the U.S. House of
Representatives. That is one of the major
things that we will have to do in this process.

Now, because some of our -- parts of our
state have either increased or decreased
disproportionately in population, many of our
Senate and House Districts are going to have to
change.

We are not going to get any new House or

Senate Seats, but we are going to have to move
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the boundaries around because they have either
added too much or too little population.

Now, when the redistricting process 1Is
completed the Congressional Districts must be
equal in size of population and each contain
696,345 people.

The 40 Senate Districts must also be
nearly equal at 470,033 people, and our 120
House Districts must also be nearly equal at
156,678 people.

Now, there is some maps over on the side
of the room rate there to ya"ll"s left as you
are facing us showing this area of the state,
and the current boundaries, the current
boundaries of the districts, and the number of
people which must be added or subtracted from
those districts to achieve that equal
representation.

Now, the equality of representation isn"t
the only legal requirement that our
redistricting plans must meet. The laws and
important court cases governing redistricting
are explained in detail on the House and Senate
websites.

Now, those websites are listed on the
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Redistricting 2012 brochure that was available
when you came in, and iIf you don"t have one,
staff has them available for you as well.

Please make sure and pick one up before
you leave. Our Redistricting 2012 brochure
summarizes the Federal and State laws and
outlines the topics that we hope that you will
discuss here at today"s meeting as well.

IT you didn*"t go a brochure, as | said,
they are available from staff, but also on the
tables outside of the meeting hall, and if you
want one right now our staff would be happy to
get a copy for you. If you need 1t just wave
to them.

Those websites that we have, we have made
available to the public all of the demographic
information from the U.S. Bureau of Census that
will be used in drawing the districts and used
in the redistricting software that we as
Legislators will be using.

Now, these websites will allow any member
of the public to see all of the district maps
that are being proposed by the Legislators and
for the citizens, ya"ll, to propose your own

district maps for your own communities or for
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the whole state i1f you would like, using those
same tools that are available to us as
Legislators and to our staff.

Now, before, during and after this hearing
tonight the Senate and House professional staff
are available to actually show you the simple
steps to getting on-line and making your
submission either now if you care to or in the
weeks to come.

We want to assure you that every
recommendation from any member of the public or
any group will be made publicly available.

In fact, we already have some public
submissions available on the web for review.
The submission of proposed maps, the drawings
that you might come up with is one of the most
effective, 1T not the single most effective
form of public participation in the
redistricting process. That is why we
encourage you strongly to avail yourself of
these resources that we put out there for you.

The redistricting schedule under which we
are operating is iImposed by our State
Constitution. The Constitution does not permit

the Legislature to act on legislative maps
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before the second year after the census, 1in
other words, before 2012.

Now, we have accelerated this process as
much as we possibly can by moving up the 2012
legislative session from, where typically it is
in March and April, to January and February of
next year, by beginning our statewide hearings.

We have also accelerated the process by
beginning our statewide hearings five months in
advance of that 2012 advanced session.

Now, It has been suggested that the
Legislature should draw maps first and then ask
the public to comment. We believe that puts
the answer ahead of the question.

There should be no preconceived notions,
no preconceptions created by politicians or
anyone else, but rather your public testimony
should be free and unrestricted and untainted
and give us something to work with.

Now, our intent is to use the
recommendations made by you tonight and at our
other 25 public hearings, as well as
information that we get through the Internet
and social networking and stuff that is hard

copy that is mailed to us and any other way
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that we get 1t, as the basis for developing one
or more options for these district maps as we
go forward.

And once we developed those options we
will discuss them in open public meetings
before any votes are taken, even in committee
votes.

Now, throughout the process we will
solicit additional public input, not just these
initial meetings so that the proposed maps can
mature and develop with the public involved
deeply i1n the process.

All of this i1s going to be done before the
Legislature votes on or finally approves any of
those maps.

Whatever the Legislature votes on during
session next year is then going to be submitted
for judicial review to insure that the final
plans meet every legal requirement, not only in
our State Constitution, but the Federal laws as
well.

Now, because our mission today is to hear
from you, 100 percent of the time tonight
between now and I believe 9:00 o"clock as we

are scheduled will be used to ensure that every
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member of the public who i1s here and wishes to
speak will have time to present the testimony
they would like heard and will be listened to
respectfully without interruption or argument.

And 1T after every citizen has had his or
her say there is still some time remaining
before our scheduled adjournment, any member of
the Committee may make any statements or offer
any observation, and we are also going to read
some feedback that we have recently gotten via
social media.

Of course, any member of the Legislature
may today or at any time propose maps or plans
or we will make all of that available to the
public as it is prepared and developed.

Mr. Chairman, I hope this description of
our schedule and the process helps to stage
tonight for a successful hearing and 1 will
turn the microphone back to you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much.
Let"s get into it with those who have signed up
to speak. We have at the moment 24 individuals
who wish to speak.

What that means is that we will have time

for everybody. |If everybody can keep their
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comments to say three to five minutes, and we
are not going to be really restrictive on time,
but 1T we get more people who show up later in
the hearing and they would like to speak, then
I hope you will forgive me if 1 try to hold
people to a time limit, because I am an
advocate for the last person on this list just
like 1 am an advocate for the first person to
be able to speak and let everyone on the
Committee know what their views are.

President Margolis has admonished me to
make sure that you know that the maps that are
there on my right and on that side of the room
are available for you to look at so that you
will see what the current districts are.

So there are maps and we can use those
maps as a take off point to either criticize or
find fault or find value or virtue in any of
the districts that exist now.

IT Chairman Weatherford were here he would
remind us all that none of us, nobody in the
Legislature, has a district. The districts are
developed based on the population data and
based on the redistricting software that is

used In conformance with the law.
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So this i1s not about trying to find a way
to protect somebody®s district. It is to find
a way to listen to your views as to how the
laws ought to be carried forward here in
northwest Florida.

With that said, what we will do is I will
call two testifiers at once so that the second
person can be on deck and ready, and our first
testifier are Mary Blackwell representing the
League of Women Voters of Okaloosa County.

Ms. Blackwell, it is good to see you
again.

MS. BLACKWELL: It is good to see you,
too, Don. First, 1 would like to thank the
Committee members for being here and for
providing this opportunity to comment on
redistricting, and I commend you for
encouraging citizen participation in the
process and 1 thank everybody who has come.

This is really important and I am glad you
are a part of 1t. 1 only have three points to
make .

First, the Legislature®s timeline for
drawing the districts is too slow. The last of

the scheduled public hearings is September 1st.
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Your timeline shows four months, as you
mentioned, for iInterim committee meetings, from
September through December.

Your own Committee staffs who work on the
redistricting and reapportionment issues year
around and some of whom, like John Guthrie, for
example, have been there for decades, should be
able to present you with several options right
now .

But as you said, you wanted to start with
a clean slate, that i1s fine, but after the end
of the hearings on the first of September, and
you absorb the public input, you mentioned
yesterday, Don, at the hearing that this is the
Internet age.

So I would like to see some options for
maps out there for comment and by the end of
September, so the public can have a chance to
influence the actual maps and not just talk iIn
generalities about what we would like to see.

And actually, 1 don"t think there is any
secret about what we want to see, since the
Fair District Amendments received about
63 percent approval rating from voters in

November .
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So please get all of those things done
where you are looking at the maps and making
those up, that is the time, that four months of
interim Committee meetings so you can be ready
to vote In January.

Please don"t be wringing your hands next
spring and saying there is not enough time.
There is plenty of time, so let"s not waste it,
it is not fair to candidates, it is not fair to
constituents.

The second point, the Legislature
shouldn®t be spending taxpayer money to oppose
implementation of the Fair District Standards.
As you all know, Representatives Brown and
Diaz-Balart have sued to have Florida®s new
redistricting standards declared
unconstitutional even though they were approved
by the state Supreme Court before they were put
on the ballot.

The Florida House has joined this lawsuit
and the Secretary of State, Kurt Browning, is
the Defendant in the case. So this means
Florida taxpayers are now paying both to
prosecute and defend the same lawsuit. It is

just not right.
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Senator Gaetz, you already said that you
and your colleagues were going to be upholding
the Constitution. [ am counting on you, SO
please stop spending our money trying to
undermine the provisions that were placed there
by 63 percent of the voters last November.

The final point, you mentioned you didn"t
want to start out with any maps, and you are
having these 26 hearings, that is really
fabulous, but no maps are provided for citizen
comment.

Your Committee staffs, you already have
staffs working full time year round on these
issues, and 1 am sure they already have some
working drafts. 1 thank you again for taking
the time for citizen input and for the citizens
for making it, but 1t is hard to make
substantive constructive comments iIn a vacuum.

We have the technology as you mentioned,
to make the maps quickly with the available
census data. So I charge you to develop the
maps as soon as possible after the public
hearings conclude and you absorb all of that
citizen input so they can be out there for the

citizens to see well before you vote on them in
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January.

And we do need to be ready to vote on them
in January, because only then will the public
have an opportunity for meaningful comment on
the real maps that are under consideration.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,
Mary. We appreciate you being here. Henry
Kelley is our next speaker, and following
Mr. Kelley, Patricia Rowe. Henry Kelley and
then Patricia Rowe.

Mr. Kelley, thank you for being here
tonight for taking your time, and you are
recognized.

MR. KELLEY: Thank you, Senator. On
behalf of the Committee I saw you yesterday 1In
Tallahassee and had the chance to address it
and said 1 would be back in Ft. Walton with a
few comments.

On behalf of the Ft. Walton Beach Tea
Party I am still disappointed to see criticisms
leveled at the Committee.

I appreciate that we are starting with a
blank slate. 1 mentioned yesterday that I have

gone in and used the software. 1 have drawn
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Districts.

The 120 House Districts, it is a little
daunting, but there is no reason that we cannot
-- that any group that has a staff can --
everyone can participate in this after about 15
minutes of using the software. So a few
particulars.

Mary Blackwell just mentioned the Fair
Districts was approved by 63 percent, and
Senator, you referred to the Constitution which
I jJust happen as a Tea Party guy to bring one
with me, and as | have been drawing up the maps
I call attention to the Tenth Amendment of the
Constitution which reserves the power of this
to the states.

And 1t iIs my belief that there is going to
be a major conflict between the Fair Districts
Amendment and some of the Federal rulings that
have resulted in gerrymandering districts, and
I encourage you to listen to the will of the
voters because this has now been codified iIn
our Constitution.

And I would ask that you take the will of

the Florida voters into consideration above
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that of what a Federal Court Judge says in
keeping with the Tenth Amendment to the
Constitution, and nowhere in the United States
Constitution does it give the Federal
government the right to draw our districts.

Now, a few particulars for the northwest
Florida area. As | said, 1 have drawn the
maps several times, and particularly as we look
at the Senate and House Districts, and as we
look at the maps, one of the things that the
Fair District Amendments does say that the
media has made a lot of comments on is the use
of geographic boundaries.

But Amendments V and VI also say existing
political boundaries, and 1 would ask you to
consider that due to the unique nature of our
geography that our interests have more in
common horizontally across northwest Florida
than we do vertically.

In other words, Pensacola beach, Ft.
Walton Beach and Panama City Beach, they all
have something in common, and despite what our
friend from Daytona Beach says, you know, we
are kind of proud of this stretch of beaches,

and 1f you are not familiar with northwest
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Florida along 1-10 is mostly agricultural and
rural iInterests.

And 1 believe in looking at the
populations that our region should be drawn
horizontally, both within the Florida House
Districts and within the Florida Senate
Districts.

And on that note 1 wish to thank the
Committee for their time and the hard work. We
intend to participate on behalf of Tea Parties
around the state at as many of the hearings as
possible.

We will be submitting plans on-line and
like 1 said, 1 am thankful we are starting with
a blank slate and 1 appreciate your time.

Thank you, Senator.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Mr. Kelley. Next is Patricia Rowe and after
Ms. Rowe, Jan Dale.

MR. ROWE: I am Patricia Rowe, and 1 pass.
The people have pretty much said more than 1
could possibly.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: As we say in the Senate,
those who pass give eloquent testimony. Thank

you. Jane Dale, no, no, no. Let"s not let
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this become a habit. Anybody who wants to
speak.

MS. DALE: I am just going to do it right
here.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Jane, we can"t have you
do 1t there because we want to carry you on
statewide television. No pressure. No
pressure, and after Ms. Dale is Edward
Armbruster, please.

MS. DALE: It is too bad you know me so
well, sir.

First 1 want to thank everybody for being
here tonight, and please, you all, it is very,
very important that we, the grassroots as we
always say, we really need to come with an open
mind and learn and listen to what everybody has
to say tonight and the other meetings, and that
IS very very important and 1 hope we all use
both of our ears. Thank you all very much.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you, Jane. Next,
Edward Armbruster and following Ed"s comments,
we have, | believe i1t i1s Al, K-a-u-s-e-s.

MR. KAUSES: Al Kauses.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Al Kauses, of course. |1

am sorry, Al, my handwriting Is even worse than
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yours. Ed, please go ahead.

MR. ARMBRUSTER: Thank you, Senator, 1 am
going to give back my time because your staff
out here answered my questions, and I thank
you .

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, sir,
we appreciate your being here. Al, you are up,
followed by Howard Hill. Thank you very much
for being here tonight, Al, we appreciate your
presence and you are recognized.

MR. KAUSES: Well, thank you, and I thank
you all, ladies and gentlemen, for coming up
here and giving us a chance to yap before you.

I am here with the Florida Panhandle
Patriots as well as the Republican Party, and
as well as me, 23-year citizen of Okaloosa
County.

And we have one minor little thing here in
Okaloosa County that 1 would like to see taken
care of 1f at all possible.

We have got a little tail that runs in
Fred Drake"s district out of Defuniak down here
in Okaloosa County, and being on just west of
Hurlburt here and I am on the shore side there,

I get caught up In this three or four-mile
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segment down there.

And Brad gives me great service, and I
thank you, sir, and Matt, who"s district kind
of runs up to that point and he has to jump
over my house to get to the rest of his
district, west of there, gives me great service
also. Thank you.

And we -- 1 would like to see that taken
care of. 1 think that would be very easy for
the Redistricting Committee and everybody else
to look Into that and take care of it.

I totally agree with the beaches are the
beaches and the north end are the north end,
and I think those representing both up north
and down south have that in common and they can
take care of i1t a lot better.

I haven™t had a chance to check out the
rest of the state, but 1 am going to do so,
your Redistricting cite is outstanding. It is
a little more construction coming up on it, but
I am going to delve into the south end down
there as well.

I think we will look at Daytona Beach as a
matter of fact. Again, | want to thank you

all, Magnolia Grill is outstanding, and enjoy
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yourselves while you are up here and thank you,
Senator.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, Al,
we appreciate your testimony. Next we will be
privileged to hear from Howard Hill.

MR. HILL: As a retired politician, 1
pass.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Howard passes, and next
we hear from Judy Burn-Riley, and following
Judy Burn-Riley, we will hear from Don Riley.

MS. BURN-RILEY: No relation.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: No relation, at least as
far as we know. Mr. Riley is from Miramar
Beach, and Judy, of course, is from Niceville.

MS. BURN-RILEY: 1 am from Niceville, born
and raised In Okaloosa. First of all 1 just
want to say thank you for coming here.

Personally, | haven®t seen so many elected
Democrats in Okaloosa County in, oh, too long,
and therein lies the issue, | suppose.

I want to thank you also for not skipping
Ft. Walton. 1 realize your Chair has a certain
bit weight and usually they go from Pensacola
to Panama City, and we have to travel i1t we

want anybody to hear what we have to say. So 1
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really appreciate what -- that you are here.

I have the same thing to say iIn terms of
the maps as has been said before. It iIs very
hard -- 1 went on the website. |1 found it a
little cumbersome quite frankly, and every
place it said it is under construction, it is
going to get better, trust us.

And so I will go back to 1t to try to see
what kind of input I can put to -- and put in
the numbers and see 1T we can get rid of the
rat tails and the packing and the stacking and
the things that have been done in the past.

I would caution you that the $30 million
as | understand is what the redistricting costs
us, has been allotted in a budget that has
taken money from teachers and from a lot of
different areas that are very dear to our
heart.

IT that is an incorrect figure, 1
apologize, but there is a lot of money involved
in the hearings that you are going around 26
places in the state, and I would hope that, I
don"t know if, now that you have come to Ft.
Walton, 1 don"t care where you go, but if you

-- 1f you can cut those down.

-5491
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I am concerned about the timing, excuse
me, but I am a little skeptical. When someone
says they are dragging their feet because they
don®t want to get finished until 1t Is so close
to the deadline that they won"t have lines in
place.

So only an incumbent will have a real
advantage or will have a certain advantage and
that people who want to run won"t know what the
districts are, they won*t know where the lines
are, and a lot of time is being taken up by 26
public hearings.

And while I applaud the openness, 1 would
urge you to be ready on January when you do go,
be ready with your committees. Don"t -- don"t
-- don"t make them right, make them wrong and
that is what I would like to say, thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much, Judy. Appreciate your testimony, and
next we will hear from Don Riley and following
Mr. Riley will Susan Harris be on deck and
ready, please.

Thank you, Mr. Riley, for being here, and
you are recognized.

MR. RILEY: Thank you, sir. Thank you,
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Senator Gaetz and the other members of the
Committee, both for your public service as well
as for allowing me to offer my thoughts here
tonight regarding Florida®s redistricting
process.

My name is Don Riley, and 1 live iIn
Miramar Beach. 1 am President of the Grand
Dunes Condominium Association.

I have one simple request for the
Committee. Please keep the legislative
districts iIn northwest Florida as close as you
can to where they are today.

Our Constitution requires that no district
lines be drawn to favor or disfavor any
political party or an incumbent, and to me the
solution seems rather simple. Move the
district lines as little as possible and little
credence can be given to any charges that lines
were moved for anyone®"s benefit.

Further, the current legislative district
lines have worked well. In the Florida Senate,
the similar towns along the Gulf of Mexico and
south of the Eglin Reservation, such as Miramar
Beach, Niceville, Shalimar, Navarre, Pensacola

Beach have one Senator whom we like,
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incidentally, Don Gaetz.

The similar towns in the northern
panhandle, Milton, Defuniak Springs, Pace and
Crestview are represented by Senator Evers.

Currently the boundary between Senator
Gaetz and Senator Evers® districts runs
parallel to the Gulf of Mexico as others have
noted before me, creating a coastal district
and a northern district.

And 1 think 1t is far preferable to having
the boundary between their two districts
running vertically, perpendicularly to the
gulf, creating eastern and western districts
instead.

Radically changing the district lines
would be devastating to our coastal community
interests and would weakened our representation
in the Legislature, and i1t would similarly
disserve the interests of our neighbors living
in the northern part of this part of the
Florida panhandle.

I would urge you, please, keep the
district lines as they are now. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Mr. Riley. We appreciate your testimony.
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Next, Suzanne Harris, please, Ms. Harris, and
following Ms. Harris, Ed Winkelseth. Suzanne,
thank you for being here tonight and we
appreciate your testimony before the Committee.
You are recognized.

MS. HARRIS: Thank you. 1 want to thank
all of ya"ll for coming. | think it is a
wonderful open process and that makes me feel
so good about our government that people care
to hear what we have to say.

My name s Suzanne Harris, and I am a
Walton County resident, and I represent
Edgewater Beach Condominium Association Resort.

As a local business woman I see how
economically diverse the panhandle of Florida
is. 1 live in a condominium on the Gulf Coast.

When 1 walk outside of my condominium and
I stand on the beach and I look up and down the
beach as far as 1 can see in any direction, |
see like property of mine, condominiums, rental
resorts, houses, but they are all basically the
same.

IT I were north of the bay 1 would see a
totally different geographical dimension. |

would see farm land instead of sand and 1 would
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see cattle and chickens and 1 would see a lot
of different things that are due to farming and
not that relate to the sand and the beach and
the tourist industry that we have here.

Currently the legislative districts are
mostly drawn In a way that recognizes the
uniqueness of our coastal areas. For example,
Senator Gaetz is my Senator. He is always
there for the coastal community. It doesn"t
matter when we ask him to come, day or night,
he i1s always available. Most of us have his
cell phone number plugged into our cell phone
and I can tell you, he will tell you, 1 have
called him many a night saying, help, we need
something done for us.

He understands our district. His district
line is along the coast from Pensacola, Ft.
Walton, Destin, South Walton and into Panama
City. He understands us. | can"t say that to
you enough.

Likewise, Senator Evers represents the
northern portion of Walton County, along with
the northern portions of our panhandle
counties.

This should not change. Please, I am

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1286



=

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

36

begging you, do not replace the current
district lines with a strict adherence to
county boundaries, instead, link together the
cities, the towns and the communities along the
coast wherever possible for Legislative and
Congressional Districts.

This will also allow you to link together
communities in the northern panhandle that
share the same economic interests.

The Florida Constitution requires the
Legislature to respect geographical boundaries
when drawing districts. In the Florida
panhandle the most significant boundary is
created by the vast land owned by the United
States Department of Defense north of Freeport,
Niceville and Navarre.

IT the Legislature will draw the districts
either north or south of the military land, the
district community south along the coast and
north along the Alabama border will be best
represented.

I thank all of you. 1 used to live in Ft.
Myers, Florida, 1 still have a condo in Sanibel
Island, so 1 am very familiar with your

district.
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I just came back from Palm Beach, not West
Palm, but Palm Beach, and 1 think all of ya"ll
that live along there understand that everybody
doesn"t have the same interest, and the beach
communities are only iInterested in bringing
tourism here and prospering for businesses and
the northern part of our district is interested
in totally different areas, and it would be
such a shame to combine them.

Now, I am going to leave you with one last
thing. 1 live in Walton County on the beach.
All of my County Commissioners live over an
hour away from Walton County that represent
Walton County.

It is very hard when you go to a County
Commissioner meeting in Walton County and you
have people from Paxton and Mosey Head and
Freeport on the Commission. They don"t really
have the true understanding, and 1 can tell you
this firsthand because I am also on the Tourist
Development Council of Walton County.

I can tell you firsthand, It is very
difficult for them to understand the problems
that we in the beach front communities have.

Thank you.
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CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,
Suzanne. Mr. Winkelseth, please, and following
Ed, Brenda Hall, Brenda Hall would be on deck,

please. Mr. Winkelseth, thank you for being

here.

MR. WINKELSETH: 1 am Ed Winkelseth, |
live over in Shalimar. 1 appreciate seeing all
of you folks. 1 am a 31-year -- 31 and-a-half

years in the military taught me to have fun.

So 1 am going to throw a hand grenade just like
I did at the staff meetings, and say | disagree
with all of the folks.

I believe iIn vertical alignment of the
counties. All I —- 1 live iIn the south end and
all 1 hear about i1s the beaches and we got to
refurbish the beaches, and we got to do this
for the tourists.

I believe if our Representatives are
representing north to south in the county, they
will learn the south part. They will know the
north part, and they will be fighting for their
whole counties.

I have got things drawn up just with
numbers. 1 won"t hit a whole lot, but the big

thing is, Escambia County has got two
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Representatives.

It would be slightly less than the ideal
district population. Hopefully the Committee
iIs smart enough to realize ideal is something
to go with.

Somebody like Matt, he picked, he would be
24,000 people over, but he Is young and he can
handle that kind of thing. Brad Drake, he
wouldn®t have to run out to see Al. | wouldn™t
want to go see Al anyhow, but I have laid it
out, 1 have laid out the numbers. 1 have laid
out the differences.

The biggest thing is, we are counties, our
Representatives should be fighting for the
whole county, not for the beach people, not for
the tourism.

We have got people that live here year
round, and 1 did the same thing with the
Senators® list and I changed the one for
Congressman Miller, took one county away so
maybe he will be available to conduct Town Hall
meetings In our various counties.

Like 1 say, 1 just believe we got to get
over this north end of the county and south

end. 1 went to high school in that quote,
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unquote, conservative district down there in
Broward County, south Broward. |1 learned
enough to get out of Florida because them
people are flaming Liberal.

No offense to you flaming Liberals on the
panel, and 1 went in the military for 31
and-a-half years and then eight and-a-half
years civil service. 1 screamed at the TV and
I did everything.

When 1 finally retired I ran into guys
like Henry. We still disagree a lot. Al, the
other folks, folks in the Republican Party, and
I decided to get involved.

Five years ago you wouldn®t have seen me
at one of these meetings. 1 would have been
sitting home drinking a beer and cussing you
people out for not doing what I think should be
done. So as a result I have laid it out.

You can look at i1t, Henry will probably
crucity me when 1 leave here but that is
another story.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Ed, thank you very much.

MR. WINKELSETH: 1 have got it on a USB,
too.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Okay. Thank you, thank
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you, and we will make this information
available to all members of the public.

Brenda Hall i1s next. Can we have a little
order there in south Florida? Thank you.

Brenda Hall i1s next and following
Ms. Hall, Mayor Sam Seevers from the City of
Destin.

Brenda, you are recognized. Thank you for
being here tonight.

MS. HALL: Brenda Hall. 1 have lived in
this area for 45 years, and 1 would like to
reiterate just a little bit about the maps not
being available and the public hearings before
the maps.

I think the public has already voted and
provided you with the guidelines for
redistricting. We paid for the software and
these engineers that are going to run it to
build new districts.

Until you provide the maps for comment,
this hearing process is a waste of precious
time and money. However, 1 would like to use
some of you time and my money.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Yes, for a sham it is

pretty well attended.

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1292



[EEY

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

MS. HALL: Well, i1t is a shame, because on
June 8th, 1 would like to remind you that you
came and met with the Democrat Women®s Club and
that you agreed that we would have hearings
like this after the maps were made.

So I just wanted to remind you that you
made that commitment, and -- but what I would
like to tell you all is what hasn"t been said
is that what we voted for, what the public
voted for, what the citizens wanted was a fair
process.

I think that came out in fair districting,
and what we feel i1s always seems to be the most
important thing to you folks in the Legislature
is what the party wants, not what the citizens
want.

It 1s what the party wants, and | am here
to say that if -- and Mr. Gaetz said that when
his Senate Committee took this up we would not
be using party modifiers in deciding who was
going to go in which little box on the page.

And 1 would like some sort of a commitment
from the House of Representatives that they
would do the same thing.

IT we don"t have -- if we take away and

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

42

Page 1293



=

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

43

make ourselves color blind to red or blue, 1
think that everybody in the state would agree
that they are getting a fair process.

We are just working with numbers. |
realize that we have to work with other
modifiers. We have to work with
African-American and Hispanic modifiers, but
there is nowhere iIn our Constitution that says
we have to work with Republicans, Democrats,
Independent modifiers.

So 1T we just got rid of those modifiers I
feel like we would get fair districts. We
would get rid of all of those little tail ends,
those little rat ends, those little squirrels
over on the side, and 1 think that both our
Legislators and the citizens would be happier,
and I know the Supervisor of Elections would be
a lot happier.

So that i1s my comment and 1 would like to
thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Ms. Hall. We appreciate your testimony. Next
we will hear from Mayor Sam Seevers from the
City of Destin and following the Mayor, William

White, please.
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Madam Mayor, thank you for being here and
you are recognized.

MAYOR SEEVERS: Thank you so much for
allowing me this opportunity to speak. First
of all 1 would like to thank each and every one
of you guys for all of the time that you are
spending up here and hopefully you will be able
to go fishing in the morning, red snapper are
biting right now like crazy. So if you get
that opportunity, do that and we have got
fabulous restaurants all over this area, so
please take advantage of it. We could
certainly use the income, especially after the
oil spill last year.

Senator Gaetz, again, thank you so much
for your leadership on this Committee. We
greatly appreciate it. On behalf of the Destin
City Council, we respectfully request that in
our city, our small city of 12,305 people, that
we have one House District, one Congressional
District and one Senate District.

Even though we are a very, very small
city, an example of one of the issues that we
have i1s Congressman Southerland has about 19

homes iIn our city iIn his district, and
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Congressman Miller has all of the rest.

It may not -- it may seem like a really
good thing, having all of that representation,
but what happens is when individual citizens go
to vote, they get very confused. And iIn our
last election we had people standing in City
Hall wanting to know why they couldn®t vote
when their neighbors across the street voted,
you know, for certain individuals and it just
makes it difficult.

And if you look on the maps i1t is really
interesting how they have these little tiny
juggernauts drawn on 1t. So we are just asking
it to clean 1t up, no one is asking for a
particular person, a particular party,
anything, just that the City of Destin iIs under
one House District, under one Senate District
and under one Congressional District.

So | appreciate your time this evening and
you guys have a good night.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you, Madam Mayor,
we appreciate your testimony. William White is
next and following Mr. White"s testimony, we
will hear from Mary Nielsan.

Mr. White, thank you for being here, and
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you are recognized.

MR. WHITE: My pleasure. Just as a favor
to me, would all of the Democrats on the panel
please raise your left hands? Okay. That
wasn"t exactly an aphrodisiac, but as a Liberal
who has lived in Okaloosa County for 35 years |1
can assure you it is a difficult row to hoe.

What 1 would like to say, it is probably
early on in the game if we were to really
change the system out of this castle like
grotesqueries that get to be districts
sometimes and we have got a lot, a lot more
shovels full after tonight.

Perhaps seeing as no one can comment, |1
would just like to ask the question
rhetorically, perhaps if we were sinical we
would say what we are doing here tonight is
rearranging the seats on the Titanic.

Particularly in a nation where democracy
has been shredded to the point where, for
example, it takes $80 million to run for a
Senate Seat.

We are missing something, and I hope that
when i1t all comes out iIn the wash, mixes into

your equation, because the popular
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misconception is that, you know, we do have the
best government money can buy. Let"s prove
they are wrong. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Mr. White. We appreciate your testimony. Mary
Nielsan i1s next and following Ms. Nielsan, Jim
Bagby, also with the City of Destin.

Ms. Nielsan, you are recognized. Thank
you for being here.

MS. NIELSAN: Thank you, thank you. Thank
you all for coming. This is a wonderful
opportunity. My name is Mary Nielsan, and I am
a resident of Walton County, In a community
along the beaches of south Walton.

We would like, many of us in this area
would like to have our beaches along the Gulf
of Mexico more contiguous with our
representation, and although that differs for
many people who spoke earlier, 1 believe that
there is opportunity to align things more
horizontally as compared to vertically.

I don"t see that. Another gentleman spoke
about it being incongruous and we should all
run north, south, but there iIs opportunity to

be had by those communities that differ so
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greatly amongst themselves from the north to
the south.

So sometimes you can look at something
that seems wrong or seems to be divisive, and
instead, you can take that and make a wonderful
opportunity out of 1t. So I would like our
leaders to be along the beaches where they have
common interest, common problems, and they are
working with all of these communities towards a
similar goal instead of being fractionated.

So that was my theory and I think we
should look horizontally a little bit. Thank
you .

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Ms. Nielsan. We appreciate your testimony, and
Jim Bagby, a member of the City Council, City
of Destin, thank you for your service to our
community, and you are recognized.

COUNCILMAN BAGBY: Wwell, thank you,
Senator Gaetz, and 1 want to thank you. One
thing you didn"t mention IS you were
Dr. Tibbett"s predecessor, and one of the
reasons we have great schools in this county is
in large part due to your efforts and your work

and | just wanted to thank you for everything
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you have done for this county and for this
school i1n particular where two of my daughters
graduated.

I would like to thank all of you for
coming from all across the state to take time
out of your busy summer schedule. Some of you
may be off or whatever, and to come and just
spend a little time with us to learn our
interests, | appreciate it.

My name is Jim Bagby. 1 do sit on the
Destin City Council, our Mayor, our beautiful
Mayor, just spoke. I am also -- that is my non
paying job.

My paying job is I am the Town Manager of
Rosemary Beach, a little community down iIn
Walton County, as another bench front community
and so I go about 30 miles every day along the
beach, along the beautiful beaches of northwest
Florida.

And your job is difficult. 1 know It 1is,
because you have a lot of things you have to
deal with. You have to balance populations,
you have to look at geographic boundaries, you
have to make sure everything is contiguous.

You have to protect the rights of
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minorities, you have to look at communities of
common interest and existing political
boundaries and make sure these districts are
compact, and a million other things, and 1
understand that.

You know, Representative Ford would
understand where Mayor Seevers and | are coming
from as a former member of the Florida League
of Cities, because Destin is, we have got 12 or
13,000 people, and 1 live in Steve
Southerland®s Congressional District, and 1 am
happy to live in Steve Southerland®s
Congressional District and 1 live in Marti
Coley"s House District.

And 1 am glad to live In Marti Coley"s
House District, even though she lives about two
hours east of me, okay, but if 1 go about a
mile to the west of me I would be in Matt
Gaetz"s, excuse me, Legislative District, and 1
would be in Jeff Miller"s Congressional
District.

And a town that small shouldn®t be split
that many ways, that many times. And so |
would ask you to really look at putting all of

Destin in one district.
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The other thing I would ask you to do is
put a lot of weight on these communities of
common interest. | think there have been some
people that alluded to it, you know, If you
represent a beach community in south Florida,
just think if you went due east or due west for
40 miles into that, into the heartland of
Florida as opposed to right there in Pinellas
County or around the Tampa Bay or whatever.

Entirely different issue, entirely
different issues being dealt with by those
Representatives.

We have three main communities of interest
in northwest Florida. We have our agriculture
on the north, we have our military slash
industrial, but mainly military in the center
and we do have our tourism, and while | respect
the gentleman®s view that, well, you know, just
keep it in Okaloosa County or keep it in Santa
Rosa County, that makes your job harder, okay,
because that makes you a mile wide and a
quarter of an inch thin, when you are trying to
represent interests, our interests in
Tallahassee and you have to be an expert in

military affairs, you have to be an expert in
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tourism, you have to be an expert in
agriculture.

You have to be an expert in 40 other
different topics, that, that is not fair to you
and that is not fair to us, fair to us, the
people that we -- you are representing.

So I would ask that you not spread
yourself too thin, that you keep Senator Evers
in the north who does a great job representing
agricultural interests and the interest of our
farmers, and you keep Senator Gaetz in the
south representing the beach communities, the
military and they both do a great job with the
military, but we are communities of common
interest and 1 just ask that you put at least
as much weight, If not more on that, than you
do on some artificial geographic boundary that
was created 150 years ago. Thank you very
much.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,
Councilman. Next we will hear from Charlotte
Flynt, and after Ms. Flynt speaks we will hear
from Christy Walker, please.

Ms. Flynt, I am sorry, 1 didn"t give

Ms. Flynt as much warning as 1 would have
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liked, but we are delighted to have you here,
and we welcome your testimony. You are
recognized.

MS. FLYNT: My name is Charlotte Flynt. 1
am In Precinct 29, Walton County, and a lot of
things have been said tonight and I concur with
the vast majority of them, but 1 do hope that
you will also keep your hearts that in the
south part of the counties not only do we have
tourism, we have permanent residents, too, who
fund these counties. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Ms. Flynt. Christy Walker, Ms. Walker?

MS. WALKER: 1 will pass, thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Ms. Walker, thanks for being here tonight.
Next, Morgan Doolittle and following
Morgan Doolittle, and I think it is Ann, is it

Ann Hering, yes, it is. Morgan Doolittle.

Thank you very much for being here,

Mr. Doolittle, and we appreciate your testimony
and you are recognized.

MR. DOOLITTLE: Well, I actually live in
Panama City, Florida, but 1 work over here in

Okaloosa County, and 1 probably wouldn®t have
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come up and said anything, but 1 wanted to go
on record saying thank you very much for doing
this.

But also I wanted to support that the
Council member®s testimony there from Destin.

I have heard a lot of different ideas about the
vertical separation and all of the ways to
break the districts down, but 1 would also like
to, | guess ask that when we do go through this
redistricting process, that we -- we cut off
those little tidbits, and, you know, you know,
like how neighborhoods have sort of been broken
up.-

And 1 think that is, when you look at some
of these maps, you wonder how were these drawn
and maybe ya"ll weren"t there. 1 think when
you look at them yourselves, and you go, well,
some of this needs to be fixed obviously, and I
would just like to go on record as requesting
that and supporting his testimony right there.
That was excellent.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you, Mr. Doolittle.
We appreciate it. And for the record, none of
us were here. That is a great thing about term

limits, we can blame our predecessors and our
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successors. Ann Hering, Ms. Hering? We will
come back to Ann Hering 1If she had to step out
for a moment.

Next, Brenda Rees, Ms. Rees. It is great
to see you again and thank you very much for
being here tonight. You are recognized to
speak before the Committee, and following
Ms. Rees by the way, is Vickie Ritchson.

Ms. Ritchson, if you could be on deck.

MS. REESE: Thank you, Senator Gaetz and
Committee members and Representatives. | am a
Walton County native. 1 was born in Defuniak
Springs but I live on the beach off of 30A iIn
South Walton, so I know the area well.

I also would like to let you know that
haven®t been here before that Walton County is
the eighth county created in Florida, nearly
200 years old.

But thank you for holding these 26 or so
redistricting meetings across the state. They
are very helpful and will help Floridians and
you as we craft our fair districts.

I would like to ask you to consider
perhaps adding two or five super regional

meetings at the end so that those of us that
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are here early might benefit from all of the 26
Committee groups that testify so that we might
update our comments somewhat.

You have provided maps and 1 thank you.

By taking these current maps into consideration
with the census numbers and extensive
redistricting guidelines, an individual can
quickly see where some changes need to be made.

Congressional District I is 2,000 short,
and Congressional District Il i1s 45,000 over.
That is 696,000 ideal district. Obviously,
changes need to be made.

You have also offered generous tools for
individuals to construct their own maps. |
hope to do so soon. Thank you.

A quick look at the State House and Senate
maps you have provided, along with the numbers
indicate change. The 10 percent deviation
should be utilized here. Thomas Hanna was a
Speaker of the House, by the way, from Pointe
Washington, some of you might know that.

Congressional District | should take back
Blue Water Bay and consolidate as much as
Okaloosa County as possible. Congressional

District Il may need to continue to look to its
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historical roots. South Walton even has a long
history of being with the county next to 1It,
Bay County for a long time.

So keeping South Walton with Congressional
District 11 would meet not only the new state
requirements of compactness, but also Federal
redistricting guidelines of ensuring one
person, one vote. Following the Voting Rights
Act of 1964, as amended iIn 1965, being compact
and contiguous to name some of the guidelines
used for many years in case law by the United
States Department of Justice.

Two new areas that are very blue, this is
a map that 1 printed off your website so it is
very helpful to go on to that Florida
Redistricting.org and people can go to that and
print material and see all of the very helpful
U-Tube explanations of how to draw their maps.

But if you look on this map, it is very
obvious, there is a very blue area that is
extremely over populated that the new
Congressional Districts, perhaps one of them
may need to come from that area. Maybe the
Orlando and the Tampa areas particularly look

like that is where you might need to be working
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on those Congressional Districts.

It 1s practicable to make substantive
comments now. It will be good to wait and see
what some of the citizens come up with In areas
we aren*t familiar with, especially the House
and Senate Districts where we can have a
10 percent deviation.

In the Congressional Districts it might be
a little bit hard because there is only that
one vote that separates them. So once you get
to Pensacola you can®t go any further west, and
so, but again, with the State and House Seats
having a 10 percent deviation, that will help
us later on to do that.

So 1 look forward to meeting you with
again and participating and continuing dialogue
to produce a fair redistricting plan for
Florida. Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Ms. Rees, and Ms. Rees makes a good point when
she asks about being able to update your
comments based on information that might be
presented on the web, or presented by
Legislators in Committee.

You will have the opportunity to do that
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either by e-mail and the e-mail lists e-mail

addresses for the Senate and House Committees
are listed on the brochure that you got when

you came in, or the Snail Mail addresses are

listed as well.

And as a previous speaker from the
Democratic Committee indicated, there will be
additional opportunities for public Input after
these hearings are concluded and after maps are
presented.

Thank you very much, Ms. Rees.

Ms. Ritchson, it is good to see you again.

MS. RITCHSON: It is good to see you
again, Senator Gaetz.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: And thank you very much
for being here. You are recognized.

MS. RITCHSON: Thank you. I am Vickie
Ritchson and 1 am a concerned citizen. That is
how 1 am here today. 1 live in the city of
Niceville.

I happen to be running for the City
Council i1n the election in July, but I am just
here as a citizen right now.

I jJust read the article in the newspaper

that Senator Gaetz had put in and felt like 1
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needed to be here and be involved, and 1 want
to thank you for this opportunity and 1 want to
say, you know, I hadn®"t come here with any
preconceived notions, but it is wonderful to
listen to the people®s perspectives to gather
my knowledge to be able to go later to the
website and give an informed opinion.

And 1 was listening to the vertical and
horizontal and 1 can see both points, and 1 was
thinking that 1t might be difficult 1if some
line took Eglin and split it down the middle,
that you might have two Representatives working
together, but at the same time you might end up
with two people butting heads.

And so iIn that respect | could see that
boundary lines being continuous in a certain
like category would make 1t much easier for
representation, making -- | draw maps for my
job.

I work for a contractor on Base, and part
of what I do is draw footprints for the
missions out on the property that they do, and
in that 1 do a lot of map drawing. So I am
looking forward to going out to your software

and playing with 1t, and 1 do know i1t iIs much
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easier for me to draw to boundaries that are
locateable, a river, a road, an air space,
county line.

And that makes sense to me, and most
cities are not split by county lines. So
following, following boundaries makes sense to
not split groups of people with like iInterests.

I had a misconception maybe like other
people that the last time we had a
redistricting, that it was a power play for
political power play to grab new areas with new
people and for there to be a juggling of
Republican and Democratic powers, and 1 feel
like your process here is going to be a more
transparent process that will prevent people
from feeling that they are being over powered
by some political game.

The logical lines, the military presence,
the beaches and tourist industry are all
pertinent things to consider, and I will be
taking the rest of the comments that come today
and what you present for us in software and
maps, and 1 will be involved iIn that and make
some comments at a later time that where 1 have

an informed decision.
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But I do appreciate the process you have
here, opening it up to just normal people as
well as power -- people in power for the cities
and the Representatives, but | was just very
impressed that there were so many of you who
came out tonight for us.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you,

Ms. Ritchson, appreciate it very much. Next we
will hear from Aaron Thrush, Aaron Thrush, and
following Aaron Thrush, from Jeanne Ashley,
please. Mr. Thrush, are you here?

MR. THRUSH: 1 pass.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, sir,
for being here tonight. Jeanne Ashley,

Ms. Ashley, and following Ms. Ashley, Ben
White, Mr. White. If you will be on deck.

Ms. Ashley, thank you for being here, you
are recognized.

MS. ASHLEY: Thank you, 1 appreciate it.

I have lived all over the country, mostly in

cities, so | have not really been part of the
gerrymandering until now, and 1 found out
accidentally the night before we were to vote
for our delegates, 1 had been, immediately when

I moved here, registered to vote, joined a
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political party, got to know the people, was
anxious to vote for the delegates.

The night before I was to go to Crestview
I thought I found out that 1 was in that little
split of land right off of 98 that is iIn a
totally different district.

And then I was expected to go to
Tallahassee to vote for people I have never met
and had no clue, you know, who they were and
certainly was going to be out voted.

I felt disenfranchised. 1 felt taken,
really. 1 understand that the beach issues are
much different from the northern part, and I
would like to keep that maintained, but to have
an area so spread out that you go from Destin
to Tallahassee, that gives us no representation
whatsoever.

We are totally outvoted. So if you can
possibly do something with, 1 don®t know,
Walton, Okaloosa, maybe even closer to
Pensacola, at least i1t is not 150 miles away,
you know, I would very much like to have a
personal relationship with my representation
rather than somebody who is way off in the wild

somewhere. Thank you very much. Appreciate
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CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you, Ms. Ashley.

We appreciate you being here tonight. Next may
we please hear from Ben White? Ben White?

Mr. White, thank you for coming all the
way down from Crestview. We appreciate you
being here, and you are recognized.

MR. WHITE: Thank you, Representatives,
and Senators as well, that make up our
government for the State of Florida.

One of the things from representing the
North Okaloosa Republican Club in Crestview,
one of the things that the north looks at if
you sat in the middle of 85, on the left is
Brad Drake, 1 mean, on the right is Brad Drake
and on the left is Doug Broxson, and then we
have Senator Evers.

One of the three common, one of the common
denominator between those three Representatives
is they all live in our district. They know
what we are dealing with. They understand it.

IT I go to the south 1 do have Matt Gaetz,
Mr. Gaetz, and Don Gaetz, that represent the
south.

They live down there. They understand the

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491
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rules and problems that those individuals have.
So being in Crestview, it doesn"t matter
whether you turn right or turn left, those two
individuals understand the north end of the
county.

They live 1t, they understand it, most of
them is also born and raised in that area, or
grown up from there. 1 moved In from Crestview
from Panama City Beach after serving 23 years
in the military and 1 made i1t my home, but I
can talk to all three of those individuals and
they all understand what we are going through.

Now, if you do go vertical, not to say
Mr. Gaetz isn"t a smart man, but his whole idea
is that the tourist industry down there and he
can flip it down there, but at the same token I
want to say this, every one of you represent
every one of us.

At the end of the day i1t iIs your vote that
represents the State of Florida, whether you
are a Liberal, whether you are a Democrat,
whether you are a Republican or Conservative,
whatever i1t be, we are looking for you to lead
the State of Florida, so thank you, sir.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,
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Mr. White, we appreciate you. Our next two
testifiers are Mike Brown and Kim Christopher.
Mike Brown and then if Kim Christopher would be
on deck, please.

Mr. Brown? Mike Brown? If not, Kim
Christopher, are you ready? May we take you
next? And following Kim Christopher we will
hear from Diana Van Oeveren.

MS. CHRISTOPHER: Good evening. Thank you
all for being here. 1 really appreciate seeing
all of these great faces. |1 know what you do
for us iIs a tough job, it is a good job and
often not rewarding.

What you are doing here should be very
rewarding for what you are doing for the state
of Florida and the citizenry.

I have lived iIn Florida since 1986. 1
married a native. 1 came from Texas and 1 now
call myself a Floridian after all these years,
and Senator Montford, thank you, I have a
doctor in my family because of you as
Superintendent of Leon County Schools.

I have been through this process three
times. this is the third time since 1986.

This is probably the most clear and fluid
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process since | have watched it happen, and I
know that the media, the system is better, more
transparent because we do have things like the
Internet.

We do have more conversation, we do have
hopefully all of the papers on board, but one
thing that 1 noticed when they were doing the
census, | own a piece of rental property. When
they did the census they counted my renter.

My renter no longer lives in the State of
Florida. That happens frequently when you are
in areas that surround military bases. It is a
very transient population that 1 don®t think
has been considered.

The renters that I have currently will not
be here to vote in the next election, though
they are registered to vote. They are required
by their military mission for their time here.

That is causing issues that 1 can see. We
have across the state of Florida, specifically
the panhandle, a large number of people that
are on a limited military mission. It could be
as short as eight months, or as long as 18 to
24 months.

Those are for the people being trained in
FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491
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the special missions at Eglin, Tyndall, White,
name them all.

I would ask, caution you to please
consider that demographic when you are drawing
these lines, because what we are having now is
the influx coming from the new mission at Eglin
of a large number of people.

Those persons were not counted in the
census. So your numbers immediately are
inaccurate. So with that 1 would thank you
very much again for your time for being here,
for your tremendous effort and I look forward
to following your progress. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you,

Ms. Christopher. Thank you very much. Very
thoughtful testimony. Diana, are you ready?
Very good, and following Diana, Dick Troop.
Thank you for being here tonight and you are
recognized.

MS. VAN OEVEREN: Diana Van Oeveren, |
live in Destin, and 1 would like to reiterate
what Mayor Seevers and our Destin Councilman
said about a small community that usually talks
to each other should be able to talk to each

other about who to vote for, and it didn"t work
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this time, either in the House race or the
Congressional race.

So, and as an example, 1 wanted to talk
only about House District 7, Marti Coley"s
district. It would be 106 miles for a Destin
constituent to drive to Marianna to contact
Ms. Coley about anything.

IT you went 100 miles in the other
direction or north, you would be in Alabama.
So 1 think you ought to keep that in mind.

The media covers areas perhaps differently
than county lines, differently than district
lines, but I think that may be something that
you should consider as much as you can. Is
Ms. Coley covered in the Panama City or the
Marianna paper? 1 don"t know, because I don"t
even have access to those papers unless | can
find them on-line. They are not sold iIn
Destin.

Our local newspaper tries to cover about
three counties, but that is only about half of
Marti Coley"s district. Her district includes
nine counties. The main parts of two and lots
of little pieces of seven others, 1 believe.

So I think that is something you should
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consider. The compactness just is not there.
Horizontal districts could be more compact,
vertical districts could be more compact in a
different way, but right now we have got these
little tails and Destin got caught in two of
the tails.

The suburbs of Marianna, for an example,
don*t even have Marti Coley as their
representative. They are iIn another district.
So give her all of Marianna and take us off and
add us to somebody else.

The same thing happens in Tallahassee with
Steve Southerland®s district. Their
Congressman on the east side of Tallahassee is
not Steve Southerland. He i1s the Congressman
only for a piece of Tallahassee. So 1 think
you ought to keep that in mind and when you get
to Tallahassee or near Marianna 1 am sure they
will be addressing these issues in the same
way. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEATHERFORD: Thank you very
much. We appreciate your testimony. Dick
Troop is next and following Mr. Troop is Sabu
Williams from the Okaloosa County NAACP.

Mr. Troop.
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MR. TROOP: The first thing I would like
to thank everybody that came from the long
distances to be with us tonight. 1 know you
would rather be somewhere else.

Something that came up early in the
meeting was a discussion of the imaging
software, and as | look around, 1 am happy to
see some young people In the group.

There i1s also some of us older folks, and
so | started with software when new versions
come out. You have imaging software, as 1
understand i1t, that is, you know, being built
now and so | would like to know that every one
of you, all of the Representatives, can turn on
your computer, boot up the software, go through
and run the software and show how the lines are
manipulated north, south, east or west.

And it is fine to get help from your staff
to learn it, you know, that is part of the
game, but I would like to know if you come in
by yourself in the morning at 7:00 o"clock, you
got 1t up and you can see how the numbers move
around. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Mr. Troop. 1 will tell you, Mr. Troop, that
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when this software was first developed we did
get an orientation and we got individual
tutoring. So if we don*"t know how to do it, it
is our fault. Sabu Williams, Mr. Williams, and
following Mr. Williams we will go back to those
individuals who we called earlier who were not
able to be present. Perhaps they were out of
the room.

Mr. Williams, thank you for being here.
You are recognized.

MR. WILLIAMS: Thank you for having me,
Senator Gaetz and 1 thank all of you for being
here. 1 just walked in the door and somewhat
just got home from New York and thought I had
to be here and 1 wanted to make sure that the
NAACP"s points were made clear to this
Committee in terms of how we feel about
redistricting.

Number one the state of Florida we believe
should ensure transparency and fairness in
compliance with the Voting Rights Act and with
equal protection. You should ensure one
person, one vote. You should redistrict in a
way that avoids minority vote delusion and you

should avoid drawing district lines so that the
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minority population Is over concentrated or
packed into election districts.

You should also be careful to avoid
cracking or fracturing, If you will, which is
drawing district lines so that an area of
concentrated, concentrated minority population
which is large enough for separate
representation in that it could constitute one
or more majority, minority or majority black
districts i1s divided and spread among several
districts that are predominantly White.

You should be careful to avoid stacking,
which i1s drawing district lines so that a large
minority population concentration is included
with a larger white population with a purpose
or effect of depriving minority voters of a
voting majority.

We also respectfully request that you
avoid drawing plans that erode minority rights
relative to the status quo. That is, that you
avoid creating retrogressive redistricting
plans.

A key traditional redistricting principles
to respect for communities of interest. These

are defined by three characteristics, the
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extent to which non members identify members as
a distinct community. The extent to which
members i1dentify themselves as a distinct
community, and the extent to which members are
similarly affected by governmental action.

African-American citizens form one of the
strongest communities of interest iIn this
state, and the redistricting plan should have
as a priority the fashioning of districts that
accord appropriate representation to
communities of iInterest.

We are aware of the redistricting
principles outlined in Sections 20 and 21 of
the Florida Constitution and they must be
adhered to. Specifically, it says, districts
should not be drawn with the intent or result
of denying or abridging the equal opportunity
of racial or language minorities to participate
in the political process, or to diminish their
ability to elect representatives of their
choice.

In addition, districts shall be compact
and contiguous. Additionally, we want to
ensure that the long established principles by

the Constitution and the Voting Rights Act of
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1965 are continued, such as, ensuring one
person, one vote and avoiding minority vote
delusion.

Finally, iIn producing the data for the
maps we ask that you include precinct and
district voting age population, VAP, it will,
de-aggregated by race or national origin, and
would ask that the data also include VAP of
citizens who can vote, that is, the position,
ifT you will, of not only the Okaloosa County
NAACP, but the Florida State Conferencing
NAACP, and thank you for this opportunity.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, Mr.
Williams. 1 appreciate your testimony. Now we
will go back to two individuals who"s name we
called originally, but they weren®t able to be
present in the room or perhaps they stepped
out. We want to hear from them if they are
here.

Ann Hering, Ms. Hering?

Mike Brown, Mr. Brown? Okay. This
concludes all of the individuals who signed up.
Now let me ask this. Are there any -- are
there any people here tonight who wish to speak

and did not have the opportunity to sign up?

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1326



=

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

IT so, if you will raise your hand we will
get you a speaker card and we will call on you,
because we want to make sure everyone has the
opportunity to speak iIf you wish to speak.
There is a lady back there.

Will a member of our staff please get a
speaker card to her? 1Is -- someone over here
as well, and a gentleman in the back, and a
gentleman over on the couch.

All right. While we are waiting to
collect those speaker cards and we will hear
from those individuals, let me recognize
Vice-Chair Precourt because we, while we have
been in session tonight we have received some
comments from people who have been following us
on the Internet and wish to have their comments
registered as well.

These may be people from our area who
weren®t able to come to the hearing tonight,
but they want their comments read aloud,

Mr. Vice-Chair.

VICE-CHAIR PRECOURT: Thank you Mr. Chair,
and, yes, iIn fact, one of them is from this
area via Twitter from the Destin Chamber of

Commerce.
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We have the following comment. The --
they want to notify everyone that redistricting
meetings are taking place. Let"s hope that
they put the entire city of Destin into one
district, not split, and in a coastal district.

That is a great comment, and | want to add
a little commentary to it, because that iIs a
little bit open to iInterpretation.

This is a really good point to reiterate
that the single most effective way to have an
immediate impact on this as | believe the
gentleman, Al, did tonight, is to submit an
actual map.

You know, we have all heard over the
course of time, a picture paints a thousand
words, but i1t is also usually a lot clearer and
less open to misinterpretation. So to the
degree that you can submit maps 1 wanted to
reiterate that point. These aren®t comments,
these are specific issues.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Okay, we will hear from
Tony, and s 1t Lengyel?

MR. LENGYEL: Lengyel.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Lengyel, 1 am sorry for

mispronouncing your name, Tony. Would you
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please come forward? We are delighted you are
here tonight and anxious to recognize you and
hear your testimony.

And following his testimony, Jann Coulson,
please, would be on deck.

MR. LENGYEL: Thank you, sir. Thank you,
Senator, my name is Tony Lengyel and I am with
the Florida Panhandle Patriots.

I appreciate you all being here as well
and | see a lot of friends here and I really
appreciate the representation by the people and
you folks here this evening.

I would just, you know, 1 want to get to
these maps and look at these things and 1 just
want to say that 1 am, you know, a southern
California beach boy kid and 1 gravitated to
Florida and I love i1t here and I live down by
the beach.

To keep things simple with this process,
to look at things from a perspective that
everything doesn®"t need to be changed.
Possibly do some tweaking and look at the
things like some of the other folks here said
tonight, you know, where you have these tails

and this and that needs to be -- things need to
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be straightened up or cleaned up.

I don"t know that, how many people in the
room like all of the changes that have been
going on here lately, but, you know, 1 do think
that there needs to be some correction in the
process. 1 think that i1f you take that into
consideration. Let"s not overhaul the entire
system, but let"s kind of do the tweaking and
Tix things as need be.

And by the way, I just wanted to stress
that this is my opinion, it is not that of the
Panhandle Patriots 1 am a member. If you ever
get a chance you ought to come to one of our
meetings.

But and also while you are doing this
redistricting, you might take a look at putting
all of the Tea Parties iIn one district. It
wouldn®t be a real tough thing to do, 1 mean,
just keep 1t In mind.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: We might get some support
for that from some people that would surprise
you .

MR. LENGYEL: Thank you so much, Senator.
Thank you all for being here, and we do

appreciate your time.
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CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you, Mr. Lengyel,
we appreciate your comments. And now, Jann
Coullson and followed by Steve Czonstka. Jann,
thank you very much for being here tonight, and
you are recognized.

MS. COULSON: Thank you. 1 came to
listen, and now that I have listened, my
greatest concern | don"t hear being
articulated, and that is that I am hoping that
all of you will listen very carefully to the
local officials, especially your County
Supervisor of Election officials, because you
can draw pretty maps and you can do a lot of
things, but when you have a confused
electorate, they either don"t show up or they
show up in the wrong place or they get
confused.

And in the last Presidential election we
turned 100 people away from our precinct
because they were confused about where they
voted. Because of early voting we were very,
very fortunate that none of those who were
turned away without an opportunity to vote, but
as i1t got closer and closer to 7:00 o"clock 1

had real concern that we were going to
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disenfranchise somebody because those maps are
sad.

And unless there is a compelling reason to
make them long and squiggly, please make the
lines logical and reasonable, and I understand
that each of you i1s, by charge, must represent
all of the people in your area, and when 1 see
a Senatorial District | know that they are
going to be representing not just the beach,
contrary to what people may attribute to you.

I know your view is broader than that,
Senator Gaetz. 1 am far more concerned that it
makes sense. 1 actually worked for another
election authority earlier in my life and I am
still trying to figure out what all of the
districts are that I live in, and I am very
frustrated by that.

Literally 1 have gotten an invitation to
go to the Supervisor of Elections Office and
look at maps in their office because 1t iIs so
complex. So please listen to your Supervisor
of Elections across the state. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you, and
Ms. Coulson, before you leave, let me just say

because just you raised the issue that indeed
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John Guthrie who i1s our professional staff
director in the Senate, has met with the
Supervisors of Elections statewide and they
were all invited to attend these hearings as
the hearings move into their communities.

So we are very interesting iIn their
feedback. So thank you for making that point.

MS. COULSON: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you, and next,
Steve Czonstka, and following Mr. Czonstka,
Gayle Jacobson.

Steve, thank you for being here, and you
are recognized.

MR. CZONSTKA: Thank you for giving us the
opportunity to speak. 1 think that the fact
that Okaloosa County is represented by four
members of the House, Florida House of
Representatives, two Senators and two
Congressmen is a positive thing, and so 1 would
just as like to keep that representation. It
gives us a voice on things that may come up in
the future.

I am -- also work for the Supervisor of
Elections and am a Precinct Clerk, and 1 want

to echo what the lady before me just said. We
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had a special election for House District 4,
and 1 live out in Blue Water Bay, Precinct 46,
which i1s split by House District 4 and House
District 5.

Halft of the people who wanted to vote for
Representative Gaetz couldn®t because they were
in Brad Drake"s district. Now I know you got
to worry about the School Board, you got to
worry about County Commission, you got to worry
about House and Senate Districts, but 1 want to
again emphasize that if there anyway possible
to coordinate with the Supervisors of Elections
when they are drawing their precincts, 1 think
that would really minimize voter confusion when
they come.

Now, a lot of it is the voter~s fault.
They should know who their Representative 1is,
but we can*t always educate the voter as much
as we can, so thank you for your opportunities.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,
Steve. | appreciate your testimony. Next,
Gayle Jacobson and following Ms. Jacobson,
Albert Perez. Gayle, it iIs great to see you as
always, and you are recognized. Thank you for

being here.
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MS. JACOBSON: Thank you all for being
here. We really appreciate you visiting our
pretty little corner of the world, and we thank
you for your service to this state. We realize
sometimes it iIs a very unthankful job.

I don"t have a lot of comments. 1 just
have a couple. You know how hesitant 1 am to
speak in public. One thing that has been
mentioned tonight a couple of times is that
some people wish that you had maps already
drawn.

Now, we —-- 1 happen to like this open
forum, this transparency that you are coming
with open minds to get our input.

We know that if you came with the maps
already drawn there would be those who thought
deals had been struck, and you know, in smoke
filled back rooms. So you kind of are in a no
win situation, but 1 personally appreciate this
opportunity for everyone to have input.

I feel kind of like 1 did in elementary
school. 1 live In the same house and 1 went to
three different elementary schools because the
boundary got moved several times, and that is

what happened to me in the last redistricting.

-5491
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I am one mile from the Walton County line
and I am inside CD 2 by one mile. 1 have had
great representation no matter who"s district 1
was in.

I can honestly say that 1 have dealt with
Congressmen of both parties, certainly you are,
and I call on you a lot, so I have no complaint
on a party issue, but we do have some real
problems in these little key holes that were
cut out last time.

You have heard this all before, so we hope
that you will, and 1 know this isn"t the only
area of the state that has these problems. So
I will reiterate what so many others have said.

Please keep that in mind, please try to
make 1t a little more compact and easier for
those at the polls, because it is problematic
for the voters and those who work at the polls,
and thank you again for your time.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you so much,

Ms. Jacobson. It is great to have you here.
And now, Albert Perez, Albert Perez.

Thank you very much for your testimony

tonight. We are anxious to hear from you, and

you are recognized, sir.
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MR. PEREZ: Thank you. I just wanted to
say good evening to everyone here on the
Committee for traveling so far, most of you,
and to my fellow neighbors. 1 haven®t had a
chance to, but i1t is great to see all of you
here.

I think 1 have a fairly unique
perspective. 1 am not originally from Florida,
but I have been here five years, but to this
area, but 1 did graduate from Barry University
in Miami Shores, Florida, very close to North
Miami .

So I am happy to see people from south
Florida up here, 1 am very proud of that, and I
am a four-year veteran in the Air Force, I am a
member of the Civil Air Patrol here in Eglin.

I work at Hurlburt. 1 served active duty in
Eglin, and 1 am a member of the Okaloosa Young
Democrats here.

My plead is simple, keep it simple, try
and respect county lines as much as possible.

I live and work in Okaloosa County. I am very
proud of that. I would not -- 1 know that a
lot of people here, my neighbors, some of them

work here in Okaloosa, they live in Walton,
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some live In Santa Rosa.

That is great, that works for them and
that i1s great, but for my perspective, 1 am
very proud to live and work in Okaloosa County.
I wouldn®t have i1t any other way.

So when I invest in my county I want to
invest Iin my county, whether it be property
taxes or whether i1t be working there, even just
going to lunch during my lunch break. 1 would
rather keep i1t that way. So by respecting
county lines, it also diversifies.

I know the status quo is one
Representative for the coast, one
Representative north for the north areas, the
more agrarian areas, the more agricultural
ones. | don"t think monopolizing something
like that is going to work.

I probably agree with the person, the
gentleman who stood before me probably an hour
ago and threw the grenade. He said, keep, keep
it vertical. 1 am going to elaborate and 1 am
going to go into detail. Just say keep it
simple and try and respect county lines.

IT we have -- during the BP Oil Spill that

occurred fairly recently, we only had one
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Representative who really cared, just one,
because i1t affected their district and maybe
the Senator who it affected his district.

We won"t have gone far, but if we four or
three Representatives or Senators who actually
cared, 1 think we would have accomplished much
more in the Florida Legislature.

Monopolizing has never got this country
far, monopolizing representation has never
gotten this country far. It is competition and
through diversification that we excel. So,
yes, we do need to challenge our
Representatives. We need to challenge our
Senators to diversify.

People, people who live in Okaloosa, they
should know who their Senator is. They should
know who their Representative is, there should
not be this crooked line somewhere in the
north, somewhere in the south. We have an
extension somewhere over here and for the
people that spoke on behalf of Destin, the
mayor of Destin, exactly, | don"t see any
reason why Destin needs to be separated in
representation.

They deserve to be sovereign. 1 am very
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proud that Destin is my choice city. That is
where 1 go clubbing, that is where I go
dancing. | am very proud of the culture of Ft.
Walton Beach.

IT I wanted something a little more small
town, a little more simple, 1 will go north. |
will go to Crestview, I will go to Laurel Hill.
I am proud of Okaloosa County. 1 am proud to
know, and from a Civil Air Patrol perspective I
get to see i1t from the sky.

I like to keep i1t that way. It is simple
for them, i1t is simple for my neighbors, it is
simple for you, and 1 definitely also agree
with the Tea Party patriot who spoke a few
minutes ago.

We, 1T they can get one district, that
would be great, because one, you know, you can
give them one Senator, one Representative, that
is great. You could spread the Democrats out,
you know, give them more representation, that
would be great, I would go for that, too. So
keep Okaloosa sovereign.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you, Mr. Perez, and
thank you, Mr. Perez, for your service as well

in uniform and to our country.
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This -- unless there is someone else who
wishes to speak tonight, this concludes the
public. Is there a hand up in the back? If
not -- yes, there is, there is a hand up in the
back, someone wishes to give the benediction.

Please, please come forward and we are
delighted to have your testimony, and if you
would simply articulate your name.

MS. GOSSOM: 1 can do that.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: And address for everyone,
because 1 don"t have your card yet, you are
recognized.

MS. GOSSOM: I can do that, thank you,
Senator Gaetz. My name is Joyce Gilley-Gossom.
I serve on the Ft. Walton Beach City Council,
although 1 am not representing the City Council
this evening. 1 need to make that very clear.

I am maybe not as smart as Mr. Kelley and
I may not be as smart as some of the other
individuals who said that they have gone on to
the website and have used the Map Builder
software program.

I attempted to do that. |1 was on a panel
earlier today and was asked to share my

thoughts about the process, and iIn preparation
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for that 1 did go on to the website,
registered, received my certification, went
back in and started trying to construct a map.

After several days and at least eight to
ten hours, 1 was more frustrated than when |
was writing my dissertation. It was easier for
me to write my dissertation and do my
statistical analyzes myself than 1t was to use
that software program.

Now, I am not an IT person, and 1 am not
technological savvy or advanced, however, 1 do
know how to point and click, and 1 do know how
to read all of the symbols.

I couldn®t even find the information 1
needed in the 190-page help manual. So 1 would
ask respectfully, just as Mr. Perez said
earlier, please keep it simple.

When people face a daunting task that is
overwhelming to them, a paralysis sets in, and
they throw up their hands and say, 1 can"t do
this. 1 don"t know how. I don"t know what to
do.

Fortunately 1 didn"t do that. 1 went to
another site, printed a map, took some colored

markers and drew my lines on the map. [ am
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going to scan that and I am going to e-mail it
to you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Okay.

MS. GOSSOM: So you will get my map, but
my plea is for not just the constituents in Ft.
Walton Beach that I represent and serve, but
for everyone in the panhandle area. Please
make i1t simple. Please simplify the process.

Yes, you had tutorial sessions and you had
orientation. We don"t, we don"t have that. I
even looked at the U-Tube videos trying to
follow the process and 1 will give you one
example.

There were 15 pages 1 had to go through
telling me to open this, click that, go back in
now and select this, name it this, name it
that, before 1 ever got to the sentence that
said, now It is time for you to draw your
lines, 15 pages it took me to do that.

So my request, whether it is vertical or
horizontal, 1 think that will come through the
process, especially for this area, make it
simple and keep it simple for people.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you,

Dr. Gilley-Gossom and | appreciate your
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when we did make an offer. We have
professional staff who are able, willing and
can meet with you if you have 15 minutes.

MS. GOSSOM: I do.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Afterwards they will be
happy to sit down with you and, believe me, as
un-tech savvy as I am, if 1 can draw district
lines with a Doctorate and your high
intelligence, 1 know we can help you, too.

Thank you very much. 1 appreciate 1t. |Is
there anyone else who would like to testify
tonight? |1 am sorry, you have had your shot,
sir, we don"t do second rounds unless you want
to come to Panama City tomorrow, and you are
welcome to do that.

Anyone else who has not had a chance to
speak who would like to speak? If not, let us
conclude just by getting back to a couple of
things that were raised, and before | do that,
let me ask 1If there are any members, and we are
going to defer to Chair Precourt as to the
House members, are there any members of the
Senate Committee who are here who would like to

make any observations or ask any questions.
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Senator Hays, you are recognized.

SENATOR HAYS: Cay you all hear me back
over here iIn the corner? Thank you, Senator
Gaetz, and I want to say a sincere thank you to
each and everyone of you who come out tonight,
particularly for those of you who spoke to the
group, because many times public speaking is a
very intimidating experience, and you had the
necessary fortitude to put your fears behind
you and come up and speak, and 1 thank you for
that.

I am from central Florida. |1 grew up iIn
central Florida, but 1 truly, truly enjoy
coming to the panhandle for two major reasons.
First and foremost is the unashamed, unabashed
proud military presence up here in the
panhandle of Florida.

Thank each and everyone of you who served
our country and for those of you who did not
serve our country, you make this a wonderful
place for those who do serve, and | thank you.

It was my privilege to serve in the United
States Coast Guard for four years, some of the
finest years of my life, but this is America,

folks, and there is no finer country anywhere,
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and 1 thank each and every one of you for
coming out tonight when you could have been
doing anything else, but you chose to exercise
democracy and that is what it is all about, and
I sincerely thank you.

We have heard several, several different
points yesterday in Tallahassee, today in
Pensacola and again here tonight. None of
those points are invalid. Many of those points
that we have heard are uninformed, but or
misinformed, whichever you might choose to
classify them as, but that Is not important.

The Important thing is, everybody needs to
realize, we as a group up here are tasked with
making the most fair division of this state
into Legislative and Congressional Districts
that we can.

And there is one, actually, there are two
foundational elements. First and foremost is
our Constitution, and the second i1s a spin off
of the Constitution which is one vote for one
person, which dictates the entire population of
the state must be divided by 120, and that is
the number of 156,000 plus, that goes into each

House District.
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The Constitution doesn®t say anything at
all about the city lines, the county lines, the
precinct lines or anything at all like that.

Now, Amendment V directs us to make them
as contiguous as we can, as compact as we can
and that sort of thing, but the 156,000 in the
House Districts and the 470,000 in the Senate
Districts, those are the two numbers we have to
deal with. Regardless of any other factor,
those are the two factors, 470 and 156.

My Senate District has to divest itself of
106,000 people. In the last ten years we have
grown that much in the central Florida district
that I am privileged to serve.

So instead of serving parts of five
counties, | am going to have to consolidate my
geographical district. Right now it is
85 miles east and west and 55 miles north and
south. So if 1 look at Amendment V and take
Jjust two counties.

I live in Lake County. 1 can take the
adjacent county of Sumter County and if I take
the entire geographical area, those two
counties, 1 still have to go get 80,000 people

from some other county. There iIs not an
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adjacent county that has only 80,000 people in
it, so I can"t take just one whole county, and
have three county districts.

That 1s just a small glimpse of the
daunting task that we have. We absolutely have
to draw district lines. There are going to be
times when you live on one side of the street
and your neighbor on the other side of the
street is In a different district.

That 1s life, folks. As 1 told my three
daughters, deal with it. 1 still love you,
honey, but you got to deal with iIt.

It is not as simple -- Mr. Perez says keep
it simple. Believe me, 1 have found In my 65
years that is usually the best solution, and 1
try to keep it simple, but this is not a simple
process. It is very, very complicated.

After we finish our task we then have to
have the Governor accept it or reject it, but
iT he rejects i1t we have to go back to work
again. ITf he accepts our work then i1t goes to
the Florida Supreme Court. Then i1t goes to the
United States Department of Justice.

There, you know, that old adage about too

many cooks spoil the soup. It may very well
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may be happening, so we need to keep it simple.
I say all of this not to, not to try to make
any excuses whatsoever.

Every one of us asked for the privilege of
serving the people whom we represent and we are
honored to be here. We are somewhat humbled by
your presence, and thank you for the
participation, but we just ask you for some
understanding, that this is far, far more
complicated than it really appears on the
surface, and you must dig into it, and so thank
you for being here, and when all else fails,
pray for us, people, we sincerely need your
prayers.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you. Senator
Thrasher.

SENATOR THRASHER: Thank you, Senator
Gaetz. I will try to talk loud so I don"t have
to use the microphone. | have visited with
Senator Gaetz many, many times over the last
two and a half, three years that 1 have been in
the Senate, and he talks constantly about the
folks in this area, and having come here
tonight and seeing the servility, the

incredible i1deas that you have presented to us
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for consideration only goes to show that he is
absolutely right about the folks that he
represents.

And 1t Is an honor and privilege, 1 know
for me and 1 think for probably all of our
colleagues who have sat here and listened to
the incredible amount of good ideas In a civil
manner in which you have presented them to us,
and I appreciate that more than 1 can tell you,
I really do.

It means a lot to all of us. It means --
it makes this effort that we are going through
to go around the state and listen to folks so
much more enjoyable, but also beneficial for
the end product that we will ultimately come up
with.

Senator Hays is absolutely right. We have
got to draw 40 Senate Seats. We got to draw
120 House Seats, we got to draw 27
Congressional Seats for 18 million people 1In
the state of Florida.

There are how many here tonight, 250. How
many will we reach iIn our 26 Senate and House
tour, who knows, several thousand perhaps, but

we have got to draw those lines for 18 million
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people who reside i1n this great and wonderful
state.

But you have given us tonight the hope, I
think that we can get the job done, because you
have done it in a civil way, you have given us
ideas that make, that are material ideas that
will go to help us when we get ready to start
doing the process of drawing the maps to make
it, to understand what you all have cared
about, what you have said, what you have
pleaded to us for and what your dreams and
hopes are for this area.

Every single member, every single member
of this group, I don"t know that I am the
oldest, maybe -- maybe there are a couple other
that may be a little older, but 1 want to give
you some example of the diversity of this
Committee.

This young lady right here is an
incredible Representative in the House of
Representatives. She is 28 years old. The
last time those maps were drawn she was 18. 1
will be 68 years old this year. So there is an
incredible amount of diversity, there is an

incredible amount of new ideas, she has got two
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computers here.

I wouldn®"t know how in the world to begin,
to begin to each begin what she has been doing.
She drew my district while we were sitting
here, and 1 drew my district earlier, and it
was on this map right here. So let me tell you
something.

We care about what you came here to talk
to us about, and I thank Senator Gaetz for
bringing us here. 1 thank each and everyone of
you for coming here. 1 can assure you that
this will continue to be a transparent process.

I have been around the Legislature in
different capacities for a long time.

Somebody, the lady who was the last speaker
said she had drawn a map with crayons or
colored pens or whatever, that is the way it
used to be done in the Florida Legislature.

These kinds of hearings and these kinds of
meetings were never done. The maps were drawn
in the backs of rooms at the end of the session
and presented to the Legislature for voting.

This is going to be entirely different.

It will be in my opinion the most transparent

process in this, in this type of activity that
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the Florida Legislature has ever engaged in.

So God bless you for being here and thank
you for your great community interest, and 1
promise you, we will do the best we can. Thank
you .

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Chair Precourt, let me
yield to you for any comments that you and
members of the House of Representatives might
wish to make, comments or questions.

CHAIR PRECOURT: Thanks, and I will hold
my comments until after any of the other
Representatives that want to speak. Anyone,
Representative Gaetz?

REPRESENTATIVE GAETZ: Thank you,
Representative Precourt, and 1 sit right in
front of Representative Kair on the Florida
House of Representatives. We used to go back
and forth about how great our districts are.

So 1 hope that all of my colleagues in the
House can see how proud 1 am of the folks that
I continue to represent, and just on behalf of
the Representative Ford and Senator Evers, |
wanted to thank everyone who has come here from
all parts of the state to the panhandle. It

means so much to us.
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It 1s unique for us to have so many
leaders all across Florida comment and
participate and to listen to our people and I
would say this.

We have heard a lot about north Florida
tonight and 1 hope that members of the
Redistricting Committee have heard what many of
us who represent this area know, and that is
that we don"t have an entirely different
culture i1n northwest Florida, but there are
distinctions and differences just like there
are in your parts of the state.

So 1 have tremendous trust In my
colleagues on both sides of the aisle for all
of the state to take this input and put it to
use for some good for the people. Thank you
all very much.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Zack Taylor.

A VOICE: Thank you for the introduction,
ya“"ll, I wasn"t able to finish and I started
talking about Daytona Beach.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: I guess we don"t need
that police escort after all.

A VOICE: I don"t know. I don®t know.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Representative Ford, you
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are recognized.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I am going to use
the mike. I am not going to talk that long,
but Senator Thrasher and I were talking up here
earlier. We met In my district in the last
meeting this morning, and 1 just sincerely wish
I could have brought everybody at my district
meeting here so they could learn some
servility. We, and that is a sincere
statement.

There is a reporter here from Miami, 1
hope she i1s not going to print this in the
paper. 1 see you, Mary Ellen, don"t do that.

I would like to be reelected if I can next
time. 1 am in trouble. But I am sincere in
that.

You have given us good ideas. 1 have
served, personally served 16 years on the Local
City Council and many people here, Mayor
Anderson, Sam, of course, Mayor Sam and others
I served with many years. So | can appreciate
the problems that the cities face.

I can assure you that | will do everything
I can to avoid those problems. Small cities,

and 1 have two cities in my district, Gulf
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Breeze and most of Pensacola. Pensacola is too
big for us to say we are not going to be able
to peel off some parts of that. It is
impossible to do.

Small cities though, that is something
that is doable and you have got a perfect right
to ask that we take a look at that, a valid
point and 1 appreciate the fact that i1t was
brought up here.

I can assure you that 1 and I think I can
speak for most everybody else, we are going to
try to avoid those kind of problems. There is
no, no use iIn doing that and it serves no
purpose, and I thank so much for having us
here. 1 appreciate the courtesy that you have
shown us since we have been here. Thank you.

CHAIR PRECOURT: Thank you. I believe
that is most of the Representatives that want
to talk. I just want to, if I could, Chair
Gaetz, address a few issues that were raised
here tonight.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Of course.

CHAIR PRECOURT: Thank you, and we have
actually heard some of these things around the

state and other places and in the media as
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well, and 1 hope that we can clarify just a
half dozen brief items.

One thing that keeps getting kicked around
is that the Florida House has 20 million-dollar
or 30 million-dollar legal fund for
redistricting. That is just iInaccurate.

We do have reserves, but they are for many
contingencies and I think this is just a news
report that was i1naccurate from the start and
unfortunately it has been repeated frequently.

We 1n the House side have chosen to
include party data in the, that data that is
available for redistricting. We do have to
have this by Federal government dictate to test
the map alternatives against the requirements
of the Federal Voting Rights Act. So that data
will have to be accessed one way or another so
we are, our decision was to make it available
to everyone.

Another thing that has been kicked around
out there iIs that there is a gag order on
members of the Committee. |1 believe clearly
tonight we have established that there is no
gag order.

Also, this issue, and we heard both sides
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of 1t tonight and you all did a terrific job,
several of you, of addressing this. The issue
of whether or not there are maps here that we
already have drawn and provided to you without
letting the public speak first.

IT we did 1t any other way there would be
a huge criticisms of us. |In fact, this process
that we are using as tried and true process and
for those of you who like the Federal
government®s dictates, i1t is very similar to
the NEPA permitting process where we collected
the data.

The data wasn®"t available until April or
from the census, and presented you with the
existing conditions and the data so that we
could get feedback from you before we start
drawing lines.

It always, the general public brings more
information to the table than a bunch of
analysts sitting behind their computers are
going to have.

We are going to get public comment
throughout the process. That is another thing
that people think that this is their only

opportunity to speak to this issue now. That
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is absolutely untrue. This iIs the beginning of
it. This is the data collection phase.

Once we have this we will prepare a number
of alternatives that you will have the
opportunity to look at again and that will be
in the various forms that Chair Gaetz
mentioned, as well as in the public hearing
process that is the normal process of passing a
bill in Tallahassee.

And then finally, to this, to this
question that we are moving too slow, again, we
have only had the information available to
present to you for a number of weeks and we are
trying, doing the best we can with a bunch of
really good staff to get this process moving as
quickly as possible. So, iIn fact, we can have
a credible process that meets all of the
requirements.

And then finally just from a personal
standpoint, being from central Florida as well,
this has been a great meeting.

Ya"ll have been very, very constructive in
engaging in this conversation that we hope to
use to develop the best set of maps for the

citizens of Florida that we can. Thank you,
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Chair Gaetz.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much. Are
there any other comments from members of the
Committee? |If not, Representative Precourt
moves we rise.

(Whereupon, the proceedings were

concluded.)
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CERTIFICATE
STATE OF FLORIDA )
COUNTY OF LEON )

I hereby certify that the foregoing transcript
is of a tape-recording taken down by the undersigned,
and the contents thereof were reduced to typewriting
under my direction;

That the foregoing pages 2 through 109
represent a true, correct, and complete transcript of
the tape-recording;

And 1 further certify that 1 am not of kin or
counsel to the parties in the case; am not in the
regular employ of counsel for any of said parties; nor
am 1 iIn anywise interested in the result of said case.

Dated this 11th day of August, 2011.

CLARA C. ROTRUCK

Notary Public

State of Florida at Large
Commission Expires:

November 13, 2014
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TAPED PROCEEDINGS

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Good morning, ladies and
gentlemen. The Joint Florida Senate, Florida
House of Representatives Redistricting Hearing
is called to order.

We want to thank WSRE Public Television,
Pensacola Jr. College, Pensacola State College
now, for allowing us to use this facility, and
thank you all for being here, especially
members of the public who have come to share
your comments and your recommendations to help
shape Congressional Senate and House Districts
for the next decade.

My name is Don Gaetz. 1 am proud to be
the Senator for northwest Florida, and along
with my House colleague, the Speaker Designate
of the Florida House of Representatives, Will
Weatherford, who is to my left and that is
interesting because often he is to my right,
but today he is to my left.

We are chairing today"s hearing and we are
delighted to be here. This hearing iIs being
webcast throughout the state by the Florida
Channel over the Internet and we welcome the

many, many people who are following us today on

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1363



[EEY

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

the Internet or over the Florida Channel.

Our sole purpose today is to hear from the
public about how you believe the legal
standards governing redistricting should be
applied In your community so that you are
represented In Washington and in Tallahassee
fairly, equitably and sensibly.

It 1s not debatable as to whether
Amendments V and VI will be applied. They are
in the Constitution and they will be applied.
The question is how those legal standards
should be applied to make sure that your
community is fairly, equitably and sensibly
represented.

Our procedures today are simple but
important. It is important that if you want to
speak, and we hope you do, that you will sign
in so that we can create an accurate public
record of all attendees and all speakers, and
also you may opt to join our e-mail list.

We hope you will so that we can keep you
informed about how the redistricting process is
working over the next several months.

This 1s hearing two of a 26 public hearing

tour that the House and Senate Committees are
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taking together to hear from the people of
Florida.

IT you have not signed in and you wish to
speak, please raise your hand now and a
professional staff member will get you a
speaker card because we want to hear from you.

Is there anybody here who wishes to speak
who has not filled out a card or who has not
signed in? Anybody? Great.

Well, 1T there are people who come in late
we will make that offer again. Before we
begin, the Chair would like to recognize the
Speaker Designate, Will Weatherford, to explain
how today"s hearing fits iInto the redistricting
process. Mr. Speaker.

SPEAKER WEATHERFORD: Thank you very much,
Mr. Chairman. It certainly is an honor today
to be in God®"s country, the panhandle. We are
in step two of our process here.

We had a great day yesterday in
Tallahassee of public comment and input and we
certainly look forward to it today here 1in
Pensacola.

Ladies and gentlemen, every ten years the

Legislature is required by our Constitution to
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redistrict the state based on iIncreases,
decreases and movements of population.

Because Florida has grown more than other
states in the last ten years we will move up
from 25 Congressional Seats to 27 Congressional
Seats.

Because some parts of our state have
increased or decreased disproportionately in
population, many Senate and House Districts
will change, either adding or losing
population.

When redistricting is completed,
Congressional Districts must be equal iIn size
and contain 696,345 people. The 40 Senate
Districts must also be nearly equal and will
contain 470,033 people, and our 120 House
Districts must also contain nearly equal
amounts in population and will be at 156,678
persons.

There is a map at the front of the room
showing this area of the state. The current
boundaries of all of the Districts and the
number of the persons which must also be added
or subtracted from current districts to achieve

equal representation.
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Equality of representation isn"t the only
legal requirement that redistricting plans must
meet. The laws and important court cases
governing redistricting are explained in detail
on the House and Senate websites.

Those websites are listed on the
Redistricting 2012 brochure that was available
to you when you came in. Our Redistricting
2012 brochure summarizes Federal and State laws
and outlines the topics we hope you will
discuss here at today"s hearing.

IT you did not get a brochure they are
available on the tables outside the hall and
our staff would be happy to get you a copy of
that brochure 1T needed.

Those same websites have been available to
the public and all of the demographic
information from the U. S. Bureau of Census
that will be used to draw districts and the
redistricting software that Legislators will be
using.

These websites will allow any member of
the public, and hopefully you, to see all of
the district maps that are proposed by

Legislators and for the citizens, themselves,
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to propose their own district maps for their
own communities or for the whole state using
all of the tools that are available to us as
Legislators.

Before and during and after this hearing,
Senate and House professional staff are
available to show you and anyone who wants to
see the simple steps in getting on-line and
making your submission for maps in the coming
weeks .

Every recommendation from any member of
the public or any group will be made public.
In fact, some public submissions of maps have
already been available on the web, and one I
will mention to everyone today is we had a
college student who is from Florida who goes to
Columbia University and weeks ago submitted a
Congressional map for the entire state of
Florida.

It was a very -- a lot of work that went
in to that, but that is the type of
participation that this body is looking for.

The submission of proposed maps that makes
sense for your community is the single most

effective form of public participation in the
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redistricting process.

The redistricting schedule under which we
are operating is iImposed by our State
Constitution. The Constitution does not permit
the Legislature to act on legislative maps
before the second year after the census is
done. In other words, before 2012.

We accelerated this process as much as we
possibly could by moving the 2012 Legislative
Session from March to January, and beginning
our statewide hearings five months in advance
of the 2012 session.

It has been suggested that the Legislature
should draw maps first and then ask the public
for comment. We believe that puts the answer
ahead of the question.

There should be no preconceptions created
by politicians, but rather public testimony
should be free and unrestricted. Our intent is
to use the recommendations made at our 26
hearings and through our Internet cites as the
basis for developing one or more options for
district maps.

We will discuss those options in open

public meetings before any votes are taken even
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in a Committee. Throughout the process we will
solicit additional public comment so that
proposed maps can mature and with public
involvement all before the Legislature approves
any final maps.

Whatever the Legislature votes on, i1t is
submitted for judicial review to insure that
the final plans meet every legal requirement.
Because our mission today is to hear from you,
100 percent of the time between now and then,
and between now and 1:00 p.m. will be used to
insure that every member of the public who is
here and wishes to speak will have time to
present testimony and be listened to
respectfully without interruption or argument.

IT, after every citizen has had his or her
say, there is time remaining before our
scheduled adjournment, any member of this
Committee may make a statement or offer any
observation.

Of course, any member of the Legislature
may today or at any time propose a map that
will be made available to the public.

Mr. Chairman, thank you very much for

giving me these few moments. | hope this
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description of our schedule and the process
helps set the stage for a very successful
hearing. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you, Mr. Speaker,
by Senate and House rules we will adjourn
promptly today at 1:00 p.m. There are so far
36 individuals signed up to speak.

We hope more people who may come in a
little later will let professional staff know
iT they would like to speak, but to ensure that
each person is heard, and I am an advocate for
the last person who signed up, 1 want to make
sure they get a chance to speak, just as I am
an advocate for the first person.

So to ensure that each person is heard we
will try to divide the time equitably and I
would ask each testifier to try to limit her or
his remarks to somewhere between three and five
minutes.

Now, if later we pick up additional people
who would like to testify, and therefore, we
get pushed on a time crunch 1 may have to be a
little bit more specific about the time frame,
but if you would be cognizant that there are

people who also came here and want to testify
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who are waiting behind you, I am sure everybody
will be civil and courteous and there will be
time for everyone.

What we would like to do is call out two
speakers at a time so that the first speaker
who i1s the Honorable Lynn Laird from the
Escambia Soil and Water Conservation District,
it Commissioner Laird will come forward, and
then behind Commissioner Laird is Stephen Rome,
and we will let you know if you are on deck and
next in line.

Commissioner, are you here? Thank you
very much. Welcome to the Committee, and you
are recognized, sir.

COMMISSIONER LAIRD: 1 am a supervisor.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Supervisor. We, 1 don"t
know if we demoted you or promoted you there,
but we welcome you to the Committee.

COMMISSIONER LAIRD: For the record, my
name is Lynn Laird. 1 am Vice-Chairman of the
Soil and Water Conservation District Board of
Supervisors. Elected, this elected office is
for Escambia County voters only. The candidate
must be a resident of Escambia County.

Escambia County population is 297,619
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residents according to the recent census.
Registered voters, Democrat, No Party,
Minority, et cetera, 110,000. Republicans,
84,000.

Escambia County, unfortunately, has been
divided into two Senatorial districts, both of
them held by Republicans. Three State
Representative Districts, all held by
Republicans. That means 212,791 individuals,
or 67 percent of Escambia County population is
disenfranchised, because in 2000 Escambia
County was divided up so that there would be
two Senatorial districts versus one, because
prior to 2000, Escambia County was a Senatorial
district.

Prior to that, State House Representative
District 111 was all of Pensacola, some of
Escambia County, but they had to cut that up
and now we got some of Santa Rosa. The
minority representation for Escambia County is
about 23 percent African-American.

Currently there are no minority
Representative iIn the State House, none,
period. Who are Escambia County State

Senators? 1 happen to live in south of
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Escambia County, never met my State Senator,
hardly know where he is from, but he iIs Senator
Gaetz, our Chairman, hello. He lives iIn
Niceville, Niceville, wherever that is.

His District Office is in Destin, that is
over an hour away from Escambia County, I don"t
know if 1 could find it if I get there. Greg
Evers, the other State Senator, he lives in
Baker, up in the country somewhere in another
county. His District Office i1s in Crestview.

How do the people from Escambia County who
would like to drop iIn, say something, give him
something, not too many people are going to
drive to Crestview iIf they could find it, it is
over an hour away.

We have a State Representative who basic
some of the districts in northern Escambia
County, Doug Broxson, I have no idea where he
is from. I have no idea where his office is,
and 1 don*"t know iIf anybody in Escambia --
maybe some of the people up north do. 1 don-"t.

Then, of course, we have Representative
Clay Ford, and most of us know, that is
District 111. Almost 90 percent of the

geographical area and population lives in
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Escambia County. Clay Ford lives in Gulf
Breeze. Until a number of years ago it wasn"t
part of District 11l. Thirty percent of the
population In Pensacola is African-American.

Clay Ford lives in Gulf Breeze, which only
has one or two at the most African-Americans.
Basically Gulf Breeze is 100 -- almost
100 percent white, and Clay Ford lives over
there, and I do not believe the Pensacola
residents have any input at all, and only one
Representative, and 1 think he is here, Clay
Ingram, he lives in Escambia County, and he is
elected by the people of Escambia County.
Thank you for that person.

In other words, I will sum it up, 212,791
people in Escambia County or 67 percent of
Escambia County population is totally
disenfranchised. That means they are not
represented by the individuals who are sitting
at the round table up there.

We are supposed to have representation in
state government. 1 cannot feel that this
would go very far when 67 percent feel they are
disenfranchised. So all 1 can say is | hope

whoever is going to draw the lines will take
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that into fact that Escambia County, the
largest county in the panhandle, should be a
State District by itself and should have at
least a minimum of not two, but maybe three
State Representative Districts so that the
221,000 people who are currently
disenfranchised might have a chance to, one,
run a candidate, and two, vote for the
individual who actually does and will represent
their ideology. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,
Mr. Laird. We appreciate your testimony, very,
very kind of you to come today, and now our
next presenter is Stephen Rome. Mr. Rome, and
behind Mr. Rome is Diane Mack from the Women®s
Civic Forum.

Mr. Rome, you are recognized. Thank you
very much for being here today.

MR. ROME: Good morning, my name 1is

Stephen Rome. I reside in Pensacola, in
Escambia County. | appear today as an AARP
volunteer. | urge the Legislature to make the

redistricting process all 1t can be.
As you exercise your constitutional duty

to draw voting districts applicable for the ten
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years beginning with the 2012 election, AARP
urges you to, First, insure transparency of the
legislative redistricting process every step of
the way.

Transparency means that redistricting
discussions among members and by members should
be noticed and open to the public.

Transparency means that the public has the
opportunity to comment and to have those
comments meaningfully considered by the
Legislature during all legislative
redistricting proceedings, and on
redistricting, on redistricting proposals,
interim and final.

This 1s before the Legislatures make any
decisions. We must ensure the timeliness of
the redistricting process and ensure public
input.

The Legislature has an obligation to meet
the constitutional dictates as already
expressed by 63 percent of Florida voters. The
Legislature owes Florida®s residents and voters
professionalism and timely completion of their
redistricting process, hopefully before the

filing for the 2012 elections.
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The Legislature knows the procedural
steps, legislative and non legislative, that
redistricting plans will need to complete in
order for there to be timely qualifications for
the 2012 candidates under the new districts,
and for vigorous campaigns before voters can
cast their ballots.

That means the Legislature should
consider, complete, should consider completing
its portion of the process sooner rather than
later.

Please take steps to ensure that the
redistricting process -- to prevent the
redistricting process from the appearance of
conflict of interest.

For example, subcommittees of Legislatures
could research, develop alternate district
proposals for the area of the state remote from
the member®s geographic residencies.

Perhaps four areas of the state, and then
redefine, reconcile for two halves of the state
and then redefine and reconcile by the full
Chamber into one state plan.

It is now legislative®™s command

performance time. Your audience is Florida"s
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voters. We will not continence undue expense
and delay i1n that performance. It is up to the
Legislature.

What will it be, redistricting
presentation or voter resentment? 1 am
confident that the Legislature and its staff
have the professional competence and technical
assistance to research and analyze and propose
new voting districts iIn accord with the
constitutional and Federal requirements.

Please make your best effort. Thank you
for the time to address the panel.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, Mr.
Rome, we really appreciate your testimony
today. Our next testifier is Diane Mack from
the Women®s Civic Forum, followed by Claudia
Curry from the Democratic Executive Committee.

Ms. Mack, thank you for being here and you
are recognized.

MS. MACK: Thank you, Senator Gaetz,
Honorable Senators, members, staff members, let
me First express my appreciation for this
public hearing for the numbers of you who are
here.

When 1 entered 1 had no idea that we would
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be In such august company. My remarks will be
brief.

The Women®s Civic Forum is an informal
organization who"s mission is to help
interested women learn about our community, to
further their civic interests, and in the end
also to further their political interests.

We want to see more women elected to
office. However, that is not the purpose of
redistricting. Those -- those goals have to be
accomplished in a much different way.

My remarks are simply brief. 1 am
concerned about the past horizontal divisions
in forming our districts. For different
reasons as our previous speaker said, | would
certainly ask this body to consider forming
districts with Escambia County, Santa Rosa
County vertically and not across the north part
of the counties and then the south part.

I realize communities of interest are
something you take into consideration, but I
believe that was in a Tier 1l criteria.

Finally, I realize the Constitution
requires that the process neither favor nor

disfavor incumbents, but we are human and 1
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would simply ask all of you to be statesmen,
stateswomen, not politicians. Put aside your
own interests and do what is best for the state
of Florida, but in this case also for northwest
Florida. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, Ms.
Mack. We appreciate you being here. Our next
speaker is Claudia Curry from the Democratic
Executive Committee, and followed by Paula
Montgomery from the League of Women Voters.

Ms. Curry, you are recognized. Thank you
for being here.

MS. CURRY: Good morning, my name 1S
Claudia Brown-Curry and | represent the
Escambia County Executive, Democratic Executive
Committee, but I don"t want to be redundant at
this time. Everything has been well said, so I
pass. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Well, thank you for being
here. We really appreciate 1t. Next is Paula
Montgomery from the League of Women Voters, and
Ms. Montgomery, you will be followed by Richard
Mills.

Ms. Montgomery, we are grateful that you

took the time to come today, and you are
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recognized.

MS. MONTGOMERY: Okay. Thank you, and
thank you for your attention. 1 am one of the
Co-Presidents this year of the League of Women
Voters of the Pensacola Bay area. Excuse me.
And I am speaking on behalf of the League in
general. 1 would like to make the following
three points.

The Legislature®s timeline for drawing
districts is really unfair to the Florida
voters. The Legislature should not be spending
taxpayer money to oppose fair districts as
described in Amendments V and VI, and we would
like to know where our maps for us to
reasonably be expected to respond to.

First, according to the current plan, the
Legislature will be discussing new districts in
January and pass them in March of 2012. This
does not leave enough time for possible
litigation and the required pre-clearance of
plans before the date in June, when candidates
have to qualify to run for elections.

Therefore, potential candidates won"t know
iT they can run and voters will not know for

whom they can vote iIn time to prepare
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adequately for the fall election.

Unfortunately it will result in chaos and
gives the impression that the timeline was
designed to benefit incumbents, which is
prohibited by the Constitution and its
amendments.

Secondly, the voters have already spoken
in their overwhelming support for Amendments V
and VI. This i1s the voter input to the
Legislature. 1t is what you need to hear from
us, that is that we really want redistricting.
We need to stop wasting time and money by
fighting these amendments and just, just do it.

Third, these hearings would be more useful
and provide more meaningful voter input if
there were maps to which we could respond. We
pay our Legislators and their staff to do the
work of the people.

Why are we being asked to provide you with
maps? What will be done with these maps? You
may get thousands of them. What will you do
with them?

We ask that you provide maps that we can
respond to. These hearings give the appearance

that you are listening to the citizens of
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Florida, but in reality, they deny us means of
useful input. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Ms. Montgomery. We appreciate you being here.
Next we have Richard Mills, and following Mr.
Mills is Deborah Nelson from the Santa Rosa
Democratic Party.

Mr. Mills, thanks for being here, and you
are recognized.

MR. MILLS: Thank you for the opportunity
to speak. 1 am Richard Mills, resident of
Escambia County.

First let me say 1 am not here to
represent any ideological group. 1 am just a
plain citizen, | certainly, most of all, do not
envy you people in the job that you have ahead
of you.

I know you are not going to make very many
people happy. That is just the nature of the
beast that you have to attack, and I just want
you to know that many of us will be praying
that you will do this job with the best of your
ability and with great consideration to the
rights of our citizens, and that you will act

in accordance with the constitutional
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requirements upon you. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, Mr.
Mills. We appreciate those kind sentiments.

Deborah Nelson with the Santa Rosa
Democratic Party and then following Ms. Nelson
will be Jerry Couey with Santa Rosa Week TV.

Ms. Nelson, thanks a lot for being here,
and you are recognized.

MS. NELSON: Thank you very much, 1 am
Deborah Nelson, 1 am Chair of the Santa Rosa
Democrats. 1 also co-host Santa Rosa Week TV
on Media Com Channel 27.

I would just point out to you that
currently the population of Democrats in the
state versus the population of registered
Republicans is not reflected in the makeup of
Florida®s House of Representatives and Florida
Senate, and I would just suggest that perhaps,
perhaps there is a political reasons for that,
but then again, maybe you need to seriously
consider that you have a gerrymandering problem
in the state when you go about this
redistricting process.

What happens when you have gerrymandering

present is that the populous is not accurately
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represented in their political bodies, the
political bodies that belong to them.

When you have that problem it leads to
things like cronyism, it leads to special
interests being perhaps represented a little
more heavily than the people.

It leads to corruption. We have certainly
seen indications of corruption problems coming
out of Tallahassee In recent years.

We have had -- 1 would call it a
disastrous legislative session this year. We
have had a legislative session that 1 don"t
believe in any way, shape or form reflects the
wants and needs of the Florida population.

You all passed SB 430 which will just
about guarantee to raise homeowner insurance
policy rates, at least by double over the next
five years. |1 don"t believe any Floridian
wanted you to do that, and you did It anyway.

To me it represents a problem with special
interest influence. Maybe that i1s related to
gerrymandering, maybe it isn"t. You have just
about destroyed growth management process in
this state.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Ms. Nelson, I apologize
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for interrupting. Because today®s hearing is
about redistricting, iIf you could narrow your
comments to redistricting. We would be
delighted to hear from you about these other
issues, and you are welcome to come to the
Legislative Delegation meeting that will be a
public meeting and discuss those or we will
provide other venues, but today just to respect
the other people who are behind you who wish to
speak, could you confine your comments to the
purpose of the hearing today, please?

MS. NELSON: 1 appreciate that. And my
point was that those problems do point to the
gerrymandering situation, but 1 will go ahead
and move on.

I would just ask you all if you could
answer at least, do you have any idea of a time
frame when you think this process is going to
be finished as far as how far in advance of the
2012 elections people are going to know where
the districts are?

Do you all have any plan for that or any
idea when that is going to happen?

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Well, Ms. Nelson, we have

a website that lists the schedule. It is
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flsenate.gov/redistricting. You can go to that
and see the schedule, but also Speaker
Weatherford will remark at the end of the
willing to our timeline iIn case you didn"t hear
his comments at the beginning.

MS. NELSON: Do you have a specific date?

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Ma"am, the date, the
dates depend upon when the hearings are
concluded, when Bills are introduced. Any
member of the Legislature can introduce a Bill
at any time, but any other comments you have,
ma*am?

MS. NELSON: Well, 1 would just again,
just like other speakers have done, just urge
you to be very transparent with this process.

I think there is a lot of mistrust of the
current sitting Legislature and 1 think that,
you know, it is not going to help you any if
you are behind closed doors making this happen.
So please, you know, just make sure people know
what is going on. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Ms. Nelson, for being here and for your
comments. Jerry Couey, who is perhaps your

co-host on Santa Rosa Week TV, and then
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following Mr. Couey, Dr. Calvin Avant, who 1is
with the Escambia Pensacola Human Relationship
Commission.

Mr. Couey, you are recognized. Thanks for
being here.

MR. COUEY: Thank you, and I appreciate
the opportunity to be here. There have been a
few things swirling, so I would like to get,
and Ms. Nelson asked a question and she didn®t
get an answer. So let me just ask what a lot
of people are wanting to know.

Is anybody here going to answer a question
today with the cameras rolling?

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: I am sorry, sir?

MR. COUEY: Will any question be answered
by any of our elected officials today, because
that seems to be a real concern for the
citizens of the state of Florida.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Well, let"s spike that
rumor right now. At the end of this hearing,
assuming everyone in the public has the
opportunity to speak, we will invite any member
of this Committee to make any comment, answer
any question that has come up today if they

would like, or to offer any proposal they would
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like, but now we would love to hear your
testimony, sir, and we are now up to 44
individuals.

So I am going to have to ask you to, if
you can, be as succinct as you possibly are
able to be.

MR. COUEY: Well, again, I will certainly
push forward the idea that this needs to be
transparent, but apparently what we are hearing
is true. Although you say questions will be
answered, you have been asked a question
already and you really didn"t answer it. You
just put it off.

I would like to second the thought that it
is too late in the process. 1 see It as real
gamesmanship again. We really won®"t know until
late in next year, and I just really encourage
this Committee to reconsider that immediately
and not drag it out so long.

How -- how are we as voters going to --
how Is anybody going to prepare a campaign?
How is anybody going to know who is running? |
Jjust have some real doubts in this whole
process.

I realize it appears i1t be transparent. |1
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will tell you my perception is, and some of the
things that we are hearing now that questions
don®t get answered, there is no maps available.

You know, I think it is kind of ridiculous
that the people that are going to be proposing
this haven™t furnished a map yet, and I would
also like to second the thought that I don"t
appreciate districts that are split north and
south.

I want you to truly consider that and I
will reserve any additional time in case
somebody will answer a question. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Mr. Couey, and next we have Doctor, is it
Dr. Avant or Avant?

DR. AVANT: Avant.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Yes, sir, and following
you, Doctor, is Ray, | believe it is Ray
Huggins or Hudkins, with the Coffee Party.

Doctor, you are recognized. Thanks for
being here.

DR. AVANT: I am Dr. Calvin Avant,
Executive Director for the Escambia Pensacola
Human Relations Commission, and 1 come to speak

to -- the last time you redistrict, made your
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redistricting, you took as a part of those who
would represent us iIn the Florida State, State
House, our State Representatives, and diluted
the minority vote in District I11.

You took and the two, one of the two
larger and older minority communities and took
them out of District 11l and put them in
District 1l1. That was communities of Wedgewood
and Lincoln Park.

Both of those communities were taken and
put into, and when I say diluted, these are
voters, these are people who are a larger block
of minority voters who actually vote, and they
were taken out of District Il and put into, |
mean, out of District 11l and put into District
1.

Then they took and brought in Gulf Breeze,
which was explained to you which is the great
majority of the people who live in Gulf Breeze
are from the majority community, and we have
been -- the minority, as has been stated, the
minority community here in Escambia County has
not had a Representative in Tallahassee ever.

And to take and take, to move where there

was an opportunity, 1 think, I don"t know if it
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was the last time they voted or the time
before, but one of the candidates lost by about
800 votes, and it is well over about four or
five thousand votes out in the area that I just
got through speaking of.

And 1T we are looking at having an
opportunity for everyone to be represented, we
need to go back and revisit how you move, how
you set that district up and to assure that
minorities have an opportunity to have
representation in Tallahassee out of Escambia
County. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,
Doctor. That is very helpful testimony. Next,
is it Ray Hawkins, and I apologize it 1 messed
up your name?

MR. HUDKINS: That is all right, it has
happened before.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: And my handwriting is
even worse than yours, sir. Thank you for
being here, and we welcome you and you are
recognized, and following Mr. Hawkins will be
Dustin Ponder.

MR. HUDKINS: Thank you very much. IFf

your handwriting is worse than mine, | hope you
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use a computer .

My name is Ray Hudkins. 1 live here in
Pensacola. As you stated, | am a member of the
Coffee Party USA, which is a nationwide
organization that is only 15 months old.

I coordinate the activities, both here in
Pensacola and for the state of Florida, and our
group is a democracy movement that seeks to
give voice to people of all political
persuasions.

We are grassroots volunteer, non partisan
citizens who are independent of all political
parties and labels. We strive to restore
stability to the political process to reduce
the extreme polarization of interest where both
Republicans and Democrats too often act in the
interest of their parties rather than of
people, and you have heard previous speakers
state to that fact.

One statement in the Declaration of
Independence stands out that essentially says
your task is to listen to the people, and I
quote, ""Governments instituted by men derive
their just powers from the consent of the

governed."
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My goal here today is to add to the voices
that you have heard and will hear following me
to take a message to your leadership and to
you, listen to the people.

Recent legislative actions by the
Legislature and the Governor indicate you are
not listening. Please do so.

You have heard a lot about the timeline
already, and I will echo the comments of the
folks that preceded me. And I have to ask, it
only took you 60 days to modify our election
laws which are probably in violation of the
Voting Rights Act.

Why can"t you give us maps in 60 days? |
don"t understand the process. | understand the
process that you would like to hear from the
public, but 1t is almost like a poker game.

You want us to show our hand before you show
yours, and 1 would offer that you have the
experts on the staff to come up with the maps
and then put those forward for public hearings.

These public hearings essentially are very
difficult for us as citizens who are not
familiar with the software, not familiar with

all of the demographics that go into that, and
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I think i1t would be so much more open and
transparent i1if you actually provided the maps,
and I would ask you to think about suspending
public hearings until you can provide the maps
and then go back and do the hearings.

I wasn"t aware of the comment that was
made about the Constitution forbidding the
Legislature from taking action until 2012.

I would assume taking action is actually
finalizing something. Preliminaries are not
action taken, they are action proposed. So
notwithstanding the 2012 Constitutional
requirement, I don"t think there is any problem
with you providing maps prior to 2012.

And as previous speakers have said, you
essentially are putting a person who wants to
run for office in a position of not knowing who
their constituents are, and that is kind of
important when you are running for office.

The sad but true fact is that a lot of the
redrawn districts possibly will end up iIn
court. | think a way to avoid that is to have
the public Input on what you are proposing,
because ultimately you are going to take your

version of the public input to the review
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process, and iIf you get the public input you
can start building a consensus of the public
that ought to short circuit some of the
potential litigation.

And quite frankly, I with rather have the
Legislature and the citizens making decisions,
not lawyers and judges.

As a Coffee Party activist 1 am pledged to
support leaders who work towards positive
solutions and hold accountable those who
obstruct them. Please be leaders that we can
support and thank you very much for allowing me
to comment.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, sir.
We appreciate you being here. Our next speaker
is Dustin Ponder, who comes all of the way from
Gainesville. Thank you for driving all this
way to talk to us here in northwest Florida,
and following Mr. Ponder is Janet, 1 believe it
is Delorge, Janet Delorge. So if Ms. Delorge,
iT you will be on deck. Mr. Ponder.

MR. PONDER: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: It is good to see you
again.

MR. PONDER: It is good to see you again.
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I was in Tallahassee yesterday, so | got to see
some of the process and full disclosure, I am
writing a story about it. So you will probably
be seeing more of me as we go on, hopefully not
speaking as much, but since there is no maps to
talk on today, 1 want to talk on the two points
that Representative Weatherford brought up, and
I want to talk about this process here today,
because ultimately it we want to get the
process of redistricting right, I mean, as
Weatherford said, it is going by public input.

It 1s going by what has to happen here
today. So this has to be correct, this actual
meeting, these 26 meetings, but first, the
first point that Representative Weatherford
brought up was that we are bound by the
Constitution, we can®"t act on maps until 2012,
because we can®t vote on them, but that doesn"t
mean we can"t start the process now of looking
at maps.

Nobody is asking from the public to vote
on maps right now. 1 mean, 1 just don"t think
that is a legitimate reason not to have maps,
and I would hope at the next meeting that that

is not brought up, because to me, that just
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sounds like a sort of misleading talking point.

The second reason is that we don"t want
any preconceived notions. That is why
supposedly we are having these 26 meetings, SO
the voice of the people can be heard and this
process can be correct.

And if I was to take your word, that might
be a legitimate reason, but I would say the
actions here today say otherwise, and as great
as It is to see so many retirees and some paid
lobbyists from Tallahassee here, this meeting
is at 10:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.-m., and I know we
have 17 percent real unemployment right now,
and some of those folks might have been able to
make i1t iIf they weren"t looking for jobs that
don"t exist.

But the question 1 have and I would like
answered and 1 would like somebody to maybe
write 1t down i1f you want and make comments at
the end, is iIf you want public input from the
vast majority of people who work for a living,
how can you schedule a meeting at 10:00 a.m. to
1:00 p-m., and multiple meetings throughout the
process.

I mean, there is many more, | think my
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actual meeting in Gainesville, 1 believe is at
10:00 to 1:00. That might be 6:00 to 9:00, but
one of those iIn my home district is actually
going to basically disenfranchise all of the
people who work for a living from being part of
this process, and that just tells me that we
don*t care about working families here.

And it tells me that we don"t care about
the people at NAS, the Naval Ailr Station or
military veterans, farmers, like Senator Evers,
we don"t care about those people®s input, you
know, and that is sad to see.

So one thing 1 propose, | encourage all
areas that are having meetings to have evening
sessions. | appreciated that in Tallahassee
yesterday, so that everybody could have their
input, because if we have a public meeting with
no working people, with none of the vast
majority of people you represent here, that
means we have a flawed process.

I mean, today is a failure in my opinion,
and if we have a flawed process, we are going
to have flawed districts, again, that
disenfranchise exactly who has been coming up

and saying here.
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So 1 mean, that is all | got to say today
and hopefully we will see some maps and we will
see some working people here and we can have a
legitimate discourse and move forward. Thank
you .

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you, Mr. Ponder,
and we look forward to seeing you tonight at
6:00 o"clock at Ft. Walton Beach.

MS. DELORGE: Hi.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Janet, how do you
pronounce your last name?

MS. DELORGE: Delorge, Delorge.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Delorge, and following
Ms. Delorge is Lonnie Hawkins.

MS. DELORGE: Thank you for allowing me to
express a couple of my concerns about
redistricting in Florida.

The Florida voters have spoken. Last year
Florida voters passed Amendments V and VI
setting standards for redrawing boundaries the
Census. These Amendments passed with a
63 percent favorable vote, greater than
lawmakers consider to be a super majority in
legislative settings.

Please recall that you as Legislators
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increase the requirement that citizen initiated
proposals would have to meet the super majority
standards for approval rather than a simple
majority vote.

Supposedly this change was made so that we
could prevent frivolous i1ssues from becoming
part of our State Constitution.

The citizens of Florida have met and
extended that requirement or those
requirements. Thus, as members of the
Redistricting Committee, have an obligation to
follow the constitutionally approved standards
of these Amendments.

Among the standards to be taken into
account is that of geographical boundaries.
That includes city and county boundaries. 1
want to address that aspect of the provision.

At the present time, Escambia County, the
largest county in the area with the largest
population has no representation in the Florida
Senate.

Escambia County has a population of almost
300,000, and Santa Rosa®s population is
slightly greater than 150,000.

That gives these two counties almost
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enough population for one State Senate seat.
Only a small portion of Okaloosa County, of
their population would need to be added to

these two counties to reach the approximate

470,000 population that would be required for a

State Senate District. | encourage you to
consider that.

Further, a district drawn in this way
would meet the standards of being compact.
That was one of the standards approved by the

voters in Amendments V and VI. The entire

populations of Escambia and Santa Rosa would be

in one Senate District rather than having the

southern part of Escambia County iIn another

district as it is under the current designation

from the last census.

I understand your concerns about
incumbency and political party affiliation.
However, the Constitution is the document by
which we as Florida citizens live and our
future iIs dependent on it.

It is imperative that you set aside your
personal considerations, Incumbency and that
you act as statesmen rather than political

politicians with party -- party affiliations
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and follow the dictates of the voters when you
redraw the boundaries of the Florida
Legislature. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Ms. Delorge. We appreciate your testimony, and
next Is Lonnie Hawkins, and behind Mr. Hawkins
is Bea Thomas. Mr. Hawkins, welcome, you are
recognized.

MR. HAWKINS: Thank you. Let me give you
a proper welcome which has not been done yet,
and Mayor Vince Webbs is no longer with us, so
let me welcome you to the western gate to the
sunshine state.

This morning | had the privilege of
sitting on the shores of Pensacola Bay watching
the Blue Angels as they practiced. And now 1
have the privilege of addressing our elected
representative government. What other country
in the world has that opportunity?

My concerns are that most of the people 1
have heard speak today have i1t backwards. You
represent us. We are here to propose to you
our ideas, not you to come down and dictate to
us, here is the pre-drawn maps, what do you

think of the work I did.
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We are to let you know what we think. So
let me tell you what I have done. Yesterday I
got on to the My District Builder, didn®"t quite
understood how 1t worked, so this morning 1
came and asked, tell me how it works.

So 1 played with Escambia County just to
start. Mr. Laird, you are not going to get
three Representative Districts. You don"t have
the numbers for two. So you going to have to
share with other counties.

The way they run now, 1 am not real
excited about long wide districts, but 1
understand the logic from ten years ago that
the rural farming districts had a lot in common
and maybe they needed a farmer representative.
The southern districts that deal with tourism
and business, maybe they needed their own
Representative or Senator.

We could compact them and I have looked at
the maps and, yes, i1t will work compacted, but
in doing so do we dilute the representation
from the north and the south iIn our diverse
counties.

So I don"t envy the job that you have to

do. I have heard this morning what you did ten
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years ago. 1 look at our local delegation and
I think two members were freshmen ten years
ago, they didn*"t do anything. They sat back
and watched the process.

Now you have grown up and you get to deal
with 1t. Again, 1 don®t envy what you are
doing, and yes, 1| do have a job, I took a
personal day of leave to be here today, and
also Mr. Laird, let me save you that drive to
Crestview. Senator Evers does have a Pensacola
office.

And the other thing I am confused about,
when 1 got here this morning, the doors weren"t
closed, they were open. There iIs nothing here
but transparency. So thank you for doing open
transparent hearings. The good news is, two
down, 24 to go. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Mr. Hawkins. We appreciate your testimony.
Next is Bea Thomas, and following Bea Thomas is
Susan Watson from the ACLU. Bea Thomas, you
are recognized, and thank you very much.

MS. THOMAS: Hi, and good morning to
everyone, and 1 just want to make it real, real

brief. 1 really thank God for people, thank
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God for this awesome creation of the United
States of America, but we have to make sure
that we -- we step on people toes because we
always are voicing our opinion.

Somehow or another you never get i1t right,
okay. I represent District 111, and I do see
my Representative. 1 do see the County

Commissioners at the County Commission, the

woman that is over District I1l1. District 111
do have some problems. It has got to be worked
out.

The redistricting of it, 1 have to study
it. The word of God say study thy self, show
thy self the proof, but you have to have wisdom
and knowledge of how to do it.

So what I represent is this is my motto to
everybody, we have what we voted for, we had a
chance, we voted, so what we have and we voted
for, we got to work with i1t one way or another.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Ms. Thomas. We appreciate you being here, and
next up Is Susan Watson with the ACLU of
Florida, and behind Ms. Watson is Jerry, |

believe i1t is either, I think i1t is Jerry David
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from the Florida Farm Bureau, and 1 apologize,
Mr. David, if 1 -- if I am misunderstanding the
writing of your last name.

But Ms. Watson, thank you for being here
and you are recognized.

MS. WATSON: Thank you. Chairman Gaetz,
Chairman Weatherford and Committee members. It
was my honor a couple of weeks ago to attend a
public meeting when Chairman Gaetz was the
featured speaker.

Fortunately, Chairman Gaetz was not under
a gag order then, for he cheerfully explained
the process of redistricting, telling us that
ifT things go well and without a hitch, and
there is always a hitch, but if things go well
without a hitch, we should know nine days prior
to qualifying where the district lines are
going to be drawn.

Why, 1 wonder? If this isn"t a recipe for
chaos, then I don"t know what is. Florida“s
process is one of the slowest, most secretive
in the country. There is no reason that it
needs to be like this, unless the goal i1s to
keep the people iIn the dark and confuse them.

Show us the maps now. You say that you
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invite us to draw the maps, but that is your
job. It is your job. It is our job to comment
on them and give meaningful input.

We can®"t do that if we don®t have maps.

It is a slap In the face to the voters of
Florida to cut us out of the process. You are
holding meaningless hearings with no proposals
and nothing for us to comment on.

The voters overwhelmingly approved the new
rules for redistricting. It is an insult for
you to ignore us and to play games with us.
Please stop playing games now. Please stop the
charade, please show us the maps. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Ms. Watson. It is good to see you again.
Next, is it Jerry David?

MR. DAVIS: Davis.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Davis, | am sorry,

Mr. Davis. And following Mr. Davis is Brett
Ward, and Mr. Davis, it says here you are with
Farm Bureau, is that right, sir?

MR. DAVIS: Yes, | represent -- I am a
Director for Florida Farm Bureau, and represent
Escambia, Okaloosa and Santa Rosa Counties.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Well, you are recognized

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491
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and we are delighted you are here, sir.

MR. DAVIS: Thank you, and one thing I
wanted to say to the delegation that we
appreciate when we call that a Representative
or one of ya"ll contact us back and we have
never had any problem having any communication
with our Representatives and Senators, and we
appreciate that fact.

And we represent agriculture in the rural
communities of the area, and agriculture is the
second leading economic generator for the state
of Florida, and we would like to see that
recognized, as well as the fact and appreciate
Mr. Hawkins® comment about the districting.
They are giving the rural areas a voice iIn the
Legislature.

Without these horizontal areas of it we
would be leaving off the large expanse of the
state that is rural and agricultural, and we
appreciate the continued focus on that through
the state, and also this redistricting process.

And as you see, we are working farmers and
several of us have taken off our days to come
down here because this is very important for us

to have a voice in our state government, too,
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and we appreciate the fact that ya"ll are here
to do that.

And we represent thousands of working farm
families there and we would like to continue
representation of them, and one of the
definitions of a good compromise is when all
parties go away semi mad and we don"t, we do
not envy your job here of doing this
redistricting, but we appreciate your efforts
and we would like ya"ll to keep these points in
mind as you go through the process.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very, very
much, sir. Next is Brett Ward, Mr. Ward, and
following Mr. Ward is Mike Godwin.

Mr. Ward, thank you for being here with us
this morning and you are recognized.

MR. WARD: Mr. Chairman, ladies and
gentlemen. It is a pleasure to speak with you
today on this redistricting. | guess I will be
in the minority.

I have heard a lot of speakers speak about
the south end of the county and how they would
like to encompass the north end into their
district.

We are Americans first, Floridians second

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491
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and that is about where i1t stops when it comes
to this county. The south end is the south end
and the north end is the north end. 1 am very
pleased right now with the way the district is,
the district lines are drawn. We have
representation.

IT Escambia County is put together and
Santa Rosa County is put together, we will lose
our voice on the north end because the south
end of both counties is where the population
iS.

Right now we can pick up the phone, call
Representative Broxson, Senator Evers, we can
get a response, they know who we are. That is
a good thing in state government.

The goals are different. The lifestyle is
different. Let us keep the districts where the
rural area is represented. |If the districts
are put together we will lose our voice, and as
a member of Escambia County Farm Bureau Board
of Directors, we choose to lead and not follow
in this.

We will give you a map as it presents, as
It pertains to our rural area, not for the

whole county, but just for our area, and how we
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would like to see i1t drawn. Thank you for your
time.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, sir.
We appreciate your being here. Mike Godwin is
our next speaker and following Mr. Godwin 1is
David A. Nelson.

Mr. Godwin, we appreciate your taking time
to come to speak to the Committee today and you
are recognized, sir.

MR. GODWIN: Thank you very much. 1 am a
farmer in the north end of the county and also
a Board member of the Farm Bureau. | have no
problem with the east/west boundary lines
district and the way it is laid out, because
that gives agricultural i1ts representation and
that is why 1 came today to tell you that
agriculture needs its representation.

I am probably a minority here. | doubt if
anybody else has got spray planes and we
service two or three counties iIn the north end
of the county with ag planes and we don"t need
to be tied in with Pensacola, because 1 doubt
1T anybody down there has any concern other
than not to use iIt.

But we would like to stay in the north

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491
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end, all agricultural areas across the north
end of the counties be represented by one
Representative. Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, sir.
Our next speaker is David A. Nelson and
following Mr. Nelson, Ellen, I believe it is
Ellen Roston.

Mr. Nelson, thank you for being here
today. We appreciate your taking your time and
you are recognized in front of the Committee.

MR. NELSON: Thank you very much, Senator,
and Representative Weatherford and the rest of
the panel. 1 certainly appreciate the
opportunity to have this venue and have a
chance to make some comments about this
process.

It is a heck of a thing to follow these
three gentlemen who just talked eloquently
about the needs and the special demands of
farmers and we respect that.

However, going forward we all know that we
are in a tremendous crunch as i1t relates to
revenue. Our cost of everything is rising, and
unfortunately, even though for those who have

special interests in the south end of these
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counties, like Escambia, Santa Rosa and
Okaloosa, the north very definitely has those
same kind of issues and respect that.

But unfortunately our counties are not put
together that way, and I think that it is
important that your emphasis be put on how we
can encourage the integration of these counties
in order to maximize our potential to develop
revenue, to encourage development and hold on
to our citizens.

Having grown up here and had to leave for
many, many years to make a living, | see that
process. 1 have got four kids, they are spread
all over the country. We need to keep our
people home, and 1 think we have to have
vehicles put in place that help to encourage
understanding and representation that brings
counties together and 1 don"t think that your
Job is going to be easy.

I certainly don"t envy you, and this job
of redistricting i1s only a precursor to the
problems that you are going to face or those
who will sit in your seat will face in
providing for our government, and providing for

the needs of the citizens.
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And 1 think the only way that i1s going to
happen is if we can find a way to bring
together these divergent needs and divergent
priorities and make the county entities that we
have, and unless we are going to change that,
unless we are going to redraw the lines of
counties, then I think 1t is incumbent upon all
of us to give the input and for you to do the
Job to bring our alignment of districts back to
respect and maintain the integrity of our
counties and our communities. Thank you very
much.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, Mr.
Nelson, for your testimony. Next is Ellen, 1
think it is Roston. Did | get that right,
many?

MS. ROSTON: Yes.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: And following Ms. Roston
is Muriel Wagner. Ms. Roston, we appreciate
your being here, and you are recognized.

MS. ROSTON: Thank you. Escambia County
lacks full and fair representation in the State
Legislature. This iIs a statement made by when
Dr. Wynn Teasley, former Head of the University

of West Florida Whitman Center for Public
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Service, and | agree with his statement.

The Senate District Il i1s currently drawn
so that the northern sections of Escambia,
Santa Rosa, Okaloosa, Walton and Bay Counties
are in District 11.

Senate District 1V is currently drawn so
that the southern portion of Escambia, Santa
Rosa, Okaloosa, Walton and Bay Counties are in
District 1V.

The counties are effectively split between
north and south for their Senate Districts.
District 1V is approximately 115 miles long. |1
can tell you that as a resident of Escambia
County 1 rarely go to Bay County and feel 1
have little in common with them.

I would like to see the district lines
drawn not between north and south, but county
by county. A combination of Escambia and Santa
Rosa Counties would nearly equal the population
required for one Senate Seat.

Escambia County residents do have a lot in
common with Santa Rosa County residents. We
are neighbors. Many people live In one county
and work in the other. Basing the Senate

District on county boundaries rather than an
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artificial split between north and south, not
only makes more sense, but follows the
requirements of the Constitutional Amendments
passed in 2010 by the voters, that districts be
compact, contiguous and use existing political
boundaries. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,
Ms. Wagner. We appreciate your coming today.
Next is Beatrice, | think it is, is it Belous?

MS. BELOUS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: I am sorry, ma“am, could
you pronounce your name for us?

MS. WAGNER: My name is Muriel Wagner.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: I am sorry, behind
Ms. Wagner is Beatrice Belous. 1 apologize,
Ms. Wagner, you are recognized. |1 am glad that

you are here.

MS. WAGNER: And her name -- her name is
pronounced Belous.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Is that right?

MS. WAGNER: Yes.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Well, we are delighted to
have you here to help us pronounce the name of
the person behind you.

MS. WAGNER: I am a former Escambia County

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491
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Commissioner. And 1 was the first woman
elected, woman elected in her own right, and I
ran a grassroots campaign.

So that meant that 1 had to have a very
experienced group of people mapping out my walk
routes, because you don®t do grassroots
campaigns without walking.

That was a while back, and 1 don*"t intend
to do that again, but 1 just want to remind you
that I ran into a great many problems.

One of them was the fact that 1 would
sometimes have one side of the street but not
the other, and when you got into the northern
part of the District it was very confusing and
I found other candidates who were also
confused.

I just want to point out that Escambia
County"s Districts are not perfect, and Wynn
Teasley™s column about perfect districts should
be examined a little more carefully.

When 1 moved to the congregate living
facility where I live now I found out that I
live In a gerrymandered district. That the
person, a person running for School Board, 1

guess, didn*"t want those old folks voting for
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them. So I mean, 1 have in a gerrymandered
district.

I think we should look at the districts in
Escambia County with an eye to using the
natural resources to determine the boundaries
so that people can have a logical way of
examining them. And that is all | have to say.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very, very much
for being here and for your service to this
community.

And now Beatrice, you are up, and behind
her is Barbara Goggins, 1 believe it 1is,
Barbara Goggins.

Thank you very much for being here today,
ma“am, and you are recognized to speak before
the Committee.

MS. BELOUS: Well, 1 don"t have much to
say, but 1 read in the paper that only the
leaders can make, can answer questions. So |
want to know why the others have taken the
Fifth Amendment so as not to be able to answer
our questions.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Well, ma®"am, let me spike

that rumor for the second time. 1t is not true

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1420



[EEY

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

60

and any member of this Committee will have the
opportunity after the public has been heard to
make any comments they wish. The floor is
yours.

MS. BELOUS: Well, all 1 want to say is
that we do need the fifth -- the fair
amendments to the Constitution of Florida and
hope that we can get a fair district and not
gerrymandering. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you. Thank you
very much, ma®am, for being here. Next is
Barbara Goggins and behind Ms. Goggins is
Rosemary Hays-Thomas, with the League of Women
Voters. Ms. Goggins.

MS. GOGGINS: Yes, 1 am Barbara Goggins.
At one time 1 lived in the south part of
Escambia County and I was in a snake and the
snake went from the Alabama line all the way
down to Panama City.

Now, there is very little that the western
side of Pensacola has to do with Panama City.
I don"t know whether you saw the joke, that
really the districting was a joke in the
newspaper where some of our districts looked

like Barney and some of our districts looked
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like the Enterprise taking off someplace.

I would like to say that we live in a
county, this is Escambia County. We have
county government, we have county police and
the least we can do iIs have districts that are
within our county and close.

We have a lot in common with Santa Rosa
County and 1 am not even sure where Baker
County is. So the only thing I ask you is to
put our governments together, and 1 would like
to pass my thing to this gentleman and maybe
you can look at my jokes.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: We will be happy to. We
will be happy to. We need a little good humor.
Now, Rosemary Hays-Thomas from the League of
Women Voters, and beyond Ms. Thomas, the next
speaker i1s Jack Livingston, if you can be
ready, Mr. Livingston.

Ms. Hays-Thomas, thank you for being here
and you are recognized.

MS. HAYS-THOMAS: You are welcome, thank
you for giving us the opportunity to talk to
you today. My name is Rosemary Hays-Thomas. |1
am Co-President with Dr. Paula Montgomery of

the League of Women Voters of the Pensacola Bay
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area. The following comments are made on
behalf of our local League.

First we would like to make the point that
the timeline sent by the Legislature is
unrealistic and seems designed to cause massive
voter confusion, which is a quote from the
House®"s own redistricting attorney, Miguel
DeGrande.

The legislative plan to pass the maps iIn
March of 2012, at the end of the session does
not leave enough time for court approval and
Department of Justice review before the end of
the period to qualify to run for the election
in June, which is going to cause a lot of
confusion.

This seems calculated, regardless of what
the motive was, the appearance is that it is
calculated to give a big advantage to
incumbents, since challengers will not know the
districts nor have time to campaign.

This contradicts Amendments V and VI which
were passed as has been said previously by
almost two-thirds of the voters of the state.

Other states are drawing their maps early.

Why can*t Florida? Prepare the maps earlier,
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debate them in the fall and pass them at the
beginning of the session, which would double
the time available for challenges and
pre-clearance by the U. S. Department of
Justice.

Second, as other speakers have asked,
where are the maps? These hearings are not in
my opinion a good use of taxpayer time and
money, and I have thought a little bit today
about what It Is costing the state to have
these hearings, looking around at the numbers
of those of you who have had to travel
distances to be here and the audio visual
equipment and the software, all of that stuff.
It seems to me pretty expensive.

There aren®t my maps on which we can
comment. Legislators and their staff are paid
by us to do things, like draw maps for
redistricting and we are curious why you are
asking us to do it.

Considerable time and money has been spent
to develop the software for the public to play
with, drawing maps that give them the illusion
of inclusion. What will be done with these

maps drawn by citizens who do sign up to use
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the system?

I also call your attention to the fact
that this system is restricted to people who
are computer literate and have access to
computer facilities. Why are maps not
available to which we can react?

Other states use hearings to solicit
public comment on maps. Why can®t Florida? If
maps have been drawn, where are they? Why
aren"t they made available to us for public
comment?

These hearings are spending our time and
money to give the illusion that the Legislators
are listening to the citizens, and 1 grant you
the attribution that that is what you are doing
today, listening to us, but the voters of
Florida have spoken loud and clear in approving
Amendments V and VI, and we expect our
Legislature to implement them.

Third, in this time of financial austerity
why iIs the Legislature spending taxpayer money
to oppose fair districts, as were specified in
Amendments V and VI which were overwhelmingly
approved by the voters?

The Legislature has hired expensive
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lawyers and held Committee meetings to fight
the Amendments, argued to the Supreme Court
that they should be stricken from the ballot,
tried to confuse voters by adding a misleading
Amendment V11, which was stricken.

Worked to avoid pre-clearance by the U. S.
Justice Department, joined a lawsuit
challenging their constitutionality, thus using
taxpayer money to challenge Amendments that
were passed by two-thirds of our voters, and
finally chosen a course that requires the state
both to attack and defend these Amendments,
because our Secretary of State, Kurt Browning,
is the Defendant in this case.

This appears to me to be a giant waste of
money, which I wish you could spend for other
purposes, such as maintaining and creating
employment for our citizens. |1 thank you for
the opportunity to speak today.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Ms. Hays-Thomas. Next is Jack Livingston and
following Mr. Livingston is Patti Hightower.
Mr. Livingston, thank you for being here.

MR. LIVINGSTON: Good morning.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: And you are recognized.
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MR. LIVINGSTON: Good morning, thank you,
sir. 1 am Jack Livingston. 1 am the President
of Escambia County Farm Bureau and we have over
4,900 members in Escambia County.

We have already had three of my friends
speak for Farm Bureau, and one of the persons
before 1 came up was talking about he didn"t
know where the districts where, didn"t know
where people®s offices were. Jeff Miller, 1
have called him numerous time, Greg Evers, I
did him when he was In the House. 1 visited
with him several times. | never called him
when he didn"t help me out, didn"t help out the
farmers of Escambia County.

Doug Broxson is new, Clay Ingram, Clay
Ford, 1 visited with all of them in Tallahassee
and in their offices locally, and speaking on
behalf of Escambia County Farm Bureau, we like
the way the districts are east or west and for
the benefit of the farmers, the people who grow
our food, we would appreciate it if it would
stay that way. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Mr. Livingston, for your comments. And next is

Patti Hightower. It is good to see you again,
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Patti. Thank you for being here. You are
recognized.

MS. HIGHTOWER: Thank you for this
opportunity, and just as a disclaimer, 1 am
speaking as Patti Hightower. Some of you may
know me as a School Board member in Escambia
County, and 1 need to tell Ms. Wagner 1 did not
draw those lines.

All of our School Board members are
involved In this process even as we speak. So
we know what an awesome task you have laid in
front of you and you know that you will be
lucky i1If you can please one or two people, but
I did want to get -- so many people have spoken
so eloquently about the issue here of trying to
draw the lines vertically rather than
horizontally.

I respect our Farm Bureau people because 1
understand what their needs are, too, but 1
would like to say that 1 would like to concur
in creating the Escambia, Santa Rosa County
District, if that is at all possible.

I would also like to ask you to be sure
that you publicize the hearings after the maps

are drawn as well as you have done this. 1
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really appreciate as a taxpayer, | know It is a
lot of money, but the opportunity to see where
our population is, how it has grown, be able to
play with the lines.

We have been doing that as our school
districts and i1t is a valuable tool and I want
us to be able to also be able to comment once
those lines are committed to paper or to the
computer, so that we all have the same
opportunity since the maps are not drawn now to
be involved afterwards.

And the other thing is, again, about the
contiguous lines and using the geographical
boundaries. So thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you, Ms. Hightower.
Thank you for your service to the people of
Escambia County. Next we have Jeremy Evans and
behind Mr. Evans is Jeff Bergosh.

Mr. Evans, thank you for taking the time
to come today. You are recognized. We are
delighted to have you.

MR. EVANS: Thank you very much. First
off I am the Vice Chairman of the local
Republican Party in the nature of full

disclosure, and 1 have been involved iIn
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politics since I was a little kid and this 1is
the first time I have ever heard of anybody,
any organization, government organization,
supplying the data to the citizens so the
citizens can then go and make the maps
themselves.

On top of that you are going to as many
places as you can throughout the state to speak
to anybody who wants to come and let us tell
you what we think, and I have never heard of
anybody being more transparent than that, and
there always can be calls for more
transparency, but 1 think you have done more
than anyone has ever done before, so for that I
thank you.

There has been several things said today
that 1 would just like to kind of offer a
rebuttal to.

The first is there has been a lot of talk
about vertical lines for the Senate and I would
like to remind the Committee as you know, and
everybody here, that you have to draw lines for
an entire state and it you make a vertical line
of Escambia and Santa Rosa, there has huge

population centers in the panhandle, the next
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encompass as many people as is necessary to
create a district.

And I think if, as many people get on to
My District Builder as they can, they will find
that it iIs not easy to do to make districts
that are geographically concise and have a
population, the population necessary to create
districts.

It is also true in the, with House
Districts. You have, you know, Escambia County
with a large part of the population in
Pensacola. So if you are going to have
multiple districts, a large parts are going to
come in and encompass part of Pensacola in
order to make the population centers necessary
to have a vote -- to have a district.

And the final statement 1 would like to
say, there has been a lot of talk about
disenfranchising voters based on, based on
partisanship, and I think that a lot of times
we cannot define people in their political
views by the party they choose to be registered
by .

IT that were the case iIn the 2010
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election, we have more Democrats registered
statewide than we do Republicans. 1 think we
have 4.7 million Democrats and 4 million
Republicans, and yet in the statewide election
that doesn”t have anything to do with
geographical boundaries we elected an entire
Republican Cabinet for the first time, and by
the Democratic candidates in most of those
races garnered under 40 percent of the vote,
and what that says to me, at least somewhat, 1is
that it all Democrats voted for all Democratic
candidates, then we wouldn®t have had that
election result.

And not at all times can we look at
people, look at, look at race, creed,
partisanship and say those are the people that
they choose to vote by and I think when we do
that we start to box people in unnecessarily
and 1 hope that as you move forward you choose
to look at more than just race, partisanship,
gender, whatever i1t is, and try to create
districts that best suit the state.

And 1 know that you are going to have
challenges, because the Supreme Court and the

courts are going to have to say whether or not
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you chose to favor or disfavor any individual
or candidate.

So I don"t envy you for the rest of what
you are doing. Thank you for being here today.
I appreciate it.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Mr. Evans. Next, Jeff Bergosh who says he is
here on his own behalf as a private citizen,
but 1 know that people also are aware that you
are a public servant and an elected official,
serve with great distinction here in Escambia
County.

MR. BERGOSH: Thank you very much, Senator
Gaetz. First I want to welcome everyone to
Pensacola, again, | want to echo that
sentiment.

As Ms. Hightower mentioned, the School
Board and our counterparts and the County
Commission are doing a similar exercise on a
much smaller scale, thankfully, and so I know
what you are doing is difficult.

I appreciate the fact that you have taken
the time to come to Pensacola, and 1 appreciate
the fact that you are going to listen to all of

the people that want to speak.
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I came In here with some things that 1
wanted to say. | am glad that 1 am further
down the line so I could hear some of the other
folks speak, but I do have one thought and I
would like to leave that with you.

When you look at Escambia and Santa Rosa
County, there is a lot of similarities and
there is a lot synergy between those two
counties.

We have our news channel, we have our
newspaper. When you move over to Okaloosa you
lose a little bit of that. They have their own
identity, their own major newspaper.

When you go through the process 1 would
just like to say, there is enough population
there that we could do three State Reps Seats,
two from Escambia and one from Santa Rosa, and
a majority of one Senate District, and 1 have
heard the compelling arguments from the Farm
Bureau.

It makes sense to me, however, what I
would say to that is if you look at any group
of people you are going to have a Doctor living
next to a lawyer living next to a mechanic.

Just because you are a farmer doesn"t mean you
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are entitled to something special.

I mean, we all appreciate what you do,
believe me, 1 do when 1 go to Walmart and 1 buy
corn, but with that said 1 think it Is more
important to keep geographic boundaries in
tact, and also as a School Board member 1 will
say this, too.

When you start moving things all of the
way over to Destin and Panama City, Okaloosa,
Walton county, when it comes to issues that
relate to schools, issues that we confront as
School Board members and representatives, we
have some unique challenges here in Escambia
County.

We have poverty. We have demographics
that are quite different. 1 think If you
consolidate the seats and you are able to put
one Senator and two Reps from Escambia, 1 feel
we would have a better connection with our
Legislators.

So | appreciate you coming here. Please
give some thought to what I said and thank you
for your time.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you. Thank you

very much, Jeff. Marilyn Badessa is our next
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speaker, Marilyn Badessa, and behind
Ms. Badessa is Vivian Faircloth.

Ms. Badessa, thank you for taking time to
be here today, and you are recognized.

MS. BADESSA: Okay, thank you. 1 just
want to say | agree.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Would one of the
Sergeants or one of the staff members please
pull the microphone down. There you go.
Sometimes those are hard to pull up and down.
I didn"t know how flexible it was, but thank
you for being here and please start again.

MS. BADESSA: Well, 1 agree with many of
the other speakers, Lynn Laird, Paula
Montgomery and Jeff Bergosh.

I really think that it is unfair. The
current districting is unfair to the people in
Escambia County as a whole, and I really would
like to see the districting be more compact and
vertical, and also I would like to see, | hope
that you all would not keep fighting the
passage of Amendments V and VI.

That you would go ahead and let, get on
with the process so that we can get these

districts done In a good time.
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CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Ms. Badessa. Vivian Faircloth is our next
speaker, Ms. Faircloth, and behind her is Don
Richards.

Thank you for being here, Ms. Faircloth,
we are anxious to hear your testimony, and you
are recognized.

MS. FAIRCLOTH: Thank you very much. 1 am
Vivian Faircloth and 1 am a resident of the
city of Pensacola. 1 had looked forward to
being able to see your initial maps to get an
idea of your philosophy on how the lines for
the redistricting would be done, would be
drawn.

The differing points that prior speakers
have pointed to showing the different
philosophies really illustrates the fact that
we really need to have something tangible so
that we could have the beginning of a
conversation.

Escambia County is a population of
297,619. It i1s the largest county in the area
and has sufficient population for two
Representatives.

At the present time Escambia County has
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one Representative iIn the House and none in the
Senate. At the same time, Okaloosa County,
population 180,822, has two Senators and one
House Representative.

Santa Rosa County, about half the size of
Escambia County with a population of 151,372,
has two House members residing.

The present structure is not really fair
in my view. The population iIn Escambia County
IS 68.9 percent white, 22.9 percent black, and
9.2 percent of other races.

Santa Rosa County has 87.8 percent white
with 5.4 black and 6.8 other races. Using
existing count, Escambia County boundaries
would allow racial minorities to having more
equal opportunity to elect representatives of
their choice. Thank you for allowing me to
speak.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Ms. Faircloth. We are delighted that you were
here, and Don Richards is our next speaker, and
following Mr. Richards is David Radcliffe.

Don Richards, thank you for being here, we
are grateful for your testimony.

MR. RICHARDS: Senator, thank you very
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much, and Chairman, | appreciate you allowing
us the opportunity. 1 understand that

Representative Broxson must have known that 1
was going to have a comment to say about him.

One of our previous speakers talked about
some of you in your freshman stint not
accomplishing much, and I was just going to say
and his ears were probably going to be burning
now that he is gone and 1 see Clay Ingram has
left as well, so they obviously knew I was
going to speak.

Representative Broxson was clearly a
statesman this year representing his people on
the south end of his area, and 1 just want to
say thanks for doing that.

Another spokesperson, 1 believe the first
person up was here chastising quite a few of
you in terms of what you have attempted to do.
IT you listen to what went on today so far, you
have an unenviable task, a task of you can"t
satisty all of these people any of the time and
only some of them some of the time, and that is
going to be the way it is.

I live on the south end of Santa Rosa

County and 1 don"t object to the districts the
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way they are at all. 1 was born and raised in
Escambia County, and like one of the other
speakers, had to leave to earn a living. 1,
too, have five kids and they are all in
Atlanta, not here.

Vertical districting, if you go back to
vertical districting, there are going to be
people that don®t understand what they are
about to get into with that. Maybe it is
better representation.

I have no complaints and I can name
everyone of you and everyone of you can name me
because 1 have spoken and met with you on
numerous occasions from first year
Representatives to Representative Evers when he
represented us and now Senator Evers,
Representative Gaetz and Senator Gaetz, all of
you, | don"t have any trouble getting access to
any of you.

I applaud you for being able to on one
hand represent farmers that have a very diverse
need for this county and the other counties,
and to some of the other gentlemen that have
been here, and ladies that have spoken about

this, think about what you said.
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You want vertical districts and 1 want
Escambia and Santa Rosa County to come together
with one Senator.

Do you really? 1 am not sure that Santa
Rosa County would enjoy a one-third, two-third
representation. Maybe that is not the way that
it should be done, and 1 believe you have got
more representation right now with horizontal
districts, even though it is played forward
from the City of Gulf Breeze, that is the City
of Gulf Breeze with 5,000 some odd people, not
in proper Gulf Breeze that has 50,000 plus
people.

I happen to live out there, and we don™"t
have a problem saying we are from Gulf Breeze.
Some people have a problem understanding we
don*t necessarily live in the city of, but I
have never had a problem of contacting
Representative Clay Ford and talking with him
about all of the iInterests of northwest
Florida, not just the city of Gulf Breeze.

Senator Evers, former Representative Evers
represented Gulf Breeze on the south end
equally well, although he is a farmer and 1

happen to know where Okaloosa is and Baker,
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been through them quite a bit, every week back
and forth to Atlanta.

I go right through the whole stretch of
Santa Rosa County. It is extremely diverse,
and the south end and the north end happens to
be represented right now by Representative
Broxson.

We have two Senators that we can call on
to help get together to be a block vote in
bringing some interest to something in the
state of Florida. 1If you go to all vertical
boundaries you are going to have Santa Rosa
County and Escambia County and that is the far
west.

It is fun to say we are the western gate
of the sunshine state, but i1t is also kind of
an appalling task if you are having to compete
for monies, as Senator Gaetz has found out on
the BP Oil Spill, the impact for the south
Florida people where the oil never got to.

So 1 think i1t i1s really a daunting task
that you have. 1 hope you will listen to what
has been heard loud and clear today by a
majority of the people, and that is we would

like to see some idea of what you have in mind
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as far as maps go. | think that is kind of
important.

I have gone on My District Map and I have
played with that and I am fairly computer
literate, and I would venture to say that quite
a few people here would have a challenge
working on that iIf they even had the computer
to go on and get on that and not be confused
with exactly what that meant.

So please, think about that and when you
complete these, get back out as quickly as you
can with your ideas of what is going on.

And thank you all so much, you are elected
people representing us. Most of you, while we
may not always agree, | certainly applaud you
for the efforts that you have done this past
year and thanks agailn ever so much.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much.
Thank you, Mr. Richards. Next is David
Radcliffe, Mr. Radcliffe, you are recognized
and after Mr. Radcliffe is through we have John
W., 1 think 1t is Baker, from Pensacola.

Mr. Radcliffe, thank you for coming today.

MR. RADCLIFFE: Thank ya®"ll, thank ya“ll

for letting me speak. 1 am from south Santa
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Rosa County. I have no problems with the way
the Senate Districts are aligned and
everything. South Santa Rosa County though, 1
felt for many years and everything, having us
split up into having three different
Representatives from our area and everything, |
do like to see i1t go back and have the
horizontal lines.

I think that the tourism, the financial,
the retail iInterests of the south Santa Rosa
County, south Escambia County, and if it
stretches far enough to get over into south
Okaloosa County, all of those people have the
same interest and everything and they are very
diverse from our, the interest of the rural
north of the county.

While I have had great results and great
communications with Representative Broxson and
Representative Ford, I do feel like
Representative Broxson®s district goes way up
to much, way too far north and everything and
takes into too many, too much of the rural area
to represent of the interest of south Santa
Rosa County. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, sir.
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Next -- is 1t Mr. Baker? Thank you very much,
Mr. Baker, for being here, and behind Mr. Baker
i1s Robert Rollo.

Mr. Baker, thank you for taking the time
to come before the Committee today, and we look
forward to your testimony. You are recognized.

MR. BAKER: Thank you so much. Thank you
for having this meeting to let the citizens
actually be involved and have some say. 1
surely don"t envy your task, because it reminds
me of a retarded school teacher mathematician
that says | am going to give you a test. You
have to give me the answer to these ten
numbers, but 1 am only going to give you seven.

So i1t is, you kind of got to get started
before you get started. So I don"t envy your
process. All you need is a little magic.

I would like to say that in the iInterest
of public awareness that we, the notification
that 1 got of these hearings indicate that they
are going to be numerous and they are going to
go into the night. So the poor people that
work in the day time can also be heard if they
would like.

And 1 believe Senator Evers does have an

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

84

Page 1445



=

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

85

office here in Pensacola, down on Palafox and
he has been extremely responsive to any of our
needs, 1 believe.

I am here as a citizen. 1 have lived in
Pensacola for eight years, and the -- 1 am a
member and on the National Leadership Council
of the Social Citizens Group that numbers over
30 million people.

I have been at meetings with some of these
people at national meetings around the country,
and they all have the same problems that we are
having right here right now.

Everybody wants to be involved in the
process, but we want the process to be
completed so we can see what i1t looks like
before we get involved in it to see If we want
to be involved iIn it and it is kind of a
ridiculous situation.

So most of what 1 wanted to be said has
already been said and there is no need to
belabor that, but I do think that we should
give strong consideration to the farm industry
in the north end of our counties up here,
because they can"t really move their farms and

come down to be included.
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So 1 think we are going to have to give a
little bit and 1 would highly recommend strong
consideration to some east/west districts, that
the farmers are absolutely essential, and by
the way, 1 am not a farmer.

And in the interest of total disclosure
now that the Coffee Party has been recognized
here, our group here is the Tea Party. Thank
you so much.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, sir.
Appreciate your being here. Mr. Rollo, you are
up next and following that is Ronald McCollum.
Mr. Rollo, we appreciate your taking time to
come here today and you are recognized.

MR. ROLLO: Thank you, sir. My name 1is
Robert Rollo. 1 am a native of Santa Rosa
County. 1 didn"t just come here over the
weekend to be a part of this thing.

I would like to say that 1 am here as a
member of the Tea Party. Like the Coffee
Party, the reason the Tea Party exists today is
we have not been totally happy with what our
elected officials have been doing.

I would say that 1 wrote several of you,

ya"ll have responded nicely, 1 got no problem
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with that, but the fact that you are having
these meetings, we don"t have maps, we are
somewhat not informed as much as we would like
to be.

That 1s the reason the Tea Party exists
today. We exist to hold your feet to the fire
that you would do what you said you would do
during an election.

I for one am In favor of the east/west
districts, not up and down the county lines. |
think that would be a disaster for everybody.

I think that Representative Senator Evers is
doing a good job.

I think what happened last year was a sure
Bill to, the Septic Tank Bill tells me what
would happen if I had the municipal Pensacola
or municipal Gulf Breeze representing me.

Now 1 have got to dig up my septic tank
once every five years and have i1t inspected.

So 1 don"t need no more of the city politicians
telling me.

I think you draw the districts to
represent the people, and as far as the people
I think they have the obligation to dig into

your backgrounds, all of the candidates and try
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to find out how you would vote in similar
situations, educate the voters.

That is our responsibility, and I think we
should do it and then when politicians come
around knocking on our doors, we can ask them
educated questions about their philosophies and
try to determine how they are going to vote,
because so far we have been sorely
misrepresented.

I have been represented and everybody in
the state of Florida has, so they don®t have a
problem with that, but I think there is a lot
of responsibility to be answerable to the
people and that is one of the reasons 1 am
here.

But I would like to challenge the audience
to get involved in the process and if you don"t
like the way it is going, 2012 is when you have
your chance to make it right, and not only
that, people that ask for your vote in 2012,
they need to know that you are not going to
forget i1t and go home and go fishing, which 1
love to do, or go hunting, which 1 love to do,
but 1 still want to know and am deeply

disappointed that 1 got to dig up my septic
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tank every five years.

I don"t have a problem with 1t, and 1
don"t like Tallahassee telling me 1 got a
problem with it, but I would just like to say
that 1 don"t envy your job.

I have had the fortune or misfortune or
whatever 1t may be to be in sort of the same
situation, but 1 am looking forward to the
results. | personally would have loved to have
seen some kind of a map.

I think that would have been highly
helpful and 1 ask that you provide them as soon
as possible and then not go back to Tallahassee
and hold your hearings.

I attended hearings in Tallahassee over
the Septic Tank Bill, in the pecking order in
which people speak In Tallahassee i1s not what
it Is In Pensacola or Ft. Walton Beach. The
lobbyists, the pecking order down there is
entirely different.

We were put at the end of the speaking
schedule and most of the time as you referred
to several times today, time cut us off. We
would have like 15 seconds to have our speech.

So I don"t envy your job, but please take
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Representatives to represent the districts such
as the farmers or what-have-you and I would
appreciate it very much. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,

Mr. Rollo, appreciate your comments. Next
Ronald McCollum, and after Mr. McCollum speaks
we have Martin Simmons, but before Mr. Simmons
speaks, after Mr. McCollum speaks we will take
a very short break.

We will take a five minute break for
members of the audience and Legislators to use
the facilities if they care to or stretch their
legs.

But right now, Mr. McCollum, we are
delighted you are here and you are recognized.

MR. MCCOLLUM: Thank you, Senator Gaetz.
In all of the years that I have been down here,
lived here, we moved here in "04, I have not
had any problems getting in touch with my
Senator or Representative, as some of the other
earlier speakers have.

When you look at the past history of this
nation we have always had gerrymandering

throughout the history of this nation. When
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the Democrats were in power and those of you
who spoke earlier in this hearing who have a
Liberal view point. | used to be a member of
the Union, 34 years iIn a trade.

About midway 1 changed parties and now
consider myself a Conservative, but when you
look back at the Liberals they were promoting
gerrymandering.

We have Liberals here today who are
arguing about the way it is done now, and have
tried to work to change the laws. 1 have an
ACLU member right next to me here who iIs very
opposed to what is going on here, and | oppose
the ACLU.

I think we have a party in control of this
nation right out of the White House who is very
difficult to work with, and 1 just want to
thank each of you. |1 feel for what you are
going through. 1t is difficult times we are
living in, we are trying to get men to work,
people with jobs and stuff in the state.

We have expenditures that have grown
beyond what is coming into the state and I want
to thank each one of you for what you are

doing, the way you are working hard for this
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state, and that is about it today. Thank you,
again.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, sir,
for your testimony today. Representatives and
Senators, | would ask that we stay pretty
close, but we will take a five minute recess
and my clock says 11:42. So we will back here
at 11:47 and commence. This Committee stands
INn recess.

(Brief recess taken.)

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Ladies and gentlemen, we
are going to reconvene. If you would all
please take your seats. |If you will all please
take your seats we ask the Committee members if
they will find their spot as well. Thank you
all.

During the break there were -- there were
two suggestions just of procedure that were
made and we are going to follow those
suggestions.

The first was that there were folks who
thought that all of the people up here who did
not have name tags in front of them were staff.

That is not true. The fact is that

Speaker Designate Weatherford being a true

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1453



=

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

93

Conservative decided not to afford name tags
for the House members, but all of these folks
are members of the Florida Legislature.

They are elected Representatives or
Senators, and they have been chosen by their
respective presiding officers by Speaker Cannon
and President Haridopolos to serve on the
Redistricting Committee of the House and the
Reapportionment Committee of the senate.

So you may feel free to chat with any of
them about anything you would like after the
hearing or during any breaks we might take.

The second suggestion that was made to me
by several people was to ask that there be some
clarification at the end of the meeting, and 1
will ask the Speaker Designate to do this.

A clarification as to the timeline of the
process, whether or not it is really true that
somehow It Is preordained that maps would not
come out until the end of the process, to try
to provide a little information about that
since there seems to be some either
misconceptions or some scripts that were
written without knowledge as to -- as to what

the real facts are.
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But now why don"t we continue with our --
with our public testimony and Martin Simmons,
thank you very much for being here today, and
you are recognized.

MR. SIMMONS: Glad to be here. Thank you
all for being here. Full disclosure, I am
State Committee man for the Santa Rosa County
for the Republican party, but In my opinion on
this issue, | don"t know if it Is partisan or
not, because 1 haven®t asked anybody, nobody
has told me anything about the lines, drawing
of the lines, the directions.

No matter where you draw the lines, north
or south, east or west you are going to have
Representatives and Senators that are going to
live In one county but have part of their
district that is in another unless you drew
them according to county lines.

For instance, Greg Evers, of course, as
Senator when he was Representative he lived in
Okaloosa County, but he represented the other
counties, did a fine job doing the same thing.

You are going to live, I know, Senator
Thrasher, you live i1in one county and others,

and no matter how you draw the lines, there is
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not going to be county lines, east or west.

IT the things are going correct now and
granted, we do have to trust that if you live
in one county and i1t is not our county, you
will still represent us, but I don"t think that
drawing, changing the line direction is going
to change that much if any. Thank you very
much.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, sir.
We appreciate your testimony. Next we will
hear from Lee Smith and following Mr. Smith or
Ms. Smith, whichever it is, we will hear from
Jewel Cannada-Wynn. And so next, Lee Smith,
please, Mr. Smith, quite obviously.

You are recognized. Thanks for being
here, and we welcome your testimony.

MR. SMITH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and
members of the Committee and staff. My name is
Lee Smith, 1 am a resident of Escambia County,
here not representing any group or
organization, as a private citizen.

However, 1 am a professional engineer, and
I am working today, 1| am approved leave so 1
made time to come down here to be heard.

I am just, very briefly, wanted to speak
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in support of the communities of interest of
the fact that coast communities have different
interests, different goals, different values
than the rural communities iIn the north.

Just the fact that 1 think the north part
of the county should have their own district
and this other their own. | wanted to thank
you all for allowing input before the maps are
drawn, but 1 would encourage you to make maps
available, you know, sooner than later. |
think the balance of having both is a good
thing.

Not wanting to be redundant 1 will
conclude and thank you all for your time.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much, sir.
We really appreciate your comments today. Next
it is Jewel Cannada-Wynn, and following her,
Steve Bogan, please.

Thank you very much, ma®am, and you are
recognized.

MS. CANNADA-WYNN: Thank you, Jewel
Cannada-Wynn. Thank you so very much for
having this here and I know the question of the
process has been questioned. However, you have

to get all phases of opinions from everyone,
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and thank you very, very much.

It had been mentioned in previous
speakers, they have covered most of the things
that | wanted to cover. This is not about
whether or not 1 can contact my Representative,
because 1 have contacted my Representative.

My Representative iIs Representative Clay
Ford, and his office has been very, very
helpful . However, the two main concerns that I
have is one, District 111, a little history and
research on your part will go back to ten years
ago when that district was redistricted and you
took out a predominantly black district and
included the Gulf Breeze district which was a
predominantly white district.

I felt as a simple citizen that that was
wrong and that was a disenfranchise of my vote
personally that to have an opportunity for an
African-American to be elected from this
district was taken away from me by that
particular action by our State Legislature.

The second thing is the way iIn which the
districts are done now with the Senators. Here
in Escambia County sometimes 1 felt like we had

an absence of power to make things happen
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economically.

I think the way the districts are run now
it impacts us economically. To our west we
have a state and counties who vigorously
support economic development In that area.

I feel like Escambia County does not get
Its representation because of the way the lines
are drawn and focuses effort on increasing our
economic development so that we can be
competitive here in Escambia County when
compared to our sister county to the west.

Santa Rosa and Escambia County, we are
sisters, we do have many things in common and |
would hope that we can come together to have
one voice so that we can strengthen our
position In reference to economic development.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Ms. Cannada-Wynn, thank
you very much for being here today and for your
testimony.

Next, Steve Bogan. Mr. Bogan? We will
come back to Mr. Bogan in case he had to step
out for a moment.

Next is Anthony Washnool, Mr. Washnool.

And following Mr. Washnool will be Bessie

-5491
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Vallianos, 1 believe and I apologize if I
butchered that name.

Mr. Washnool, thank you for being here.
You are recognized.

MR. WASHNOOL: May it please the public
servants and the public for which they serve,
D. Anthony Washnool, I am a trial attorney 1in
Arkansas, Tennessee and the state of Florida.

I reside in Chumuckla with my wife on a
family farm. Since the Spaniards occupied
Pensacola these people have been on this land
and I am humbled today to talk about the change
in a ten-year redistricting plan.

I think that over the last ten years the
logic for which the lines were drawn has
probably changed. 1 would ask that in the next
ten years we take greater concern for future
generations.

That we consider the economic
opportunities and growth. While dealing with
the actual line drawing, one of the things that
I noted from the charts that you had was that
for the most part in this north part of the
state, the districts aren"t going to change

that much in terms of population.
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I think the largest deviations in
populations are Districts 111 and IV in the
State House. The rest of i1t iIs pretty
standard, about the same. There iIs not a
tremendous need for redrawing the lines, except
under the considerations previously named.

And as an overarching principle I would
just have this prayer, that the special
interests not be the drive, that the actual
demographics be for a cross section of the
community and that our future generations are
considered when making any change, whether it
be specifically on redistricting or any other
vote for which you serve the public.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you, Mr. Washnool,
we appreciate your testimony very much, and |
apologize, is it Bessie, V-a-I-I-i-a-n, 1 think
0-s? Is she here? We will come back to her if
she had to step out for a moment.

Our next speaker then would be Art Rocker,
and following Mr. Rocker would be Johnny
Blackman. Mr. Rocker, if you are here we would
be delighted to hear from you. We will give
you a moment to come down.

We gave you no warning here, 1 am sorry.
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You are Mr. Blackman. Is Mr. Rocker here? All
right, we will come back to Mr. Rocker as well.

Mr. Blackman, you were recognized. We are
delighted that you are here today, and
following your testimony we will hear from Gail
Honea, please.

MR. BLACKMON: Johnny Blackmon, Escambia
County, Pensacola. | am here to speak on
something that 1 wasn"t aware of until probably
now, because 1 wasn"t aware of the fact that
Wedgewood and Lincoln Park was taken out of
District 111, in which Gulf Breeze was added
and I am here I think Dr. Avant and Ms. Jewel
Cannada-Wynn spoke to this, so I won"t go any
further, other than to say that 1 wish you
would put Wedgewood and Lincoln Park back,
which 1s a black voting district, heavily black
voting district.

I am not asking you to take Gulf Breeze
out, but 1 am asking you to put back Lincoln
Park and Wedgewood, thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much for
your testimony, sir. Next is Gail, is i1t Honea
or Honea?

MS. HONEA: Honea.
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CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you for being here,
and you are recognized before the Committee,
ma®am.

MS. HONEA: Thank you. My name is Gail
Honea. | am not here representing any group.

I worked in state government, actually, in
Virginia. 1 have worked in the private sector,
and I just retired from managing a non profit
in Escambia County for 15 years.

And when we were always worrying about
efficiencies, this i1s a little off the side,
but 1 would want to let you know that iIf you
want to have efficient people In office you
might want to try to recruit people from the
non profit sector, because they are the hardest
working and most efficient people I know.

For those of us who love and believe 1iIn
our democracy, we feel that enhancing the
ability for more citizens to participate in the
process of citizenship and feeling connected to
our government is a positive thing.

So | concur with previous speakers, that
districts should be drawn keeping counties
together and with folks that have something in

common together rather than the north/south
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divisions that we currently have.

I would ask our elected officials to draw
lines that are conducive to citizenship
participation in government rather than
enhancement of the reelection of Incumbents as
some folks feel is currently done.

This year unfortunately, our officials
have taken steps that many of us feel make it
each more difficult for citizens to vote and
Teel connected to the process of citizenship.
And now that our elected officials are wasting
tax dollars fighting Amendments that two-third
of our citizens have passed, to me this shows a
disrespect for the citizens of the state of
Florida.

I hope that maps will be available sooner
than later so that we can see them and make
decisions and give you feedback.

I hope the process of giving feedback will
not be limited to Tallahassee where everyone
will have to travel in order to talk to you.
And while the work you have ahead of you is
difficult, 1 do remind you that you chose to
run for this office and do the work you have to

do. Thank you.
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CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you, Ms. Honea.
Thanks for reminding us we are all volunteers.
Clorissti Mitchell, Clorissti Mitchell? Thank
you for being here, Ms. Mitchell, and behind
Ms. Mitchell is Rebekah Johanson, who will be
our next speaker.

Ms. Mitchell, we appreciate you taking
time from your day and you are recognized
before the Committee.

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, 1 took the day
off, because at 10:00 1 am usually at work. |1
do respect that there is a lot to consider in
drawing the lines, and I am going to be very
brief because 1 really do hope that you guys
address and answer some questions at the end.

One, the state of Florida should ensure
transparency, fairness in compliance with the
Voting Rights Act and with equal protection.
You should ensure one person, one vote.

You should redistrict in a way that avoids
minority vote delusion which to me is what
happened with District 11l. You should avoid
drawing district lines so that minority
population is over concentrated or packed into

election districts.
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You should also be careful to avoid
cracking or fracturing, which is drawing
district lines so that an area of concentrated
minority population which is large enough for
separate representation and that it could
constitute one or more majority, minority or
majority black district is divided and spread
among several districts that are predominantly
white.

I also respectfully request that you avoid
drawing lines, drawing plans that erode
minority rights relative to the status quo,
that i1s, that you avoid creating retrogressive
redistricting plans.

I am aware of the redistricting principles
outlined in Section 20 and 21 of the Florida
Constitution and they must be adhered.

Districts shall not be drawn with the
intent or result of denying or abridging the
equal opportunity of racial or language
minorities to participate in the political
process, or to diminish their ability to elect
a representation of their choice.

In addition, districts shall be compact

and contiguous. Additionally, 1 want to ensure
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that the long established principles by our

Constitution and the Voting Rights Act of 1965,
are continued and we ensure one person one vote
and avoid minority vote delusion. That is all.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much for
your comments. Next is Rebekah Johanson.

Ms. Johanson, you are our next speaker, and
then we are going to go back to those who we
missed.

Ms. Johanson, thank you for being here and
you are recognized.

MS. JOHANSON: Thank you. First of all, I
have to say, I live in Cantonment right now,
but I did grow up in Barineau Park. I think
Senator Evers might know where that i1s, but 1
don®t know if many of you do.

But it is north, it is in the north end of
the county, and 1 have to say that in contrast
to what a lot of speakers have said, there are
differences county to county, and 1 would
really like to encourage you all to keep that
in mind.

I live in Cantonment and when 1 go
downtown or when I go to the beach, I love that

part of my county, but I know it is very, very
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different from where 1 live and from where many
of my fellow citizens live, and please keep in
mind the demographics and the interest of the
area and not just the arbitrary county lines in
moving forward, because i1t is very, very
different.

So you might be surprised to know this,
but 1 am not a farmer, 1 am a college student.
I just got my BA in Political Science Prelaw
and 1 am pursuing a Master®s degree iIn
Political Science Public Administration, and 1
find redistricting extremely confusing and
tedious and 1 -- you have my sympathy in moving
forward.

But please keep in mind that the vast
majority of the people you represent are most
likely going to be even more confused by this
process.

People don*t choose to do this stuff and
the average citizen really doesn®t know a lot
about what is going on as you, as you
redistrict. And so | would encourage you to
keep those concerns in mind while moving
forward. 1 am not here to complain.

I really appreciate you all being here,
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but 1T 1 did have one complaint 1t would be the
time for now the fact that 1 am unemployed
during the summer until the fall term starts
has worked in my favor, but the majority of the
people my age, the people who are like me can®t
be here because we do have jobs or class or
responsibilities.

So please keep that in mind while moving
forward. It is great to have this meeting, but
it would be even better if the average citizen
could attend. So do keep that in mind that the
citizens, the people are listening and we are
paying attention.

We are here to help, we appreciate the
chance to help, but we are also here to hold
your feet to the fire, because that is what you
elected us to do. 1 mean, that is what we
elected you to do, something like that. Thank
you .

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very, very
much, Rebekah, for your testimony. We would
like to go back now to those who we missed who
may have stepped out. We want to make sure
everyone has an opportunity. Steve Bogon, if

Mr. Bogon is here we will take his testimony.
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All right, Bessie Vallianos,

Ms. Vallianos, are you here? | thought that
was you, Ms. Vallianos, you held us in thrall.

Art Rocker, is Mr. Rocker here? If not,
that concludes the public testimony for those
who have turned iIn cards.

Let me ask, is there anybody here who
would like to testify but didn*t turn iIn a
card?

IT you are a little bit shy but you have
heard the testimony and now you would like to
testify, we are here to listen, is there
anybody? If so, would you raise your hand, we
will get to you with a card and take your
testimony now. Is there anyone?

Well, 1f not we thank all of those who
have testified, and also point out that the
face-to-face hearings are not the only way that
people are following the redistricting process
or having input into the redistricting process.
We have a very active on-line presence by many,
many, many Floridians.

We are picking up scores more almost by
the minute who are following us on the web and

through the Florida Channel and are giving us
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their views by e-mail, by Snail Mail and by
telephone. So we thank, thank them very much
for that.

We would like to now go to any comments or
questions from any members, any Representatives
or Senators who are here that you would like to
make .

Okay. I would like now to turn to our
Speaker Designate, and 1 have asked him to be
prepared to answer some of the questions of
fact that have come up. 1 realize that some
folks may have had a script prepared for them
or in advance of the meeting and may not have
had the chance to hear the Speaker Designhate®s
explanation of the process and the timeline and
the calendar that he gave at the beginning.

So I would ask him to reprise some of
those key points and respond to the points of
information that we have had raised by
testifiers today. Mr. Speaker.

SPEAKER WEATHERFORD: Thank you very much,
Mr. Chairman. |1 want to thank again the
members of the public who took time to be here
today. We got a lot of offers of sympathy, and

I wish I could get the same sympathy from my
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wife being gone so much, but she is not quite
as sympathic.

So 1 will tell you that the members of
this body and this Committee, we have dedicated
ourselves and sacrificed a lot of time and
effort to be here today with you and with other
people around the state of Florida, because we
recognize how important it is that we get your
input and we thank you for taking time from
coming from the north end of the county or the
south end of the county to be here and to be a
part of this process.

I would like to, it I could, Mr. Chairman,
answer a few quick questions that were brought
up during the hearing to see if I can"t clear
up a few things.

The first thing iIs In regards to
Amendments V and VI. We heard that referenced
many times. Make no mistake about it, the
Amendments V and VI were voted overwhelmingly
by the public to pass.

The Senator and myself and every member of
this chamber, both the House and the Senate
swears every two years to uphold and defend the

Constitution of the State of Florida, we will
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do that and we will faithfully uphold the
Amendments V and VI that have gone into law.

They are the law. They are the
Constitution, we will faithfully uphold i1t and
I want to make sure that is extremely clear.

The second thing is, there was a term that
was used a few times today and 1 want to be
very clear on this, and that was in regards to
a gag order, or that somehow members were asked
not to speak.

As you noticed just now, the Chairman of
the Committee asked if any member wanted to
speak or have thoughts or ask questions.

Yesterday in Tallahassee we had some
questions that were asked from members of the
Committee and we answered those questions.

There i1s no gag order. We have not asked
members not to speak, simply we have reminded
them that this is a listening tour. This is
one of the few times 1 have seen in politics
where you don"t sit back and listen to
politicians give speeches or pontificate for
hours and hours on end.

This 1s your opportunity to give input to

us and you have done so in a very thoughtful
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manner today and we appreciate that very much.
So there is no gag order whatsoever.

Thirdly, iIn regards to the maps. There
has been a lot of questions In regards to the
maps and why we don®t have them here today, and
I just want to point out a few things.

First of all, we believe In the
Legislature that allowing the citizens of
Florida to start the conversation first about
what you think before we start drawing the
first line is of the utmost importance.

Imagine if we would have shown up today
and said, here are the maps that we have drawn,
you know, here they are, what do you think. We
would have probably spent an hour of people
saying, how did you draw these maps and why
didn®"t you ask anyone who lives here their
opinion First before you drew them.

So we feel 1t is of the utmost importance
to make sure that we seek public input first as
opposed to coming before you and asking for a
rubber stamp from the public on maps that have
already been drawn without input whatsoever.

I also would like to point out that in a

letter that was sent to the Legislature just
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recently from the crafters of the Amendments V
and VI and Fair Districts, they asked us to
produce maps and to bring them to the public
hearings, and what was interesting about that
was over a year and-a-half ago when they
testified before the Legislature under oath,
they specifically said when we asked them if
they could help us draw fair districts, they
said they could not even attempt to do it, both
Ms. Freeman and Former Speaker Mills
specifically said they could not even attempt
to do it until they got public testimony from
the citizens of Florida.

So we are simply doing what they stated
two years ago, which is seeking the public
testimony from you, and we are grateful that we
have gotten i1t here today.

Lastly, in regards to the timeline which
IS very, very important, and 1 want to make
sure that 1 am clear about this as well.

In regards to the timeline it iIs important
to know, we were one of the last states to get
the census data from the Federal government.

We did not get the official census data

until April, which were in the middle of the
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Legislative Session that went into the second
week of May. So we were not able to do
anything with that data and start to have
public hearings until the summer, which we are
now doing.

On top of that, the Constitution says very
clearly that we cannot take action on any maps
until January of 2012. And so what we are
doing is we starting seven months before then.

We are taking three and-a-half months of
testimony iIn every pocket of the state of
Florida and then we are going to take the Bills
that are filed by members and by the Committees
and they are going to work their way through
the process with public input at every step of
the way.

And finally go when we get to January and
have our session, that we have moved up two
months just so we could do this early, we will
then take action on formal maps and plans.

I think those are very important things to
bring to the light. We encourage you to
continue to be a part of this process. This is
the most interactive redistricting process that

the country has seen.
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We have websites, we have social media, we
have e-mail, we have public hearings and all of
this public comment will take place throughout
the entire process, not In the beginning, but
through the middle and all of the way up until
the very end, and lastly, Mr. Chairman, 1 will
just say this.

I believe it is incumbent upon this body
to make sure that politics and partisan
politics specifically is not a part of this
process. The Constitution is clear about that.

We do not believe that politics has any
reason to be a part of this process and 1 think
it is incumbent upon us as Chairs and the
members of this Committee to make sure that we
put the citizens first and that we put the
voters and the districts and what is right for
the state of Florida ahead of anything that is
political, and I know that you will do that and
I will work with you as well and 1 look forward
to working with you and your leadership and
thank you very much for having us here in God"s
country today.

Thank you, members, for being a part of

this process. |1 can assure you, we heard you
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loud and clear. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GAETZ: Thank you very much,
Mr. Speaker, and there being no further
comments from members, President Margolis moves
we rise.

(Whereupon, the proceedings were

concluded.)
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and the contents thereof were reduced to typewriting
under my direction;

That the foregoing pages 2 through 117
represent a true, correct, and complete transcript of
the tape-recording;

And 1 further certify that 1 am not of kin or
counsel to the parties in the case; am not in the
regular employ of counsel for any of said parties; nor
am 1 iIn anywise interested in the result of said case.

Dated this 9th day of August, 2011.

CLARA C. ROTRUCK

Notary Public

State of Florida at Large
Commission Expires:

November 13, 2014
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WEDNESDAY, JUNE 22, 2011
11:00 A_M.

GULF COAST COMMUNITY COLLEGE

PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

Transcribed by:
CLARA C. ROTRUCK

Court Reporter
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TAPED PROCEEDINGS

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you all for being
here this morning. The Joint House/Senate
Redistricting Hearing is called to order.

We want to first of all thank Gulf Coast
State College, the Board of Trustees and the
Administration for allowing us to use this
facility today.

And thank all of you for being here,
especially members of the public who have come
to help us by sharing your comments and your
recommendations to assist in shaping
Congressional Senate and House Districts in
Florida for the next decade.

My name s Don Gates. 1 Chair the Senate

Reapportionment Committee. My colleagues to my

immediate left is the Speaker Designate of the
Florida House of Representatives,
Representative Will Weatherford, he Chairs the
House Redistricting Committee, and together we
are chairing these hearings around the state.
This -- this hearing is one of a series.
We started in Tallahassee, then went to
Pensacola yesterday, then to Ft. Walton Beach.

Today we are fortunate to be in Panama
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City, in Bay County, and then we will move on
to the rest of the state, and ultimately we
will be all of the way south to Key West. So
we will cover the State of Florida and hope to
hear from many, many people.

I would like to begin today so that you
will know who is here and where they have come
from, to ask the members of the House
Redistricting Committee and the Senate
Reapportionment Committee if they would just
state their name, whether they are a member of
the House or the Senate, and the community that
they represent.

And Mr. Guthrie, if you would hand the
microphone to our first member.

REPRESENTATIVE KIAR: Thank you,

Mr. Chairman. My name is Martin Kiar, and I
represent an area in south Florida called
Broward County, and thank you all very much for
giving us the opportunity to come and hear your
voices.

SENATOR MONFORD: 1 am Bill Monford. |
represent District 6, Senate District 6 and it
stretches from Madison County, that is Madison,

Jefferson, Leon, Wakulla, Franklin, Gulf,
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Calhoun, Liberty, Jackson, Gadsden and a little
bit part of Bay, right down the street down
here.

So 1f you are my constituent, glad you are
here. 1T you are not, 1 wish you were. Glad
to be here.

REPRESENTATIVE ADKINS: Hi, my name 1is
Janet Adkins, 1 serve in the Florida House and
I represent Nassau County, Baker, Bradford,
Clay, Union and Duval Counties.

REPRESENTATIVE NEHR: Good morning, my
name is Peter Nehr, and I am from District 48.
I represent Pinellas County.

SPEAKER WEATHERFORD: Hello, my name is
Will Weatherford. |1 am in the State House of
Representatives. 1 represent District 61,
which 1s 1In Pasco County.

REPRESENTATIVE MARGOLIS: Good morning, my
name iIs Sandra Gwen Margolis. | represent the
east side of Miami Dade County and a little bit
of Broward, just a very little bit.

REPRESENTATIVE FORD: I am Clay Ford,
Representative for District 3.

Ninety-five percent of my district is

Pensacola, five percent is Gulf Breeze, and we

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1483



[EEY

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

have got a beach up iIn that area, too, sort of
like Panama City. |1 feel at home here.

REPRESENTATIVE WILLIAMS: Good morning, my
name is Alan Williams, native, north Floridian.
I represent parts of Tallahassee, Leon County
and parts of Gadsden county. It is great to be
here.

REPRESENTATIVE COLEY: 1 am Marti Coley.

I represent District 7 here and the panhandle,
including Bay County and encompassing nine
counties in the panhandle.

REPRESENTATIVE HOOPER: Good morning,
everyone, | am Ed Hooper, Florida House, |
represent District 50, which is about one
fourth of Pinellas County.

REPRESENTATIVE FRISHE: Good morning, I am
State Representative Jim Frishe, | am from
District 54 which is the western edge of
Pinellas County, all of the beaches. 1 feel
right at home here.

REPRESENTATIVE CHESTNUT: Good morning,
Chuck Chestnut, District 23, a portion of
Alachua County and a portion of Marion County.

REPRESENTATIVE REED: Good morning, I am

Betty Reed, 1 represent part of east Tampa,
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Hillsborough County, parts of Riverview, and a
snibbling of west Tampa, and glad to be here.

REPRESENTATIVE CLARKE-REED: Good morning,
I am State Representative Gwyndolen
Clarke-Reed. Don"t let the New York accent
fool you, 1 am a native Floridian. | represent
House District 92, which is in Broward County,
representing the cities of Deerfield Beach,
Pompano Beach, Oakland Park, Wilton Manors,
Tamarac, and part of north Lauderdale, Victoria
Park area of Ft. Lauderdale. Thank you, I am
glad to be here.

REPRESENTATIVE CAMPBELL: Good morning, my
name is Daphne Campbell, I represent District
108, part of Miami, Dade County, and as we have
four municipalities, North Miami. We have four
municipalities, North Miami, North Miami --
North Miami, Miami Shores, El Portal and
Biscayne Park and I am glad to be here.

REPRESENTATIVE ROGERS: Good morning,
State Representative Hazel Rogers representing
areas of Broward County. Seven cities,
Lauderdale Lakes, Lauderhill, Oakland Park,
North Lauderdale, Tamarac, Sunrise, Plantation

and, of course, Broward County, 1.8 million
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residents.

It is good to be here. We are State
Representatives, representing the entire State
of Florida, so 1 thank you for being here.

REPRESENTATIVE BURGIN: Hello, I am State
Representative Rachel Burgin from the Tampa Bay
area, representing District 56 in Hillsborough
County.

REPRESENTATIVE BERNARD: Good morning,
State Representative Mack Bernard, representing
District 84 in Palm Beach County.

REPRESENTATIVE JULIEN: Good morning, my
name is John Patrick Julien, proudly
representing the Florida House of
Representatives District 104 which encompasses
North Miami beach, North Miami, Miami Gardens,
Opa Locka, the City of Miami, the City of
Hialeah and Unincorporated Miami-Dade, and it
is truly an honor and a privilege to be here.

REPRESENTATIVE PASSIDOMO: Good morning,
my name is Kathleen Passidomo, House District
76, which is Collier County and i1t includes the
City of Naples, the City of Marco Island,
Everglades City and as 1 indicated, less than a

ton of alligators. Thank you.
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REPRESENTATIVE GOODSON: Good morning, my
name is Tom Goodson, 1 represent House District
29, which runs from Mims, Florida through the
Space Coast, Brevard County down into Indian
River County. Thank you for having us.

REPRESENTATIVE HAYS: Good morning, and
thank you for being here. I am Alan Hays,
State Senator from District 20 which includes
parts of Volusia, Seminole, Lake, Sumter and
Marion Counties, right in the heart of Florida.
Thanks are being here.

REPRESENTATIVE BAXLEY: Good morning, I am
Dennis Baxley, a country undertaker from Ocala,
Marion County, representing District 24 there
for the folks there, fourth generation
Floridian. Love to be back in Panama City
today. Thank you for coming and talking to us.

SENATOR THRASHER: Good morning, 1 am
State Senator John Thrasher in District 8. 1
live in St. Augustine, Florida, and 1 represent
parts of Nassau County, Duval County, St. Johns
County, Flagler County, and 1 end up at the
International Speedway in Daytona Beach, and it
IS great to be here and thank you all for

coming this morning.
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REPRESENTATIVE CRUZ: Good morning, I am
State Representative Janet Cruz. 1, along with
my colleagues, Representative Reed and
Representative Burgin, represent a portion of
Tampa, Hillsborough County. It is an honor and
a privilege to be here. For those of you who
took time off of work, 1 appreciate you being
here.

For those of you that took time from your
golft game or time from the beach, 1 appreciate
you being here even more. Have a good day.

REPRESENTATIVE STARGILL: Good morning, |
am Representative Kelli Stargel from District
64, which is North Polk County and a lot of the
City of Lakeland.

REPRESENTATIVE TAYLOR: Good morning, I am
State Representative Dwayne Taylor from Daytona
Beach, Florida, where the world center of
racing and the world®s most famous beach on the
Atlantic, on the Atlantic side.

CHAIRMAN GATES: He got in real trouble in
Ft. Walton Beach last night.

REPRESENTATIVE DRAKE: Thank you, I am
Brad Drake. I represent House District 5. |

live about 45 miles down the road in Walton
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County. 1 have five counties here in the
panhandle, Okaloosa, Walton, Holmes, Washington
and Jackson. So thank you for letting me be
here with you today.

REPRESENTATIVE PATRONIS: Good morning.
Thank you all for coming today. Welcome to Bay
County, members. Constituents, 1 want to tell
you, this is probably the largest assembling
you have had of State Legislators in Bay
County*"s history, and please take your
opportunities to vet to them.

I am humble to have so many here in Bay
County and as 1 look at the audience, there is
members, you have the highest quality of folks
you are going to get testimony from here today,
and I am glad to be here with you.

I guess it would help, Peter Nehr pointed
out to me, I am State Representative Jimmy
Patronis, representing Bay County, proudly.

SENATOR EVERS: 1 am Senator Greg Evers, |
represent the northern portion of Escambia,
Santa Rosa, Okaloosa, Walton, Washington,
Holmes and North Bay County. So | cover
everything between Senator Gates and the

Alabama line.
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That 1s in District 2, and it is always a
pleasure to come to Bay County. 1 really enjoy
it. 1 guess I am from the what you call it,
the Sand Hills portion of Bay County is where 1
represent. So thank you very much. It is a
pleasure to be here today.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Well, there are more than
one way to follow the redistricting process.

We have obviously a number of people who are
here today. We want to hear from you In a
couple of moments, but we also want to let you
know that the Florida Channel is broadcasting
these hearings, and there are literally
thousands of people following us on the
Internet.

We have had very heavy Internet traffic
for which we are immensely grateful, and if you
are interested in following the other hearings
on the Internet or through the Florida Channel,
before you leave today you might want to ask
one of the Florida Channel people for the way
to do that or check with one of our
professional staff.

Our sole purpose today is to hear from the

public about how you believe the legal
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standards governing redistricting should be
applied in this community so that you can be
represented sensibly, fairly, equitably in
Washington and in Tallahassee.

Our procedures for today"s hearing are
simple, but important. It is important that
you sign In so that we can create a record, an
accurate public record of all attendees and
speakers, and also you may opt to join our
e-mail list or our Snail Mail list so we can
keep you informed about the redistricting
process and how it will be working, and your
opportunities for further input.

IT you have not signed in, please raise
your hand. If you want to speak, If you have
not filled out one of these speaker cards and
you would like to speak, we want to hear from
you.

So 1f you have not done that and you still
would like to speak, please just raise your
hand and we will have a member of our staff
come around and get you to sign a speaker card
so that we can add you to the list.

Is there anybody else who would like to

speak? We will ask later in case there are
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some people who come in late and that often
happens.

Before we begin I would like to recognize
the Speaker Designate of the Florida House,
Representative Will Weatherford, and ask the
Speaker D to explain how today®"s hearing fits
into the redistricting process. Mr. Speaker.

SPEAKER WEATHERFORD: Thank you very much,
Mr. Chairman, and it is an honor to be here in
Bay County. We are very pleased with the
tremendous turn out that we have today.

We are wrapping up our tour of God-"s
country starting in the panhandle and we start
here and are working our way south, but we are
very happy to be here today in Bay County.

And 1 think 1t is important that we take
just a moment to walk everyone through why we
are here today and some of the laws and
specific things that we have to do as a body to
make these decisions and why we are here
listening to you first.

Every ten years the Legislature is
required by our Constitution to redistrict the
state based on increases, decreases and

movements in population. Because Florida has
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grown so significantly over the last ten years
we are actually picking up two new
Congressional seats in the State of Florida.

Because some of our parts of our state
have increased or decreased disproportionately
in population, many House and Senate seats,
along with Congressional seats, will either be
adding population or losing population.

When redistricting is completed,
Congressional Districts must be equal iIn size
and each contain 696,345 people. The 40 Senate
Districts must also be nearly equal at 470,033
people and our 120 House Districts must also be
nearly equal at 156,678 persons.

There is a map at the front of the room,
right here behind us here, showing this area of
the state. The current boundaries of the
Districts and the numbers of persons which must
be added or subtracted from the current
Districts to achieve equal representation.

Equality of representation isn"t the only
legal requirement that redistricting plans must
meet. The laws and important court cases
governing redistricting are explained in detail

on the House and Senate websites.
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Those websites are listed on the
Redistricting 2012 brochure that was available
to you when you came in, and if you would like
a copy of that brochure and you do not have
one, this i1s what it looks like and we will
make sure that they are passed out to you as
well.

Our redistricting 2012 brochure summarizes
Federal and State laws and outlines topics we
will hope to be discussed here today at the
hearing. If you didn"t get -- those same
websites have available to all of the public
the demographic information from the U. S.
Bureau of Census that will be used in drawing
districts and redistricting software that
Legislators will be using to draw maps.

These websites will allow any member of
the public to see all district maps proposed by
the Legislature and also citizens, themselves,
to propose their own district maps for their
own communities, or for the whole state using
the very tools that the Legislators are using
themselves.

Before and during this hearing Senate and

House professional staff are available to show
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anyone the simple steps into getting on-line
and to making your submissions in the weeks to
come .

Every recommendation from the public will
be made available to the public, and iIn fact,
some public submissions have already been made
on the web. The submission of proposed maps
that makes -- that makes sense for your
community is the single most effective tool
that you can use to have a voice on how the
districts are drawn in the future.

The redistricting schedule under which we
are operating is imposed by our State
Constitution. The Constitution does not allow,
it does not allow us to act on legislative maps
before the second year after the census.

In other words, that means the 2012
legislative session. Now, this body and the
Legislature has accelerated that process as
much as we possibly can by moving the session
up from what is normally in March, up until
starting in January in 2012.

It has also been suggested that the
Legislature should draw maps first and then ask

the public to comment. And ladies and
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gentlemen, we believe that that puts the answer
ahead of the question.

There should be no preconceptions created
by politicians, but rather testimony should be
free and unrestricted for you. Our iIntent is
to use those recommendations made at the 26
hearings around the state and through our
Internet cites and the base -- as a basis for
developing one or more of our district maps.

We will discuss those options In open
public meetings before any votes are taken on
the maps even In committee.

Throughout the process we will solicit
additional public comment so that proposed maps
can mature with the public®s involvement. All
the public will have final approval and will
have final transparency before we vote on any
maps -

Whatever the Legislature votes on is then
submitted for judicial review to the courts to
insure that final plans meet every single legal
requirement.

Because our mission today is to hear from
you, 100 percent of the time between now and

1:00 p-m., will be used to insure that every
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member here has the opportunity to speak and to
present public testimony and to be listened to
respectfully without interruption or argument.

IT after every citizen has had his or her
say and there is time remaining before our
schedule is here for adjournment, any member of
the committee may make any statement or offer
observation.

Of course, any member of the Legislature
may also today or at any time propose a map or
a plan and we will make i1t available to you and
the public.

Mr. Chairman, thank you for indulging me.
I hope that this description of our schedule
and our process helps set the stage for a very
successful hearing.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you very much,

Mr. Speaker, and let"s get at it in terms of
public testimony. By Senate and House rules as
Representative Weatherford indicated, we will
adjourn promptly at 1:00 o"clock.

There are already over 20 individuals
signed up to speak. We hope more will sign up
to speak as we go. The last person who is

signed up to speak so far is Jamie Shepard, and
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I am an advocate for Jamie Shepard.

I want to make sure she has just as much
time as Barbara Day, who is the first speaker.
And so what that means is that we ask you to
impose on yourself a polite and civil
respectful time limit of say, three or four or
five minutes. Try to get it said in that
period of time.

IT someone else has said what you were
going to say, maybe you can think of something
else that might add value to the discussions
here today.

IT we get closer to our adjournment time
and more people have come in and have signed
up, then Speaker Weatherford and 1 will
probably ask you to observe a tighter time
frame just so that everybody gets an
opportunity to speak.

Our first speaker, as | indicated, is
Barbara Day, and 1 am going to call two
speakers at once so that you will know who is
on deck and you can be ready.

John McDonald from the Bay County
Democratic Executive Committee is second, and

Ms. Day, representing the AARP, is fTirst.
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Ms. Day, thank you for being here today, and
you are recognized.

MS. DAY: Thank you. Good morning,
Chairman Gates and Chairman Weatherford and to
the Committee members.

My name is Barbara Day and I do reside in
Panama City. |1 appear today as an AARP
volunteer.

I urge the Legislature to make the
redistricting process to be all it can be. As
you exercise your constitutional duty to draw
voting districts for ten years, beginning with
the 2012 election, AARP urges you to insure
transparency of the legislative redistricting
process, every step of the way.

Keep transparency in place with
redistricting discussions among members and by
members should be noticed and open to the
public.

Also keep transparency in place, meaning
the public has the opportunity to comment and
to have those comments meaningfully considered
by the Legislature during all legislative
redistricting proceedings and redistricting

proposals, that is before Legislators make
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decisions.

Insure timeliness of the redistricting
process and insure public input. The
Legislature has an obligation to meet the
Constitutional dictates as already expressed by
the Florida voters.

The Legislature owes Florida®s residents
and voters professionalism and timely
completion of the redistricting process. The
Legislature should know the procedural steps
that redistricting plans will need to complete
in order for there to be a timely qualification
of the 2012 candidates, under the new district
and for vigorous campaigns before voters cast
their ballots.

That means the Legislature should complete
its portion of the process sooner than later.
Remember to take steps to insulate the
redistricting process from the appearance of
conflict of interest.

For example, subcommittees of Legislators
could research and develop alternative
redistricting proposals for the areas of the
state remote from subcommittee members.

Geographic residences, perhaps, example,
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four areas of the state then refine and
reconciled for two halves of the state, then
refine and reconcile by the full chambers into
one state plan.

When i1t is time for your performance the
Florida voters will not favor undue expense and
delay in that performance. It is up to the
Legislator. What will it be, redistricting,
presentment or voter resentment?

I am confident that the Legislators, the
Legislature and its staff have the professional
competence and technical assistance to research
and propose new voting districts in accord with
all of the Constitutional and Federal
requirements. Wishing you good luck and you
make your best effort.

Thank you for your attention.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you, Ms. Day. It
was great to see you again. And next we will
have John McDonald from the Democratic
Executive Committee, and behind John, Ray
Gagis, please. Please be on deck. Thank you
for being here and we look forward to your
testimony, you are recognized.

MR. MCDONALD: Thank you, Senator. 1
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appreciate this opportunity and I would just
like to introduce myself.

My name s John McDonald, 1 am a Panama
City native, and, you know, 1 don"t have a
prepared speech or anything. 1 am pretty much
an average Joe and that is what 1 look out for.

I ran against Mr. Patronis in the last
general election, Jimmy is a good guy. I am
not here to talk politics. 1 just want people
to understand what iIs going on.

We have got -- we are spending a lot of
money on this right now. 1 mean, upwards of
$30 million is being spent on this process. At
the same time, we got state workers, teachers
being laid off. We have got an attack on
social services, our law enforcement, you know,
I think this is unacceptable, because 1 live
here and I know what the economy is like, and,
you know, our state economy, our state workers
are a big part of this economy.

CHAIRMAN GATES: And John, 1 apologize.

We would love to hear your views on economic
issues and you can come at a delegation meeting
or contact any of us, but if you could possibly

work your comments back into the purpose of the
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hearing, the redistricting just to be fair to
the others who are waiting to speak.

MR. MCDONALD: Well, I did get this in the
mail the other day and it is from Nature Coast
Conservatives, and it says that as Tallahassee
politicians decide our future it iIs time we are
heard, Bay County needs a voice. Bay County
deserves our own State Senator and
Representative, and with all due respect,
Senator, your family has representation in both
the House and the Senate, but Bay County does
not.

So what I am wondering here is what is
going to happen, you know, what is this process
going to lead to? 1 am just concerned once
again about, 1 grew up here, 1 want this area
to succeed, and 1 just don"t want, you know, so
much money being spent on a process of drawing
maps when we have teachers being laid off. We
have law enforcement being threatened, and, you
know, I am just -- 1 am sorry. | hope you
listen and I hope you heed the word of the
common man. Thank you, sir.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you so much for

being here. We appreciate your testimony, and
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Ray Gagis i1s next and following Ray we have --
we have Larry who gave us his first name, but
not his last name. So we are going to ask to
know more about Larry when he speaks, but Ray
Gagis, you are up.

Would you please come down here, sir,
because we want to put you on statewide
television. No pressure, no pressure.

MR. GAGIS: No pressure, but don"t say
nothing about me, because --

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you for being here
and you are recognized, sir.

MR. GAGIS: Well, I am like the last man.
I am not for people being laid off, because iIf
you look, the money today is troubling. It is
poured out iIn sacks from the government in
Washington, and I would say today, everybody,
everybody should cut back. If we don"t, we are
going to go like Greek.

Now, we got a Greek man back there. 1
never can get to him, but 1 am a Greek. 1
didn"t mean to say this much.

CHAIRMAN GATES: When you are a hole now,
quit digging.

MR. GAGIS: But if we don"t and you are

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491
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redistricting, back to that, are we going to
get more Representatives? Why? Why not use
the same amount of Representatives or cut back
on them or cut back on their pay?

I am not against anybody getting fired
from anything, iIf they can"t do their job, they
can go. They should go. 1 spent 20 years in
the Navy. 1 learned all 1 could about my job.
I done as much as 1 could for my job.

I have run a business for 26 years after |1
got out. I have never found the time that I
could not get a job, never, and today, the
people that is fed that won®"t work should not
be fed. It is a fact. Should not be fed.
Welfare is eating you to death.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you very much,

Mr. Gagis and thank you for your service to our
country.

Larry, can we learn more about you?

Larry, we hardly knew you. We will come back
to you in case you would like to come out of
the shadows.

Jean Miller i1s our next presenter, and
following Ms. Miller is Carolyn Herrera, if you

would be on deck, please, Ms. Herrera.
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Ms. Miller, thank you for being here
today. We appreciate your taking time and you
are recognized.

MS. MILLER: Thank you, sir. 1 appreciate
you having this hearing. The only thing I have
to say is | am a common citizen. Please, when
you redistrict, try to make the districts as
equal as can be with different groups of
people.

Do not make beaches one and farmers one,
because then you have unequal money that can
buy influence. Please remember this is for all
the state of Florida, not just one district or
one group of people. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Ms. Miller, thank you
very much for your testimony. Carolyn Herrera
is next, and following her Wayne Garnett,
please, Mr. Garnett, if you will be on deck.

Thank you, ma®"am, for coming today. We
look forward to what you have to say and you
are recognized.

MS. HERRERA: Well, thank you very much
for having me here. 1 -- forgive the northern
accent, I will never lose it, okay. But 1 do

want to say that while you are cutting back on

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1506



[EEY

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

28

everything, it needs to be cut back iIn
Tallahassee, too, as far as the government
goes.

But setting up the voting things 1 would
like to see it done by county. Keeping one
county together. |1 live in northern Bay
County, and I have no Representative, you know,
It Is spread out over the whole area, and it is
very, very frustrating.

I would just like to see i1f they could set
like a block coming down from the Alabama
border to the Gulf of Mexico and fit in the
number of people that you need in that area and
then move over to the next block and do that so
we can keep as many counties together as we
possibly can, where the whole county has one
group. And that is all I would like to say.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you, that is very
helpful . We appreciate it. And Mr. Garnett,
if you would come forward and behind
Mr. Garnett, Brenda Rees.

Mr. Garnett, we appreciate you taking time
from your day and you are recognized.

MR. GARNETT: Thank you, sir, 1 appreciate

being here. 1 thought I was signed up for a
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drawing for a boat or fruit. 1 didn"t know 1
was really going to be on the program.

CHAIRMAN GATES: You are, you will see
Representative Patronis and his fellow Greek
afterwards.

MR. GARNETT: All right.

CHAIRMAN GATES: They have a bunch of
devalued drachmas for you.

MR. GARNETT: I1f 1 would have known you
was going to put me on television 1 would have
waited to come tomorrow, because | get better
looking every day.

CHAIRMAN GATES: And 1 thought we would
handle the jokes. Would you like to travel
with us?

MR. GARNETT: Well, in fact, I was just
looking at your itinerary. You are starting
off eating shrimp in Pensacola and you are
going to wind up eating conch iIn the Keys.

Now, that ain"t a bad way to spend the summer.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Come on along.

MR. GARNETT: If you have time though, you
ought to stop by Tampa, go by Ebor City and get
you some Pompano and populi and some black bean

soup, black beans, white rice and onions.
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I really, I came over here today because
when there is this many politicians all at one
place, you need to watch them. And 1 apologize
for the crowd because there is more of ya"ll
than there are of us.

But I think what you are doing is a very
serious thing and 1 just want to say, just try
to do something that makes sense. That is all
I ask of you. Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you, sir. We
really appreciate you being here. Next 1is
Brenda Rees, it is nice to see you again,

Ms. Rees, and following Brenda will be Roger, I
believe i1t is Straley or Stanley, if you will
be on deck, please.

Brenda, nice to see you, you are
recognized.

MS. REES: Senator Gates, Representative
Weatherford and Senate and House Committee
members, thank you for coming over to this part
of northwest Florida.

I live in Walton county, which is in the
middle, so part of my district is over there
and part is impacted over here, so | thought it

was important to come to both.
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I will try to say something a little bit
different today and not the same testimony that
I gave last night.

But I am a Florida native. My family has
been here about seven generations, so there has
been a lot of map changes in the time that my
family has been in Florida, but thank you for
holding these statewide public redistricting
meetings. | believe you are getting
substantial evidence that you will be able to
use in your redistricting process.

I have lived iIn several states and have
witnessed several redistricting processes. In
Alaska I was on the State Redistricting Board
appointed by the Governor.

The five member Board redistricted, not
the Legislature. We had rules to follow just
as you. My brother is an NFL Referee. He was
the head referee for the Super Bowl this year.
He had rules to follow, and just like him, at
the end of the game 1 hope it is a good game
called, well done by the players in taking care
of the people at hand.

The ball i1s iIn the citizen®s hand right

now and this iIs our chance to speak to you, so
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thank you very much for giving us this
opportunity to come to you and give you our
opinions in developing the important
redistricting plans for the state of Florida.

I know how important redistricting
hearings are in Alaska. One day it was
50 degrees below zero and with had to go to
Fairbanks and the heat went out in the hotel
and people showed up. So I hope your weather
fares well for you in all of your meetings.

Follow the rules by adhering to one
person, one vote. The Voting Rights Act of
1964 as amended in 1965, that districts are
compact, contiguous and reflect communities of
interest as much as is practical as you heard
last night.

Follow the rule of 10 percent deviation
for the state Senate and House Districts. We
have 67 counties now in Florida. Well, we have
40 Senators, 120 Representatives and we will be
having 27 Congressional leaders. There is
going to have to be -- 29, have to be some
mixing of counties.

There i1s no way to divide 18 million

Floridians up with those numbers without some
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cross counties. One vote difference for
Congressional will be challenging.
Redistricting by census block, what some people
don®t understand i1s, you have to do i1t by
census block. The census wasn®"t by counties,
it wasn"t by cities. It wasn"t by other
municipalities. It was by census block.

So sometimes you may get that odd squiggly
little line that makes no sense, but you might
have to use it. 1 hope you can keep them as
compact as possible and contiguous, but the
public needs to understand, It Is by census
block.

Thank you for providing maps, numbers and
extensive information. We know that our
Congressional District 1 is 2,000 short and
Congressional District 2 is 41,000 over the
ideal 696,000 ideal district. CD 1 is 2,000
short and CD 2 is about 41,000 over. So there
will have to be some adjustments made there.

Please try to keep South Walton. That is
where 1 live. 1 was born in Defuniak Springs
on the north end, but 1 live in South Walton on
the south end and it is a historical community

of iInterest.
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It is —- | brought this picture here. It
is a beautiful little community, even Thomas
Hannah of Pointe Washington was a one time
Speaker of the House from Pointe Washington, a
little known fact. So we do, even though we
are small and we get juggled around a little
bit, we have had political importance.

Also, 1In redistricting South Walton it is
very important to keep us together as we are
down here, and what separates us from the
northern end is a large bay and also Eglin Air
Force Base which is one of the largest the Air
Force Bases In America and it is also a bombing
range. So sometimes roads are closed, so that
IS just something to keep, keep iIn mind.

Congressional District 1, you heard last
night, should consolidate Okaloosa County as
much as possible, and Congressional District 2,
I have already discussed that.

You will eventually have to make the final
call on the redistricting plan going forth,
make the right call and follow the rules.

Thank you.
CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you very much,

Ms. Rees. We appreciate your testimony.
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Mr. Roger, 1 believe it is Straley. 1 think,
could I possibly have that wrong. You are
going to help me out.

MR. STRALEY: It is Roger Straley.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you, sir, welcome,
and you are recognized.

MR. STRALEY: 1 am from Bay County, a long
time resident of Florida. The only thing that
I would ask is it has been touched on here
before by previous people. 1Is that you would
make your districts based on common sense on
county lines, on geographic features that would
make sense and not consider the party
representation necessarily within the
districts.

I think that has been a great cause for
the spread out districts. No common sense at
all 1s purely political considerations, but 1
would ask you to try to make them using common
sense and not political considerations. Thank
you very much.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you, Mr. Straley,
we appreciate your comments.

Next #s Dr. Rufus Wood, I believe, and

following Dr. Wood is Jim Anders.
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Dr. Wood? As we are waiting for Dr. Wood
to approach the podium, President Margolis, our
former Senate President has admonished me to
point out that the maps that are behind us
which were in the front previously and will be
-- a number of people were looking at them and
they will be available later, are maps that
show the current districts, Congressional
Senate and House Districts, and those maps can
be used by you as a point of departure, a take
off point for where you specifically think
changes ought to be made.

Thank you very much, Doctor, for being
here, and you are recognized to speak, sir.

DR. WOOD: Thank you, Chairman and to all
of our Representatives and our Senators. We
are so delighted to have you iIn our community
and to all of the citizens who have come today
to share with, 1 appreciate this opportunity.

I am Reverend Dr. Rufus L. Wood, Jr. |1
represent the Bay County Branch National
Association for the Advancement of Colored
People.

It was Dr. James Cone who once said that

we can never understand the political process
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until we become active and be a part of that
process.

We are here today to that political power
is essential for all people iIn the state of
Florida and throughout this great nation. As
you all know, the 1965 Voters Right Act was a
landmark national piece of legislation which
was passed that outlawed discriminative
practices in the voting procedures, which had
been responsible for many years for the
wide-spread disenfranchisement of
African-Americans.

So we have come today to say again that we
believe that political power is essential for
African-Americans and, in fact, i1t is essential
for all of the citizens of the state of
Florida.

We appreciate this opportunity today to
appeal to our State Legislators, we want to
appeal to you first of all as you travel
throughout the great state of Florida to
conduct meaningful hearings. We want
meaningful dialogue.

Unfortunately, in Bay County and some of

our political forums that we have had here and
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public hearings, we have had political leader
who have said, my mind is already made up. So
we are here today to request that your minds
are open to the input that is being given 1iIn
these hearings.

I believe that time is a gift from God.
Somebody once said yesterday is a cancelled
check, tomorrow is a promissory note, today is
cash, and that is all you have, so spend it
wisely.

So we hope and pray that as you travel
throughout the state that you will certainly
not waist the time of the citizens of the
various communities throughout this state.

Time is so important and is so valuable
and we hope that you are open to hear what 1is
being shared.

Secondly, we appeal to you, don"t play,
with all due respect, don"t play political
games with the citizens of this state. Certain
parties drawing lines to advantage themselves
and to benefit themselves, so that they are
more likely to have officials elected, so that
they are more likely to control the committee,

so they are more likely to control the
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procedures.

So they are more likely to past the laws
which support their particular point of views.
So once again, with all due respect we do hope
and pray that you will not play games with the
citizens of the state of Florida.

Thirdly, we appeal to you to provide
equity iIn terms of representation for all of
the citizens of the state of Florida.

In Bay County, iIn the past ten years there
has been an increase in the African-American
population, 10 percent. There has been
114 percent increase in terms of the Latino and
Hispanic, and we certainly hope that as you
make plans to redraw the lines, that that will
be taken iInto consideration, and that there
will not be minority delusion in this process
as you redraw the lines iIn this state.

Finally, we appeal to you at the end of
the process that you again will remember all of
the citizens and we would love to have the
vital information which has already been stated
that after the maps have been drawn up, that
there still will be an opportunity for input.

We would like to know Iin terms of the
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demographics, in terms of race, in terms of
national origin, in terms of the age, and in
terms of all of those people who will be
allowed and permitted to vote.

Thank you so very much, and as | go to my
seat, | always remember the words of the late
Reverend Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., who once
said, injustice anywhere is a threat to justice
everywhere. So we only appeal to you to please
be fair In this process.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you very much,

Dr. Wood. Our next speaker is Jim Anders.

Mr. Anders, and following Mr. Anders is Wanda
Raley, who is the Supervisor of Elections here
in Bay County. Jim, it is good to see you.

MR. ANDERS: Good to see you.

CHAIRMAN GATES: And you are recognized.

MR. ANDERS: All right, thank you. Again,
I am Jim Anders and 1 am from South Walton
County over to the county to the west, Seagrove
Beach, but 1 was raised in Blountstown. As a
matter of fact, Bill Monford over there, he was
Student Body President and 1 was a
Representative of his in that class back iIn the

60"s, so -- but having grown up in the rural
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areas in the Florida here, north Florida and
living along the coast, 1 see a need to keep
the issues separate.

That we have coastal issues that are
needed to be done by Representatives who are
familiar with the coast, and then we have the
rural areas that need to be represented by
people that have an interest and need iIn the
rural areas.

So I think that was what 1 really wanted
to say, having lived in this area all my life
and all, and so 1 would like to make that
statement.

But also I just like the process, the way
you all allow people to open up and come and
speak and all. 1 can remember 30 years ago
when we had and I was a support of his, Senator
Barron, he, back then, you know, 1 think he was
President of the Senate, and 1 think there were
three Senators in north Florida.

You had W. D. Childers in Pensacola, you
had Pat Thomas in Quincy, and you had Senator
Barron here in Panama City, and back then I
think you could push a button, and 1 think

Dempsey got 70 percent of the vote where he got
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70 percent of the vote and 1t was his district,
you know.

So, I mean, it has changed a lot. 1 think
that was done I think all over, but back then
we didn"t have the process like we have now,
and what 1 am saying is, thank you all for
allowing the people to come and have public
input and all. 1 think that is much needed.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you very much, Jim.
Appreciate it. And now our Supervisor of
Elections. Thank you very much for taking time
from your day and we look forward to hearing
your testimony.

I know that our professional staff has had
an opportunity to meet with many of the
Supervisors of Elections and we look forward to
your guidance. You are recognized.

MS. RALEY: Thank you. First of all, 1
would like to say that 1 am not the Supervisor
of Elections. 1 am representing him today.

Our Supervisor is Mark Anderson.

CHAIRMAN GATES: That is what 1 thought,
but I thought perhaps Mr. Anderson went fishing
and you -- there was a codetta or something.

MS. RALEY: While he was away.
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CHAIRMAN GATES: Well, since there was no
codetta, please give, please give him our best
wishes.

MS. RALEY: 1 will.

CHAIRMAN GATES: And I am glad that -- 1
am glad there was not a power struggle or
anything like that in the office, but you are
here representing him.

MS. RALEY: Yes.

CHAIRMAN GATES: And nonetheless, we are
delighted to have your testimony.

MS. RALEY: Thank you very much. He is
not able to be here so 1 would like to read a
prepared statement for him.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Please.

MS. RALEY: First I send my regrets for
being unable to attend this meeting. 1 am
currently at the State Association Conference
where Supervisors around the state are also
addressing redistricting issues.

For conducting elections, it is beneficial
to use large arterial boundaries, such as main
roads or county lines as much as possible to
ease and tabulation of voter population for

precinct districts.
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With the current timeline and possible
legal challenges, as well as public concerns,
it is Imperative to move as quickly as possible
to complete this task. This will allow
adequate time for my office to prepare for the
2012 primary election. Respectfully, Mark
Anderson, Bay County Supervisor of Elections.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you very much, and
please give Mr. Anderson our best, and thanks
for your testimony today.

MS. RALEY: I will, thank you.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Next we have, 1 believe
we have someone who"s handwriting is almost as
bad as mine. 1 think 1t is Richard, is it
Plant, or -- what is It, sir?

MR. PLANTEC: Plantec.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Plantec, okay. Wwell,
thank you very much for being here, and Danny
Smith is recognized following Mr. Plantec.
Thank you for taking time from your day. You
are recognized before the Committee.

MR. SMITH: Yes, I am retired. 1 could be
out at the beaches right now, but I came here
instead.

First of all I want to thank all of you.
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I think this is a wonderful thing that you are
doing and I think it will really help your
process.

I know that the Constitution tells you to
consider geographical and political boundaries,
but I would also like you to think about
community boundaries, which may be different
from what some of the other people have said,
because 1 know for example, out on Panama City
Beach, parts of it are represented.

We have two wonderful State Reps and they
are both great, but parts of the beach are
represented by different ones. They are
basically, it is one community, you should have
one, one representative there.

By the same token, even the beach, Panama
City Beach and Panama City, Lynn Haven, are
part of the same community. People belong to
the same clubs, give to the same charities, go
to the same fundraisers and things. So there
is a lot In common beyond what the -- beyond
what the legal boundaries may be and the
geographical boundaries, and I would like you
to keep that in mind.

And also when you are grouping, you are
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grouping communities together, group similar
communities together as much as possible,
because 1 have been around, | have seen a lot
of the Congressional District which iIs very
large so you have to diversify to a certain
extent, but 1 know like communities such as,
you know, the Panama City Beaches and the
Panama City downtown, it is still they have a
lot of the roots and the background with the
rural communities around here.

I see a lot less of a connection with
Tallahassee. You should keep in mind how the
communities blend, try to put people together.
I —— I guarantee you 1T you do this it will
make your jobs a lot easier, because you will
have those common interests together, and once
again 1 would like to thank you for this
opportunity.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you very much for

your testimony. Very well said. Next is Danny

Smith and then after Mr. Smith is Tim Pugh.
Mr. Smith, thank you for coming, and you are
recognized.

MR. SMITH: Good morning, Senator Gates

and thanks for all of you for taking the time
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to come here. 1 think you have put together a
wonderful process and 1 think most of us have
to remember that i1t Is, you know, we really
want compact districts easy to understand where
you got to go to vote and all of that sort of
thing.

We don®"t want anymore of those snakes
along from one city to the other just to get
certain people in there, of course, and 1 know
you are not going to do that, because this
process that you have set up is really good and
it is open for everyone to speak.

Yes, it may be a little expensive to do,
but 1 think you are doing the right thing and
we appreciate the opportunity to come here and
just give you our little two cents worth, so
thank you.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you very much, sir.
We really appreciate your time. Mr. Pugh?

MR. PUGH: Yes.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you very much for
taking time from your day and you are
recognized to speak, sir.

MR. PUGH: Good morning, Senator Gates and

thanks for all of the communication, the
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updated information that you give me all of the
time. | appreciate that.

Most everything 1 wanted to say was
already said today. The process should be
common sense, community based, and 1 hope that
through the whole process that gerrymandering
never comes up. We shouldn®t have a bunch of
squiggly lines.

And the other thing 1 have to say is that
as an IT person, your online tools are
terrible. 1 mean, the interface iIs terrible,
and 1f there is anything we can do about that
to make it easier, because --

CHAIRMAN GATES: You are hired.

MR. PUGH: Huh? But, yes, it -- they are
just really clumsy at best.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Would you do us a favor?

MR. PUGH: Sure.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Since you are an IT
person and we have heard, you know, we had a
gentleman testify yesterday who said he spent
15 minutes with them and was able to navigate
easily and, in fact, had already drawn
Congressional and Senate Districts.

So would you -- where is John Guthrie? Do
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you see that gentlemen right over there?

MR. PUGH: Yes.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Would you mind spending
10 or 15 minutes with him now or after the
hearing and share some of your concerns and
maybe he can offer you a couple of suggestions
as well, and I am sure you can have some
recommendations that will help us, because in
general we are getting very good responses, but
iT there are difficulties and there are two
cites, a House cite and a Senate cite. So
anxious to have your help there, but please go
ahead, sir.

MR. PUGH: Okay, I will do, 1 will be with
you, but that is basically all 1 had to say,
just make sure it is a common sense approach
and that gerrymandering doesn"t come up during
this entire process.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Okay, thank you, and if
you would spend some time with Mr. Guthrie,
that would benefit everybody.

MR. PUGH: Okay, thanks.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you so much.
William Pritchard is next and then Candice

Harbison.
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William Pritchard and then Ms. Harbison,
iT you would be on deck, please.

MR. PRITCHARD: 1 thought 1 was going to
get the on deck sign ahead of time.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Well, 1t was my fault. 1
was so wrapped up in trying to get some free
help here that I --

MR. PRITCHARD: Yes, | understand.
CHAIRMAN GATES: I am a conservative,
understand. Mr. Pritchard, you are recognized,

and thanks so much for coming today.

MR. PRITCHARD: Good morning, my name 1is
Bill Pritchard and 1 am representing myself, as
well as our Greater Bay Chapter of the ACLU of
Florida which 1 am President of.

Of course, you all know, everybody knows
that anybody that has been paying attention
anyway, that the majority of voters, in fact,
almost two-thirds voted for Amendments V and VI
to create compact, contiguous districts and to
put an end to gerrymandering no matter which
side you are on.

This is a non-partisan thing, i1t is
supposed to be anyway, and the thing that

bothers me about this process is that where are
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the maps?

It 1s a good question, because all we have
is the old maps and ultimately you people are
going to draw the maps and vote on them, and I
think it would have been better had you
presented us with at least tentative maps that
we could comment on, because otherwise all we
can comment on here iIs the process.

And as some other people have said, they
have gotten right to work on this iIn other
states and why in Florida does it take so long
to develop maps of House, Senate and
Congressional Districts.

That information has been available for
months and If anybody can use the Internet to
draw a map, why can"t you use the Internet to
draw a map so that we could see what your
intentions are?

But this i1s going to take too long, and I
understand that you can®t vote on maps ahead of
time, but there is no reason why you can"t
create some, because there iIs going to be a lot
of confusion and last minute problems because
people who want to run for office aren"t going

to know what district they are in, and 1 won"t
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know who my Representative iIs going to be ahead
of time, and let me see here.

Another thing that I find as a problem
with this process is that after the maps are
proposed, are you going to conduct hearings
after that so that people can actually comment
on the maps that you are going to vote on?

I think people would want to know that.
The Florida process is one of the slowest and
most secretive iIn the country, and there is no
reason this needs to be like this unless the
goal i1s to keep people in the dark and confuse
them, and that leads us to more things about
Fair Districts Florida.

I am troubled that so many of you have
opposed, fought and continued to fight against
these amendments, and it iIs pretty much an
insult to the voters who overwhelmingly
approved these rules that you are trying to
ignore them or play games with them, and why
are you spending so much of my money and other
taxpayers®™ money to try to undermine my vote
and the vote of the majority of Floridians for
a fair process and fair districts.

I understand that there has been maybe as
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much as $30 million put away to try to work
against the Fair District Amendment. Still it
would be better to stop spending money on
lawyers and just to draw the maps.

IT you are planning to spend that kind of
money to defend the kind of districts that you
are going to come up with in court, then people
are going to suspect that there is something
wrong with this process.

IT you draw —- if you drew good fair maps
I think perhaps nobody would sue you, so that
is what 1 have to say.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Well, thank you,

Mr. Pritchard and you raised some very
interesting questions from your script that
others from the ACLU have raised and we are
going to ask the Speaker Designate to comment
on those because I think we want to make sure
that there are no questions of fact that remain
at the end of the hearing.

Thank you very much, Ms. Harbison, for
being here, and you are recognized to speak,
and behind you is James Gould.

MS. HARBISON: Thank you. |1 don®"t want to

sound like a broken record, but the reason we
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are doing this now iIs because we have new
census data, and 1 don"t understand why those
data weren"t put together to draw up some
logical, sensible maps that we could all
comment on.

Perhaps this expensive process could be
drawn a little shorter and something more
meaningful to comment on could be proposed to
us.

Locally, a properly compact district would
not include a rat tail. It would not
concentrate special iInterests, but it would
represent the variety of interests in the
district.

It has been very confusing for the people
of Bay County to have been split up into
various districts. Unless there is a really
good reason for it, a county should be kept in
tact.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you, and it is good
to see you again, Ms. Harbison. James Gould is
our next speaker and following Mr. Gould, Gary
Bechler, please.

Mr. Gould, thank you for taking time to

come, and we appreciate your presence today.

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

Page 1533



[EEY

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

You are recognized.

MR. GOULD: Thank you all for coming and
opening up this to public comment. My name is
James Gould. 1 live in Southport, Florida.

My wife and I run a Tea Party and I would
just like to admonish you, the Constitution,
the Federalist papers say the end goal of the
Constitution is justice, that iIs justice for
all.

It also says that a Republic, which is a
form of government that we have, cannot stand
unless there is a self-reliant and virtuous
citizenry.

I admonish you as you go through this
process to put principle and high moral
standards above cheap partisan goals. Thank
you .

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you very much,

Mr. Gould. Good words for all of us. Gary

Bechler, please, and following Mr. Bechler,

Jamie Shepard would be on deck, and Jamie is
also with the League of Women Voters.

Mr. Bechler, thank you for coming, and you
are recognized.

MR. BECHLER: Thank you. 1 would also
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like to ask where the maps are, why the other
states can get this stuff done and let their
constituents see what is being proposed or what
we are looking at. 1 feel like this is more or
less a farce.

We will not even get to comment on these
maps once you Legislators draw them up. So we
are being put out of the process, 1 feel like.
I feel like when you do redistrict you should
take into account how some of these counties
are split up.

As far as our Senate District here, if you
are not iIn the tourist industry you have no
representation. If the counties are kept more
whole you have the tourist industries in the
south of the counties, you have the farmers in
the north, you have, you know, other -- other
citizens involved. 1 don"t even have access to
my State Senator, which is you, Mr. Gates.

By your own words, you know, 1 tried to
talk to you in Tallahassee when we had
sessions, after the sessions, when everybody
talks to their Representatives.

You flat out told me and my business

partner that you knew we were in the Union, you
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knew we didn®"t vote for you, and you knew, and
you didn*t have time for us.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Now, sir, Sir --

MR. BECHLER: And I feel, 1 feel like no
matter what --

CHAIRMAN GATES: Excuse me. We are not
going to have an argument today, but --

MR. BECHLER: I am not having an argument.
I am making a statement.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Yes.

MR. BECHLER: 1 feel like rather 1 am an
Independent, a Democrat or a Republican. IT I
vote, you know, iIf I am an Independent and 1
vote Republican and a Democrat gets elected, |
should still have access to my Representative,
and I don"t. That is all 1 have to say, thank
you .

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you for your time.
And Jamie Shepard is our next speaker, and
following Jamie Shepard we will hear from
Celia, 1 think i1t iIs either Fith or Fitz, and
Ms. Shepard is as well a representative of the
League of Women Voters. Nice to see you again.

MS. SHEPARD: Nice to see you.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Please, you are
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recognized.

MS. SHEPARD: Thank you very much. On
behalf of the League of Women Voters of Bay
County and all of our citizens, we welcome the
committee.

We sincerely hope you will come back to
Patronis country. As you may very well know,
the League of Women Voters of Florida has been
front and center on this issue for 70 years.

We have been fTighting for this for 70 years.

Fair election districts are a good
government, non-partisan issue, just like the
League. We have supported this measure,
regardless of which party was in control of the
State Legislature.

The League of Women Voters was, was not,
has not been and is not anti incumbent, because
we have a long history of opposing term limits
because we understand the importance of time in
office for clarity on the issues and
familiarity with the concerns of your
constituents.

We thank you for your website, Florida
Redistricting.org, which will allow us all to

monitor what the Legislature and our fellow
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citizens are proposing, but we encourage the
Committee to go ahead and put something on
paper -

Everybody knows it iIs easier to edit than
create. We encourage the Committee to move the
timeline up as your own attorney suggested, to
preclude chaos and confusion in 2012.

This 1s kind of what we are paying you
for, and so as our Governor has succinctly
said, let"s get to work on 1t. We encourage
you to drop your lawsuit. Sixty-three percent
of the voters has spoken, we passed Amendments
V and VI last fall. This is a waste of
taxpayer dollars to combat this.

What is the logic of this? Minority
districts are protected already, communities of
interest are a concern, but our compliance with
the national voting rights laws must take
precedence.

We thank you again for your time, your
time here across the state to listen to all of
us. Your consideration is truly appreciated
and we are hoping for the best. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you so much for

being here, and it is good to see you again.
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Now, Celia Fitz, nice to see you again. This
is like old home week, and Frederick, I think
its Croon or Crown may be next, please. You
are recognized, and thanks for being here.

MS. FITZ: I am a resident of Bay County.
I have been a citizen here for many years and 1
just wanted to say a few things.

One, that Fair Districts was the will of
the vast majority of Floridians and I would
like very much for you to simply follow the
Fair District laws and to draw the maps first
before.

I know you have made up your mind and you
are going do this and 1 know I am not going to
change your mind, but 1 really wish you would
have drawn the maps first. | think it would
have made the process much more meaningful and
efficient.

And 1 am very concerned with the number of
cuts down to the bone for education and many
other agencies in Florida that we are spending
so much money. |1 assume taxpayers are paying
for all of you to travel all around the state
and do all of this, and that lady 1 am sure

gets paid quite well and other folks.
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We don®t have the money in Florida to be
Jjust wasting it, and let"s make the process
more meaningful and more efficient. Let"s move
it forward. Let"s move it along, and 1t will
be a real problem if we don"t have these
districts drawn and in place in plenty of time
for people to decide who is going to qualify
for that district, what district, with won*t
have any districts if you take until June to
make a decision.

The courts are going to have to review it.
So we really wish you would go ahead and draw
the maps and then let us speak on it. Okay.

Well, that was pretty much i1t, and also I
did want to bring up the legal challenges. 1
have been very resentful of the State
Legislature using our tax dollars to go after
Fair Districts when it is the will of the
people. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you, Celia, and 1
should have, 1 apologize, I should have
mentioned that Celia as well represents the
League of Women Voters or is a member. 1 am
sorry, you are wearing your League button and 1

apologize.
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Frederick Croon, and following Mr. Croon,
Beth Oltman from the Panama City Beach Chamber.
You are recognized, sir, thank you for being
here.

MR. CROON: Thank you, good morning to
everyone. | am with the Union, 1 am Union,
too, so but irregardless, my number one thing
is 1 am a citizen of the United States and I am
definitely a citizen of Bay County.

This -- we appreciate ya"ll coming. This
IS very important. You can tell by the number
of people here that i1t is important, but really
I think it should be more people here.

Even the local news here evidently didn"t
think it was important enough, because it is
not on the front page, it is not on the local,
but 1 request that this Committee put the
information out to the people of the state of
Florida that how important this is.

How this will subject to effect our way of
life in the state of Florida for the next 10
years or even longer, because right now by the
number of people here, local newspaper, et
cetera, the people don"t think it Is important

as i1t is, and you up here do know that it is
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important on how we draw our district lines and
who our leaders are for the state of Florida.

And 1 live in Bay County. 1 live on the
southeast portion of the county, and we have
three Senators in Bay County, and most people
in Bay County do not have a clue who the three
Senators are, and the only reason 1 know who
they are, because 1 do visit Tallahassee pretty
frequently, and Gates, yes, you are my Senator
according to my residential location.

I think Patronis is for the Callaway area
and the Tyndall Air Force base is our
Representative, but earlier people spoke on the
part that it needs to be made equally fair
where the people of the counties or the cities
will actually know who their Representatives
are and who their State Senators are.

And 1 know Mr. Evers, who is a Senator and
he quoted earlier in his comment earlier, he
said but he have the Sand Hills of Bay County.

He lives in Milton, Florida. You live in
Pensacola, but irregardless where you live at,
we need to know who represents us, and
Mr. Monford, when I was iIn Tallahassee he is

the only one that 1 got a chance to talk to. 1
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didn"t get a chance to talk to you. |1 didn"t
get a chance to talk to Mr. Evers.

Now, last year, Mr. Evers, | did talk to
you when you was a Representative, but as a
Senator 1 did not, but the people needs to know
who their Representatives are, not just Union
members or the League Voters or people that
have groups or organizations, but all of the
citizens need to know who their leaders are.

So when you are doing these redistricting
and setting these boundary lines or the area
you cover, try to think about we need the
citizens to know who we are, who we can e-mail
to, who we can write a letter to iIf we are
having a problem, and, you know, some things
are gripes or some grievances or whatever you
want to say about the problem, but with need to
know who you all are.

So 1f ya"ll would think about that while
you are traveling the state of Florida, that
the people need to know who their leaders are.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you very much,

Mr. Croon. And Mr. Croon raises an interesting

point, and just informationally, is Nick Abrams
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here, Nick? Do you see the tall guy iIn the
back, Mr. Croon, Nick Abrams, right back here,
I apologize, sir.

IT there i1s anybody here who would like an
appointment with either their Representative or
their Senator, and perhaps when they were 1In
Tallahassee they didn"t get a chance because of
a committee meeting or a conflict, if you would
like an appointment to see Senator Evers or
Representative Coley or Representative Patronis
or myself, that tall fellow back there, just
keep him In mind, give him your name and
number, we will call and set up an appointment
for any of you.

Ms. Oltman, thank you very much for being
here, you are recognized.

MS. OLTMAN: Well, hello there. My name
is Beth Oltman, and 1 am the President of the
Panama City Beach Chamber of Commerce.

I actually live In Lynn Haven. | am a
very proud resident of Bay County, and 1 want
to thank all of you for coming to our beautiful
part of the state, and I, too, wish that I know
all of your intentions are very positive, but 1

want you to show your true leadership skills
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and try to expedite this process.

Make quick decisions for the entire state,
because 1 know you all can, take away the
self-interests and do what is best for our
state as a whole.

Now, speaking for Bay County, 1 do wish
that we would hold -- keep all of Bay County
together. As Bay County has changed throughout
the years we now have our ailrport, we are
growing economically. We have our beach, we
care so much about our education system.

We have many of us are moving into this
area from other parts of the country and are
very proud to call this home. So I, too, wish
to ask that all of Bay County stays together,
even though I love Marti and Jimmy and Don, all
of you, I sincerely hope that we can expedite
this entire situation and keep Bay County whole
so we keep our power and grow continually.
Thank you for coming once again.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you very much, and
I should have said also that Senator Monford I
am sure takes the same view that If there are
any citizens here who may have attempted to

reach him when he was in Tallahassee, we get
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called away a lot for votes on the floor or
committee votes and you couldn®t reach him, see
the tall guy In the back, Nick Abrams, and he
will make sure that Senator Monford gets your
name and number so that you can get a meeting
with him 1f you would like.

Next #s Alvin Peters, and following Alvin
Peters is Kristy Terry from the Calhoun Chamber
of Commerce.

Alvin Peters, if you are here, we would be
delighted to hear from you.

I am sorry 1 didn"t give you as much of a
heads up as you might have liked, but you are
moving quickly to the floor here and we
appreciate that.

MR. PETERS: Thank you, Senator Gates, and
thank you all of you panel members for
attending Panama City"s public forum. It is
great to see you.

It is impressive to see so many of you
putting so much time into listening. 1 think I
echo some of the other comments that you may
have heard, that this conversation might have
been a little more substantive iIf we had had

some proposals and then we could talk about how
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this might specifically impact different
issues, but since we are on the general level 1
guess we can"t help but have the conversation
be fairly general.

And the good news 1 think for all of you
is that Florida has spoken in a bi-partisan
way, | think, to encourage you to draw
districts that are contiguous and that show
communities of iInterest. And that is a good
thing.

I think each of you will have to deal with
a little bit of the history of how Florida has
gotten to where it is, and one of the things
that I would urge you to do is to think of your
self as Judges.

How would a Judge decide this matter of
drawing districts. Think about it. Think
about how a Judge would do it, not a
politician, you know, and what factors would
you consider.

Obviously they are different, so if you
think of, for example, how would i1t effect me,
that might not be a real judicial approach to
deciding, you know, the proper drawing of a

line.
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IT you allow factors to effect your
consideration, such as how would i1t effect my
party, right, that wouldn"t be something that a
Judge might realistically consider or properly
consider in drawing these districts.

So 1 would ask each of you to put on a
Judge®s hat as you make these decisions of
drawing, you know, these lines. Think about it
as a Judge and think about 1t In a non-partisan
uninvolved fashion where you are basically
creating fair districts, and to do so in good
spirit, not contesting the constitutional
changes that mandate you to do so, so that is
the first thing.

The second thing I think that you need to
think about a little bit is how we got here.
Florida has drawn these districts. A lots of
districts have been drawn largely based on
party and race, and I haven®t really heard
enough of that in this conversation so far
today and I would encourage each of you to
openly acknowledge the history of how these
districts have been drawn.

I think Senator Monford comes in to Panama

City to get a couple of precincts, and you
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basically your district goes, was Al Lawson"s
district and i1t goes down the train tracks of
231.

Many of you will leave town and you will
drive up 231 on your way out and you will be
passing Senator Monford"s district. Now, no
one lives there, but it goes down the train
tracks to get to a couple of precincts that are
predominantly African-American in Panama City.

And so what you are going to be doing is
deciding how to reshape that, and it will make
some sense probably for Senator Monford®s
odometer if he doesn"t have to do that, but how
will that effect each and every, you know,
district and how will that then, you decide,
how does i1t effect me.

How does that effect the amount of
minority representation in the Florida
Legislature. To what extent is that an
important factor in deciding how to draw these
districts. To what extent should we just go
across the state of Florida and draw straight
lines every time we get, you know, the right
number .

To what extent should we create districts
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that are actually communities of interest that
relate to like the beach. Mr. Anders was
talking for example, sensibly, you could draw
bubbles across Panama City and Panama City
Beach and say that is a community of iInterest.
Those people are interested along the coast,
they share a community of values, draw that
district. Let the rural areas and cut the
county in half if necessary on the northern
side or respect the county line to the extent
you can, which I think everybody says makes
some sense.

So I would encourage you to have an open
conversation about the history and how much
party and race have affected the drawing of the
current lines. How much the citizens of
Florida have spoken to you to do less of that,
to weight that less importantly. To create
communities of interest and give It a try.

Let"s see how grown up, how responsible,
how open minded, how less subject to party and
race the current voters are and we will see
where i1t goes, and that is what I would urge
you to do.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you so much for
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your testimony. Good testimony. Next is
Kristy Terry, and next after Ms. Terry would
be, 1 think 1t iIs Betty, and she has lovely
handwriting, Betty Briard, is it Briard?

Ms. Briard will be after Kristy Terry.

Ms. Terry, thank you for being here. You
are recognized.

MR. TERRY: Thank you. I want to tell all
of you how much we appreciate you coming and
listening.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Would you pull your mike
up because that way all of Florida can hear
you .

MR. TERRY: Wonderful. Thank you all for
coming. We certainly appreciate your
willingness to sit through these and listen and
take iInto account everybody®s opinions and how
they feel about this issue.

I am just here to ask you to as you move
through this process, to consider the rural
counties. We -- i1t works well for us that we
are all in districts where we can partner
together and have a stronger voice when we are
partnered together.

We are limited In our resources. It is to
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our benefit that we are able to join together
and work as a stronger, a stronger voice, and
so | just ask that as you move forward you keep
that in the back of your mind, that we have a
voice, too, and we have to kind of group
together, but that works for us. So please
Jjust consider that as you move forward.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you very, very much
for being here and for your testimony. And
now, Ms. Briard, if you are still here, ma“am?
Did I pronounce your name correctly?

MS. BRIARD: Briard.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Briard, yes, okay.

Well, thank you for being here in any
case, appreciate 1It.

Next is Art Kimbrough with the Jackson
County Chamber of Commerce. Art, it is good to
see you. Thanks for coming all this way and we
appreciate your testimony. You are recognized.

MR. KIMBROUGH: It is always good to see
you, Senator, especially when we are not having
to battle over money.

CHAIRMAN GATES: That is right.

MR. KIMBROUGH: In a discussion we have

been through those wars before. My name is Art
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Kimbrough, 1 am the President and CEO of the
Jackson County Chamber of Commerce up iIn
Marianna.

I was born and raised here in Panama City,
Lisnby Hospital just down the road longer ago
than I would like to remember, Jimmy, but I am
a seventh generation native of the panhandle
with roots i1n Jackson, Bay, Calhoun and Gulf
Counties.

So my family, my heritage, my history is
all about what we are trying to do today to
have good government and representing the
texture and culture of our communities.

I have got three messages that I have
crafted that are aimed at protecting and/or
strengthening the voice of Jackson County and
rural Florida in the Legislature.

These three positions or principles are
deliberatively broad, but also very specific
and measurable iIn their goals, and 1 have extra
copies of this for you, Senator, for you to
take with you.

My basis for these messages includes years
of dialogue with Chamber members who have

watched the influence of rural Florida dwindle,
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as well as discussions with our legislative
delegations and many other civic and business
leaders throughout Jackson County and beyond.

First, 1 believe rural areas do constitute
a community of interest that would benefit if
their influence is concentrated rather than
disbursed.

The beach economy, the bigger city markets
and rural markets each have unique needs and
concerns best served by the Legislators focused
on those needs and concerns.

Districts aligned according to these
communities of interest will be better equipped
to articulate their common cause and aggregate
the power needed to make sure theilr voice is
heard and their needs addressed.

Second, legislation and representation is
as much as about relationships as it is
district maps. Considering very personally
here, we have two Representatives in Jackson
County, Marti and Brad, and 1 can tell you,
they don"t care where that line falls in
Jackson County in terms of representing Jackson
County in the state.

They don®"t know it. In fact, I can even
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reach down and know that Jimmy Patronis, our
neighbor right there, he doesn®t care about the
boundary either. If we need a voice I can call
on Jimmy just as well.

Senator Monford, you cover the whole
county, but Senator Gates 1 know 1 can call you
just as well. Those relationships are as
important into a community as the district
boundaries, but we do understand those district
boundaries play a key role and that is part of
what you are dealing with today.

But Jackson County currently benefits from
having two Representatives with a strong
understanding of rural needs. If we were to be
sent back to just one Representative for one
county it would further weakened the political
influence of rural areas like Jackson County
and shift more power to larger markets.

Without strong voices from rural
Representatives it is very easy for rural
concerns to be overrun by large market needs
and political power.

We need to maintain coverage by two
Representatives with a mutual focus on rural

needs.
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Third, and last, two-mile wide, 200 long
winding districts with multiple environments,
rural, big city and beach, make it very
difficult for a Representative or a Senator to
stay closely connected to their constituents
and deliver a focused message.

Creating more compact geographical
districts i1s beneficial from a travel logistics
and access perspective so long as those
boundaries take into account the previous two
concerns.

Concentrations of communities of interest
and keeping our multiple representation in
Jackson County.

IT the Redistricting Committee and the
Legislature adhere to these three principles,
the specifics of where the actual lines are
drawn will less likely be a cause for concern
and more likely be a cause for some
celebration.

On behalf of the Jackson County Chamber of
Commerce and myself, 1 respectfully request
that the spirit of these three principles be
incorporated into the strategic framework for

developing this plan for redistricting.
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Thank you for your time and consideration.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you, Art, it is
good to see you and excellent points.
Appreciate it.

MR. KIMBROUGH: Who would 1 give these to?

CHAIRMAN GATES: If you will give them to
me 1 will make sure that all members of the
Committee get them and we will post them on the
website so that -- okay, John will make sure
that we all get them. We will put them on the
website and that way everybody can see them.
Thanks a million, Art.

Our next two speakers are Kylel Hall and
Jerry Gerde. Kylel Hall?

MS. HALL: Actually, 1t is Kyle.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Kyle, you and 1 both need
to go back to penmanship school, 1 think.

MS. HALL: Yes, 1 am working on it.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Kyle, i1t iIs good to see
you notwithstanding that. And you are
recognized for your remarks to the Committee.

MR. HALL: Thank you. 1 was just looking
around the room and 1 noticed that there iIs not
very many college students that took advantage

of this great opportunity. Shame on them,
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But as a recent graduate from Gulf Coast,
then Community College, now State College, I
just wanted to kind of focalize my experience
that | heard from different students in some of
my classes, specifically in my state and local
government where we looked into great detail
the districting of Florida.

And the biggest comments that everyone
made, it is something very somewhat simple and
I know that there is reasons perhaps behind it,
but the biggest concern that the students had
was the complexity of the redistricting.

As many have mentioned, the snaking and
the —- 1t is very complex and I just wanted to
mention to you that as kind of representing the
Student Body, that was somewhat of a big
concern of theirs.

And then also just as a little side note I
would just like to say, because I don"t know if
you hear i1t that much, that thank you for the
2011 legislative session and | was very proud
of all of you.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Thank you, and Kyle, we

Jjust might mention that if you go on to either
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the House or Senate websites you will see that
a group of students from Columbia University
took on as a project redistricting in Florida,
and they have already developed using our
websites, they have already developed
redistricting plans for our consideration.

We would welcome students that you know
doing the same thing either individually or as
a group, and if you would be iInterested in
doing that we would be very interested in that
input.

MR. HALL: It looks like I am going to
have to call them because they are not here.

CHAIRMAN GATES: Good, good, Jerry Gerde
is next, and following Mr. Gerde is Cecile, I
think it is Scoon. |1 apologize if 1 messed
that name up.

Mr. Gerde, thank you for being here, and
you are recognized.

MR. GERDE: Thank you, Senator, thank you,
visitors. 1 think 1t iIs important to recognize
that some traditions, such as judicial circuits
go back for, In some cases, generations, and as
all of you know, the 14th Judicial Circuit is

part of the web that binds Holmes and Gulf and
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Bay, Jackson and Calhoun and Washington
together.

Those are established and functioning
entities. The judicial circuits have their own
budgets, they have their own, of course,
judicial staff, so that Judges who are -- who
reside In Panama City have duties in Poplar
Springs and Bethlehem, in Jacob and in the most
rural of areas of our circuit.

So that I encourage -- and there tends to
be a, we over use the word perhaps, community,
but there tends to be a sense of community.

For example, as all of you undoubtedly
know, the Circuit Judges every two years change
divisions and rotate through the divisions so
that the less desirable kind of work is only
borne for two years and the more desirable kind
of judicial work is enjoyed for two years.

So | encourage, 1 encourage you to think
of judicial districts, because i1t does bind us
together already and for the -- for the
Legislature in 2000, to have fragmented the,
particularly the Fourteenth and the Third
Circuits was harmful and tended to dampen the

sense of community.

-5491

81

Page 1560



=

o o b~ W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

82

I know Al Lawson had the eastern one
quarter by geography of Bay County. 1 think it
was really an eighth by population, but where
on Tram Road did that begin and end? 1 don™"t,
I expect Mr. Lawson and his staff knew, but
most of us didn"t know.

So that I encourage you to look to the
Judicial Circuits as part of the fabric, in
which we function in our Sheriffs In our six
counties In our circuits tend to be, cooperate
and work together. The other judicial
officials do, also, so that is really one sense
of co